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ER  AMERISAFE, Inc.

Dear Shareholder,

It is critically important to us that we deliver on the commitments we make to you, our shareholders. We
are pleased to report that in 2006 Amerisafe met and exceeded all of our announced goals for the year.
Our key financial results for 2006 were:

Gross premium written increased 14.3%;
Revenues increased 20.4%,;

Net investment income rose by 50.3%;

Our combined ratio was 92.4%:;

Net income was a record $37.4 million; and
Return on average equity was 22.6%.
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Despite an increasingly competitive market, we maintained our underwriting discipline and pricing
integrity while achieving our targeted growth. We experienced a continued decline in the frequency of
claims during 2006 and experienced favorable development (reductions) in reserves for prior year losses.
As a result, at the end of 2006 we had fewer open claims than at the end of 2005, while we had greater
in-force premium. We also reduced our dependence on reinsurance, which continued a five-year trend
and allowed us to keep more of the premium we charge. Finally, we restructured our investment portfolio
and selected a new fixed-income portfolio manager.

Yes, 2006 was an exceptional year for Amerisafe, but where do we go from here? We do not envision
varying from our core competencies. Qur objective is to insure the safest employers engaged in
inherently dangerous businesses. The employees of Amerisafe remain focused on executing our business
model and we truly believe that our employees are the finest in the workers compensation industry. We
believe that our investments in technology provide us with a competitive advantage by allowing us to
effectively analyze business performance on a real-time basis. We believe our technological investments,
coupled with twenty-one years of institutional knowledge and experience, provide Amerisafe a solid
platform for successful operations.

The mission statement of Amerisafe sums up my thoughts:

“Qur goal is to be the premier high hazard workers’ compensation insurance company in
America and to achieve excellence through service to our clients, product design, and
professional conduct, always placing the client’s interest first,”

We thank you, our shareholders, for the support and confidence you have placed in Amerisafe and its
management team, and we hope to see you at our 2007 Annual Meeting of Sharej6ldgrs.

Sincerely,

4

C. Allen Bradley, Ir.
Chairman, President, and
Chief Executive Officer
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933 and 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. You should not place undue reliance on these statements.
These forward-looking statements include statements that reflect the current views of our senior management with
respect to our financial performance and future events with respect to our business and the insurance industry in
general. Statements that include the words “expect,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe,” “project,” “forecast,” “estimate,”
“may,” “should,” “anticipate™ and similar statements of a future or forward-looking nature identify forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements address matters that involve risks and uncertainties. Accordingly, there are
or will be important factors that could cause our actual results to ditfer materially from those indicated in these
statements. We believe that these factors include, but are not limited to, the following:

*  increased competition on the basis of coverage availability, claims management, safety services, payment
terms, premium rates, policy terms, types of insurance offered, overall financial strength, financial ratings
and reputation;

s the cyclical nature of the workers’ compensation insurance industry;

s preater frequency or severity of claims and loss activity, including as a result of natural or man-made
catastrophic events, than our underwriting, reserving or investment practices anticipate based on historical
experience or industry data;

¢ changes in rating agency policies or practices;

s changes in the availability, cost or quality of reinsurance and the failure of our reinsurers to pay claims in
a timely manner or at all;

e negative developments in the workers’ compensation insurance industry;

e decreased level of business activity of our policyholders;

e decreased demand for our insurance;

+ changes in regulations or laws applicable to us, our policyholders or the agencies that sell our insurance;
s changes in legal theories of liability under our insurance policies;

¢ developments in capital markets that adversely affect the performance of our investments;

¢ loss of the services of any of our senior management or other key employees;

e the effects of U.S. involvement in hostilities with other countries and large-scale acts of terrorism, or the
threat of hostilities or terrorist acts; and

e changes in general econemic conditions, including interest rates, inflation and other factors.

The foregoing factors should not be construed as exhaustive and should be read together with the other
cautionary statements included in this report, including under the caption “Risk Factors™ in Item 1A of this report. If
one or more events related to these or other risks or uncertainties materialize, or if our underlying assumptions prove
to be incorrect, actual results may differ materially from what we anticipate.




PART1
Item 1. Business.
Overview

We arc a specialty provider of workers” compensation insurance focused on small to mid-sized employers
engaged in hazardous industries, principally construction, trucking, logging, agriculture, oil and gas, maritime and
sawmilis. Since commencing operations in 1986, we have gained significant experience underwriting the complex
workers’ compensation exposures inherent in these industries. We provide coverage to employers under state and
federal workers’ compensation laws. These laws prescribe wage replacement and medical care benefits that
employers are obligated to provide to their employees who are injured in the course and scope of their employment.
Our workers’ compensation insurance policies provide benefits to injured employees for, among other things,
temporary or permanent disability, death and medical and hospitat expenses. The benefits payable and the duration
of those benefits are set by state or federal law. The benefits vary by jurisdiction, the nature and severity of the
injury and the wages of the employee. The employer, who is the policyholder, pays the premiums for coverage.

Hazardous industry employers tend to have less frequent but more severe claims as compared to employers in
other industries due to the nature of their businesses. I[njuries that occur are often severe in nature including death,
dismemberment, paraplegia and quadriplegia. As a result, employers engaged in hazardous industries pay
substantially higher than average rates for workers’ compensation insurance compared to employers in other
industries, as measured per payroll dollar. The higher premium rates are due to the nature of the work performed
and the inherent workplace danger of our target employers. For example, our construction employers generally paid
premium rates equal to $7.78 per $100 of payroll to obtain workers’ compensation coverage for all of their
employees in 2006.

We employ a preactive, disciplined approach in underwriting employers and providing comprehensive services
intended to lessen the overall incidence and cost of workplace injuries. We provide safety services at employers’
workplaces as a vital component of our underwriting process and to promote safer workplaces. We utilize intensive
claims management practices that we believe permit us to reduce the overall cost of our claims. In addition, our
audit services ensure that our policyholders pay the appropriate premiums required under the terms of their policies
and enable us to monitor payroll patterns or aberrations that cause underwriting, safety or fraud concemns.

We believe that the higher premiums typically paid by our policyholders, together with our disciplined
underwriting and safety, claims and audit services, provide us with the opportunity to earn attractive returns on

equity.

We completed our initial public offering in November 2005. In the offering, we issued 8,000,000 shares of
common stock at $9.00 per share. Upon the completion of the offering, we issued an additional 9,120,948 shares of
common stock in exchange for shares of our Series A preferred stock. Of the $63.2 million of net proceeds from
this offering, we contributed $45.0 million to our insurance subsidiaries and used $10.2 million to redeem shares of
our preferred stock. We expect to use the balance of the net proceeds to make additional capital contributions to our
insurance subsidiaries as necessary to support our anticipated growth and for general corporate purposes.

In November 2006, we completed a public offering of 9,071,576 shares of common stock. All of these shares
were offered by existing shareholders. We did not receive any of the proceeds from this offering.

AMERISAFE is an insurance holding company and was incorporated in Texas in 1985. We began operations
in 1986 by focusing on workers’ compensation insurance for logging contractors in the southeast United States. In
1994, we expanded our focus to include the other hazardous industries we serve today. Two of our three insurance
subsidiaries, American Interstate Insurance Company and Silver Oak Casualty, are domiciled in Louisiana. Qur
other insurance subsidiary, American Interstate Insurance Company of Texas, is domiciled in Texas.




Competitive Advantages

We believe we have the following competitive advantages:

Focus on Hazardous Industries. We have extensive experience insuring employers engaged in hazardous
industries and have a history of profitable underwriting in these industries. Our specialized knowledge of these
hazardous industries helps us better serve our policyholders, which leads to greater employer loyalty and policy
retention. Our policy renewal rate on voluntary business that we elected to quote for renewal was 91.1% in 2006,
90.6% in 2005 and 93.0% in 2004.

Focus on Small to Mid-Sized Employers. We believe large insurance companies generally do not target small
to mid-sized employers in hazardous industries due to their smaller premium size, type of operations, mobtle
workforce and extensive service needs. We provide enhanced customer services to our policyholders. For example,
unlike many of our competitors, our premium payment plans enable our policyholders to better match theit premium
payments with their payroll costs.

Specialized Underwriting Expertise. Based on our 21-year underwriting history of insuring employers
engaged in hazardous industries, we have developed industry specific risk analysis and rating tools to assist our
underwriters in risk selection and pricing. We are highly disciplined when quoting and binding new business. We
do not delegate underwriting authority to agencies that sell our insurance or to any other third party.

Comprehensive Safety Services. We provide proactive safety reviews of employers’ worksites, which are often
located in rural areas. These safety reviews are a vital component of our underwriting process and also assist our
policyholders in loss prevention and encourage the safest workplaces possible by deploying experienced field safety
professionals, or FSPs, to our policyholders’ worksites. In 2006, more than 94.0% of our new voluntary business
policyholders were subject to pre-quotation safety inspections. We perform periodic on-site safety surveys on all of
our voluntary business policyholders.

Proactive Claims Management. Our employees manage substantially all of our open claims in-house utilizing
our intensive claims management practices that emphasize a personal approach and quality, cost-effective medical
treatment. We currently average 56 open indemnity claims per field case manager, or FCM, which we believe is
significantly less than the industry average. We believe our claims management practices allow us to achieve a
more favorable claim outcome, accelerate an employee’s return to work, lessen the likelihood of litigation and more
rapidly close claims, all of which ultimately lead to lower overall costs.

Strategy
We intend to pursue profitable growth and favorable returns on equity using the following strategies:

Expand in our Existing Markets. Our current market share in each of the six states where we derived 5.0% or
more of our gross premiums written in 2006 did not exceed 5.0% of the workers’ compensation market in that state,
based on data received from the National Association of Insurance Commissioners, or the NAIC. Competition in
our target markets is fragmented by state and employer industry focus. We believe that our specialized underwriting
expertise and safety, claims and audit services position us to profitably increase our market share in our existing
principal markets, with minimal increase in field service employees.

Prudent and Opportunistic Geographic Expansion. While we actively market our insurance in 3]states and
the District of Columbia, 44.2% of our voluntary in-force premiums were generated in the six states where we
derived 5% or more of our gross premiums written in 2006. We are licensed in an additional 14 states and the U.S.
Virgin Islands. Qur existing licenses and rate filings will expedite our ability to write policies in these markets when
we decide it is prudent to do so. In late 2006, we expanded our operations into selected areas of Nevada and
Colorado.




Focus on Underwriting Profitability. We intend to maintain our underwriting discipline and profitability
throughout market cycles, Our strategy is to focus on underwriting workers’ compensation insurance in hazardous
industries and to maintain adequate rate levels commensurate with the risks we underwrite. We will also continue to
strive for improved risk selection and pricing, as well as reduced frequency and severity of claims through
comprehensive workplace safety reviews, effective medical cost containment measures and rapid closing of claims
through personal, direct contact with our policyholders and their employees.

Leverage Existing Information Technology. We believe our customized information system, ICAMS,
significantly enhances our ability to select risk, write profitable business and cost-effectively administer our billing,
claims and audit functions. We also believe our infrastructure is scalable and will enable us to accommodate our
anticipated premium growth at current staffing levels and at minimal cost, which should have a positive effect on
our expense ratio over time as we grow our premium base.

Maintain Capital Strength. We plan to manage our capital to achieve our growth and profitability goals while
maintaining a prudent operating leverage for our insurance company subsidiaries. To accomplish this objective, we
intend to maintain underwriting profitability throughout market cycles, use a substantial portion of the proceeds of
our initial public offering toward the judicious growth of our business, optimize our use of reinsurance and
maximize an appropriate risk adjusted return on our growing investment portfolio.

Industry

Overview. Workers’ compensation is a statutory system under which an employer is required to pay for its
employees’ medical, disability, vocational rehabilitation and death benefit costs for work-related injuries or
illnesses. Most employers satisfy this requirement by purchasing workers’ compensation insurance. The principal
concept underlying workers’ compensation laws is that employees injured in the course and scope of their
employment have only the legal remedies available under workers’ compensation laws and do not have any other
recourse against their employer. An employer’s obligation to pay workers’ compensation does not depend on any
negligence or wrongdaoing on the part of the employer and exists even for injuries that result from the negligence or
fault of another person, a co-employee or, in most instances, the injured employee.

Workers’ compensation insurance policies generally provide that the insurance carnier will pay all benefits that
the insured employer may become obligated to pay under applicable workers’ compensation laws. Each state has a
regulatory and adjudicatory system that quantifies the level of wage replacement to be paid, determines the level of
medical care required to be provided and the cost of permanent impairment and specifies the options in selecting
medical providers available to the injured employee or the employer. These state laws generally require two types
of benefits for injured employees: (1) medical benefits, which include expenses related to diagnosis and treatment of
the injury, as well as any required rehabilitation, and (2) indemnity payments, which consist of temporary wage
replacement, permanent disability payments and death benefits to surviving family members. To fulfill these
mandated financial obligations, virtually all employers are required to purchase workers’ compensation insurance or,
if permitted by state law or approved by the U.S. Department of Labor, to self-insure. The employers may purchase
workers’ compensation insurance from a private insurance carrier, a state-sanctioned assigned risk pool or a self-
insurance fund, which is an entity that allows employers to obtain workers® compensation coverage on a pooled
basis, typically subjecting each employer to joint and several liability for the entire fund.

Workers’ compensation was the fourth-largest property and casualty insurance line in the United States in
2005, according to A M. Best. Direct premiums written in 2005 for the workers’ compensation insurance industry
were $56 billion, and direct premiums written for the property and casualty industry as a whole were $489 billion,
according to A.M. Best. According to the most recent market data reported by the National Councit on
Compensation Insurance, Inc., or the NCCI, which is the official ratings bureau in the majority of states in which we
are licensed, total premiums reported for the specific occupational class codes for which we underwrite business was
$16 billion, Total premiums reported for all occupational class codes reported by the NCCI for these same
jurisdictions was $39 billion.




Outlook. We believe the challenges faced by the workers’ compensation insurance industry over the past
decade have created significant opportunity for workers’ compensation insurers to increase the amount of business
that they write. The year 2002 marked the first year in five years that private carriers in the property and casualty
insurance industry experienced an increase in annual after-tax returns on surplus, including capital gains, according
to NCCI. Workers’ compensation insurance industry calendar year combined ratios declined for the first time in
seven years, falling from 122% (with 1.9% attributable to the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks) to 105% in 2004
as premium rates have increased and claims frequency has declined. In addition, claims frequency has declined.
From 1991 through 2004, the curnulative decline in lost-time claims frequency was 45.8%. The NCCI estimates
that lost-time claims frequency declined an additional 4.5% in 2005. We believe that opportunities remain for us to
provide needed underwriting capacity at attractive rates and upon terms and conditions more favorable to insurers
than in the past.

Policyholders

As of December 31, 2006, we had more than 6,800 voluntary business policyholders with an average annual
workers’ compensation policy premium of $40,673. As of December 31, 2006, our ten largest voluntary business
policyholders accounted for 2.6% of our in-force premiums. Our policy renewal rate on voluntary business that we
elected to quote for renewal was 91.1% in 2006, 90.6% in 2005 and 93.0% in 2004,

In addition to our voluntary workers’ compensation business, we underwrite workers’ compensation policies
for employers assigned to us and assume reinsurance premiums from mandatory pooling arrangements, in each case
to fulfill our obligations under residual market programs implemented by the states in which we operate. In
addition, we separately underwrite general liability insurance policies for our workers’ compensation policyholders
in the logging industry on a select basis. Our assigned risk business fulfills our statutory obligation to participate in
residual market plans in six states. See “—Regulation—Residual Market Programs” below. For the year ended
December 31, 2006, our assigned risk business accounted for 3.6% of our gross premiums written, and our assumed
premiums from mandatory pooling arrangements accounted for 1.3% of our gross premiums written. In addition,
our general liability insurance business accounted for 0.7% of our gross premiums written for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

Targeted Industries

We provide workers’ compensation insurance primarily to employers in the following targeted hazardous
industries:

Construction. Includes a broad range of operations such as highway and bridge construction, building and
maintenance of pipeline and powerline networks, excavation, commercial construction, roofing, iron and steel
erection, tower erection and numerous other specialized construction operations. In 2006, our average policy
premium for voluntary workers’ compensation within the construction industry was $42,338, or $7.78 per $100 of
payroll.

Trucking. Includes a large spectrum of diverse operations including contract haulers, regional and local freight
carriers, special equipment transporters and other trucking companies that conduct a variety of short- and long-haul
operations. In 2006, our average policy premium for voluntary workers’ compensation within the trucking industry
was $47,097, or $7.61per $100 of payroll.

Logging. Includes tree harvesting operations ranging from labor intensive chainsaw felling and trimming to
sophisticated mechanized operations using heavy equipment. In 2006, our average policy premium for voluntary
workers” compensation within the logging industry was $21,182, or $17.02 per $100 of payroll.

Agriculture. Including crop maintenance and harvesting, grain and produce operations, nursery operations,
meat processing and livestock feed and transportation. In 2006, our average policy premium for voluntary workers’
compensation within the agricultural industry was $28,651, or $9.35 per $100 of payroll.




Oil and Gas. Including various oil and gas activities including gathering, transportation, processing,
production and field service operations. In 2006, our average policy premium for voluntary workers’ compensation
within the oil and gas industry was $58,860, or $5.77 per $100 of payroll.

Maritime. Including ship building and repair, pier and marine construction, inter-coastal construction and
stevedoring. In 2006, our average policy premium for voluntary workers’ compensation within the maritime
industry was $55,787, or $9.24 per $100 of payroll.

Sawmills. Including sawmills and various other lumber-related operations. In 2006, our average policy
premium for the sawmill industry was $30,654, or $7.27 per $100 of payroll.

Qur gross premiums are derived from:

o Direct Premiums. Includes premiums from workers’ compensation and general liability insurance policies
that we issue to:

) employers who seek to purchase insurance directly from us and who we voluntarily agree to
insure, which we refer to as our voluntary business; and

U employers assigned to us under residual market programs implemented by some of the states in
which we operate, which we refer to as our assigned risk business.

e Assumed Premiums. Includes premiums from our participation in mandatory pooling arrangements under
residual market programs implemented by some of the states in which we operate,

In addition to workers’ compensation insurance, we also offer general liability insurance coverage only to our
workers’ compensation policyholders in the logging industry on a select basis. As of December 31, 2006, less than
1.0% of our voluntary in-force premiums were derived from general liability policies.

Gross premiums written during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 and the allocation of those
premiums among the hazardous industries we target are presented in the table below.

Percentage of
Graoss Premiums Written Gross Premiums Written

2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Voluntary business:

Construction ......ocoevveveveneeee. 5 132,083 $ 117,134 $101,298 39.7% 40.3% 38.3%
Trocking .......ccooveeveniririrsccrens 70,221 59,348 57,822 21.1% 204% 21.8%
LOgEINg ..covvvvreriiecenenrireene 24,553 26,324 30,340 7.4% 9.0% 11.5%
Agriculture......oooeieeeeiens 13,681 13,119 11,203 4.1% 4.5% 4.2%
Oil and Gas.......oooveeveveervnrenens 10,578 8,035 7,226 3.2% 2.8% 27%
Maritime ........coeevneireeecnnns 9,180 7,262 5,909 2.8% 2.5% 2.2%
Sawmills ..o 4,260 4,441 5,566 1.3% 1.5% 2.1%
Other ... 51,547 34,382 28,117 15.5% 11.8% 10.6%
Total voluntary business...... 316.103 270,045 _ 247481 95.1% 92.8% 93.4%
Assigned risk business.............. 11,936 13,924 9,431 3.6% 4.8% 3.6%
Assumed premiums .................. 4,452 6,922 8,050 1.3% 2.4% 3.0%
TOtal oo $332491 $290,891 $264,962 1000%  100.0% 100.0%




Geographic Distribution

We are licensed to provide workers’ compensation insurance in 45 states, the District of Columbia and the U.S.
Virgin Islands. We operate on a geographically diverse basis with no more than 9.1% of our gross premiums written
in 2006 derived from any one state. The table below identifies, for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, the states in which the percentage of our gross premiums written exceeded 3.0% for any of the years
presented.

Percentage of Gross Preminms Written
Year Ended December 31,

State 2006 2005 2004 R
GEOTEZIR vt oo bbb s 9.1% 10.5% 9.5%
LOUISIATIA . ...c.eevevecvtivisteveers e e e v esseatnse e sesnernrenesbesaeesenasnrnennens 8.9% 8.3% 10.6%
NOTTh Carolina.. . .eee e et en e 7.5% 6.7% 6.3%
FIOEIAA c.ve et e s e ce e et e e aasi st sia s 6.5% 5.9% 4.9%
WVAREIMA ©eceeice bbb sesmns s e s s 6.1% 5.3% 5.2%
TEKAS ettt ee b s e bbb 5.8% 5.0% 6.5%
PennSYIVAIIA ....ocoverermrereeiecicec i 4.8% 3.3% 4.5%
TUHIIOUS ©oviieviiri vt caecre s s vs s tessessseasnsen s enssenseemseeseseeamenaneenns 4.6% 5.4% 6.4%
South Carolina........ccocciieieeiece et ernens 4.5% 4.9% 4.6%
ALBSKA. cvecveietieeeeeieriersiresresee e eeee e ee et es e eeeaeeer et et seabe s s ers s s s s entan 4.4% 5.3% 4.4%
IMIHNESOIA . ..veeve e icierereeeecreebesrassrassressresseeeresarasarrennscnserasoncenee 4.4% 4.2% 3.6%
OKIBNOMA ..ot a e e ra s 4.4% 4.1% 3.3%
TEIMESSEE 1..vvvvverererreesseeeeseaeteeeteeseessessessstesstesssessensnenseensensess 4.2% 4.2% 19%
IMSSISSIPPL. v vvvvsiissesesare e et r b ss s nenesbans 4.2% 35% 3.9%
ATKANSAS v 3.8% 3.9% 4.7%
WASCOMNSIN ....ovecveiesueescce e et reererbasseeeesseeeceseencaseensesemimabbensareeasans 2.9% 3.5% 3.3%

Sales and Marketing

We sell our workers’ compensation insurance through agencies. As of December 31, 2006, our insurance was
sold through more than 2,400 independent agencies and our wholly owned insurance agency subsidiary, Amerisafe
General Agency, which is licensed in 24 states. We are selective in establishing and maintaining relationships with
independent agencics. We establish and maintain relationships only with those agencies that provide quality
application flow from prospective policyholders that are reasonably likely to accept our quotes. We compensate
these agencies by paying a commission based on the premium collected from the policyholder. Our average
commission rate for our independent agencies was 6.9% for the year ended December 31, 2006. We pay our
insurance agency subsidiary a commission rate of 8.0% . Neither our independent agencies nor our insurance
agency subsidiary has authority to underwrite or bind coverage. We do not pay contingent commissions.

As of December 31, 2006, independent agencies accounted for 84.7% of our voluntary in-force premiums, and
no independent agency accounted for more than 1.1% of our voluntary in-force premiums at that date.



Underwriting

Our underwriting strategy is to focus on employers in certain hazardous industries that operate in those states
where our underwriting efforts are the most profitable and efficient. We analyze each prospective policyholder on
its own merits relative to known industry trends and statistical data. Our underwriting guidelines specify that we do
not write workers’ compensation insurance for certain hazardous activities, including sub-surface mining and the use
of explosives.

Underwriting is a multi-step process that begins with the receipt of an application from one of our agencies.
We initially review the application to confirm that the prospective policyholder meets certain established criteria,
including that it is engaged in one of our targeted hazardous industries and industry classes and operates in the states
we target. If the application satisfies these criteria, the application is forwarded to our underwriting department for
further review.

Our underwriting department reviews the application to determine if the application meets our underwriting
criteria and whether all required information has been provided. If additional information is required, the
underwriting department requests additionat information from the agency. This initial review process is generally
completed within three days after the application is received by us. Once this initial review process is complete, our
underwriting department requests that a pre-quotation safety inspection be performed.

After the pre-quotation safety inspection has been completed, our underwriting professionals review the results
of the inspection to determine if a ratc quote should be made and, if so, prepare the quote. The rate quote must be
reviewed and approved by our underwriting department before it is delivered to the agency. All decisions by our
underwriting department, including decisions to decline applications, are subject to review and approval by our
management-level underwriters.

Our underwriting professionals participate in an incentive compensation program under which bonuses are
paid quarterly based upon achieving premivm underwriting volume and loss ratio targets. The determination of
whether targets have been satisfied is made 30 months after the relevant incentive compensation period.

Pricing

In the majority of states, workers’ compensation insurance rates are based upon the published “loss costs.”
Loss costs are derived from wage and loss data reported by insurers to the state’s statistical agent, in most states the
NCCI. The state agent then promulgates loss costs for specific job descriptions or class codes. Insurers file requests
for adoption of a loss cost multiplier, or LCM, to be applied to the loss costs to support operating costs and profit
margins. In addition, most states alow pricing flexibility above and below the filed LCM, within certain limits,

We obtain approval of our rates, including our LCMs, from state regulatory authorities. To maintain rates at
profitable levels, we regularly monitor and adjust our LCMs. The effective LCM for our voluntary business was
1.54 for 2006, 1.56 for policy year 2005, 1.53 for policy year 2004, 1.43 for policy year 2003, and 1,37 for policy
year 2002, If we are unable to charge rates in a particular state or industry to produce satisfactory results, we seek to
control and reduce our premium volume in that state or industry and redeploy our capital in other states or industries
that offer greater opportunity to earn an underwriting profit. :
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Safety

Qur safety inspection process begins with a request from our underwriting department to perform a pre-
quotation safety inspection. Qur safety inspections focus on a prospective policyholder’s operations, loss exposures
and existing safety controls to prevent potential losses. The factors considered in our inspection include employee
experience, urn-over, training, previous loss history and corrective actions, and workplace conditions, including
equipment condition and, where appropriate, use of fall protection, respiratory protection or other safety devices.
Our ficld safety professionals, or FSPs, travel to employers’ worksiics to perform these safety inspections. This
initial in-depth analysis allows our underwriting professionals to make decisions on both insurability and pricing. In
certain circumstances, we will agree to provide workers’ compensation insurance only if the employer agrees to
implement and maintain the safety management practices that we recommend. [n 2006, more than 94% of our new
voluntary business policyholders were inspected prior to our offering a premium quote. The remaining voluntary
business policyholders were not inspected prior to a premium quote for a varicty of reasons, including small
premium size or the policyholder was previously a policyholder subject to our safcty inspections.

\

After an ecmployer becomes a policyholder, we continue to emphasize workplace safety through periodic
workplace visits, assisting the policyholder in designing and implementing enhanced safety management programs,
providing current industry-specific safety-related information and conducting rigorous post-accident management.
Generally, we may cancel or decline to renew an insurance policy if the policyholder does not implement or
maintain reasonable safety management practices that we recommend.

Our FSPs participate in an incentive compensation program under which bonuses are paid quarterly based
upon an FSP’s production and their policyholders’ aggregate loss ratios. The rcsults are measured 30 months after
the inception of the subject policy period.

Claims

We have structured our claims operation to provide immediate, intensive and personal management of all
claims to guide injured employees through medical treatment, rehabilitation and recovery with the primary goal of
returning the injured employee to work as promptly as practicable. We seek to limit the number of claim disputes
with injured employces through early intervention in the claims process.

We have claims offices located throughout the markets we serve. Qur field case managers, or FCMs, are
located in the geographic arcas where our policyholders are based. We believe the presence of our FCMs in the
field enhances our ability to guide an injured employee to the appropriate conclusion in a friendly, dignified and
supportive manner. Our FCMs have broad authority to manage claims from occurrence of a workplace injury
through resoltution, including authority to retain many different medical providers at our expense, including not only
our recommended medical providers but also nurse case managers, independent medical examiners, vocational
specialists, rehabilitation specialists and other specialty providers of medical services necessary to achieve a quality
outcome.

Following notification of a workplace injury, an FCM will contact the policyholder, the injured employee
and/or the treating physician to determine the nature and severity of the injury. If a serious injury occurs, the FCM
will promptly visit the injured employee or the employee’s family members to discuss the benefits provided and will
also visit the treating physician to discuss the proposed treatment plan. Our FCM assists the injured employee in
receiving appropriate medical treatment and encourages the use of our recommended medical providers and
facilities. For example, our FCM may suggest that a treating physician refer an injured worker to another physician
or treatment facility that we believe has had positive outcomes for other workers with similar injuries. We actively
monitor the number of open cases handled by a single FCM in order to maintain focus on each specific injured
employee. As of December 31, 2006, we averaged 56 open indemnity claims per FCM, which we believe is
significantly less than the industry average.

11




Locating our FCMs in the field also allows us to build professional relationships with local medical providers.
In selecting medical providers, we rely, in part, on the recommendations of our FCMs who have developed
professional relationships within their geographic areas. We also seek input from our policyholders and other
contacts in the markets that we serve. While cost factors are considered in selecting medical providers, we consider
the most impoertant factor in the selection process to be the medical provider’s ability to achieve a quality ouicome.
We define quality outcome as the injured worker’s rapid, conclusive recovery and return to sustained, full capacity
employment.

While we seek to promptly settle valid claims, we also aggressively defend against claims we consider to be
non-meritorious. Where possible, we purchase annuities on longer life claims to close the claim while still
providing an appropriate level of benefits to an injured employee.

Premium Audits

We conduct premium audits on all of our voluntary business policyholders annually, upon the expiration of
each policy, including when the policy is renewed. The purpose of these audits is to verify that policyholders have
accurately reported their payroll expenses and employee job classifications, and therefore have paid us the premium
required under the terms of their policies. In addition to annual audits, we selectively perform interim audits on
certain classes of business if significant or unusual claims are filed or if the monthiy reports submitted by a
poticyholder reflect a payroll pattern or other aberrations that cause underwriting, safety or fraud concerns. We also
mitigate against potential losses from underreporting of premium or delinquent premium payment by collecting a
deposit from the policyholder at the inception of the policy, typically representing 15% of the total estimated annual
premium, which deposit can be utilized to offset losses from non-payment of premium.

Loss Reserves

We record reserves for estimated losses under insurance policies that we write and for toss adjustment
expenses related to the investigation and settlement of policy claims. Our reserves for loss and loss adjustment
expenses represent the estimated cost of all reported and unreported loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred and
unpaid at a given point in time. In establishing our reserves, we do not use loss discounting, which involves
recognizing the time value of money and offsetting estimates of future payments by future expected investment
income. Qur process and methodology for estimating rescrves applies to both our voluntary and assigned risk
business and does not include our reserves for mandatory pooling arrangements. We record reserves for mandatory
pooling arrangements as those reserves are reported to us by the pool administrators. We use a consulting actuary to
assist in the evaluation of the adequacy of our reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses.

When a claim is reported, we establish an initial case reserve for the estimated amount of our loss based on our
estimate of the most likely outcome of the claim at that time. Generaily, a case reserve is established within 14 days
after the claim is reported and consists of anticipated medical costs, indemnity costs and specific adjustment
expenses, which we refer to as defensc and cost containment expenses, or DCC expenses. At any point in time, the
amount paid on a claim, plus the reserve for future amounts to be paid, represents the estimated total cost of the
claim, or the case incurred amount. The estimated amount of loss for a reported ¢laim is based upon various factors,
including: :

s type of loss;

»  severity of the injury or damage;

* age and occupation of the injured employee;

* estimated length of temporary disability;

s anticipated permanent disability;

» expected medical procedures, costs and duration;




our knowledge of the circumstances surrounding the claim;

* insurance policy provisions related to the claim, including coverage;

jurisdiction of the occurrence; and

other benefits defined by applicable statute.

The case incurred amount can vary due to uncertainties with respect to medical treatment and outcome, length
and degree of disability, employment availability and wage levels and judicial determinations. As changes occur,
the case incurred amount is adjusted. The initial estimate of the case incurred amount can vary significantly from
the amount ultimately paid, especially in circumstances involving severe injuries with comprehensive medical
treatment. Changes in case incurred amounts, or case development, is an important component of our historical
claim data.

In addition to case reserves, we establish reserves on an aggregate basis for loss and DCC expenses that have
been incurred but not reported, or IBNR. Our IBNR reserves are also intended to provide for aggregate changes in
case incurred amounts as well as the unpaid cost of recently reported claims for which an initial case reserve has not
been established.

The third component of our reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses is our adjusting and other reserve,
or AQ reserve. Our AO reserve is established for the costs of future unallocated loss adjustment expenses for all
known and unknown claims. Our AO reserve covers primarily the estimated cost of administering claims. The final
component of our reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses is the reserve for mandatory pooling arrangements.

In establishing reserves, we rely on the analysis of our more than 148,000 claims in our 21-year history. Using
statistical analyses and actuarial methods, we estimate reserves based on historical patterns of case development,
payment patterns, mix of business, premium rates charged, case reserving adequacy, operational changes,
adjustment philosophy and severity and duration trends.

We review our reserves by industry and state on a quarterly basis. Individual open claims are reviewed more
frequently by our field case managers and adjustments to case incurred amounts are made based on expected
outcomes. The number of claims reported or occurring during a period, combined with a calculation of average case
incurred amounts, and measured over time, provide the foundation for our reserve estimates. In establishing our
reserve estimates, we use historical trends in claim reporting timeliness, frequency of claims in relation to earned
premium or covered payroll, premium rate levels charged and case development patterns. However, the number of
variables and judgments involved in establishing reserve estimates, combined with some random variation in loss
development patterns, results in uncertainty regarding projected ultimate losses. As a result, our ultimate liability
for loss and loss adjustment expenses may be more or less than our reserve estimate,

Our analysis of our historical data provides the factors we use in our statistical and actuarial analysis in
estimating our loss and DCC expense reserve. These factors are primarily measures over time of claims reported,
average case incurred amounts, case development, duration, severity and payment patterns. However, these factors
cannot be directly used as these factors do not take into consideration changes in business mix, claims management,
regulatory issues, medical trends, employment and wage patterns and other subjective factors. We use this
combination of factors and subjective assumptions in the use of the following six actuarial methodologies:

»  Paid Development Method — uses historical, cumulative paid losses by accident year and develops those
actual losses to estimated ultimate losses based upon the assumption that each accident year will develop
to estimated ultimate cost in & manner that is analogous to prior years.

s  Paid Cape Cod Method — multiplies estimated ultimate claims for each accident year by a weighted
average, trended severity. The estimated ultimate claims used in this method are based on paid claim
count development. The selected severity for a given accident year is then derived by giving some weight
to all of the accident years in the experience history rather than treating each accident year independently.
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+  Paid Bornhuetter-Ferguson (“BF”) Method — a combination of the Paid Development Method and the
Paid Cape Cod Method, the Paid BF Method estimates ultimate losses by adding actual paid losses and
projected, future unpaid losses. The amounts produced are then added to cumulative paid losses to
praoduce the final estimates of ultimate incurred losses.

* Incurred Development Method — uses historical, cumulative incurred losses by accident year and
develops those actual losses to estimated ultimate losses based upon the assumption that each accident
year will develop to estimated ultimate cost in a manner that is analogous to prior years.

¢ Incurred Cape Cod Method — multiplies estimated ultimate claims for each accident year by a weighted
average, trended severity. The estimated ultimate claims used in this method are based on incurred claim
count development. The selected severity for a given accident year is then derived by giving some weight
to all of the accident years in the experience history rather than treatihg each accident year independently.

e Incurred Bornhuetter-Ferguson Method — a combination of the Incurred Development Method and the
Incurred Cape Cod Method, the Incurred BF Method estimates ultimate losses by adding actual incurred
losses and projected, future unreported losses. The amounts produced are then added to cumulative
incurred losses to produce an estimate of ultimate incurred losses.

For each method, we calculate the amount of our total loss and DCC expenses that we estimate will ultimately
be paid by our reinsurers, which is subtracted from our total gross reserve to produce our total net reserve. We then
analyze the results and may emphasize or deemphasize some or all of the outcomes to reflect our judgment of their
reasonableness in relation to supplementary information and operational and industry changes. These outcomes are
then aggregated to produce a single weighted average point estimate that is the base estimate for net loss and DCC
eXpense reserves.

In determining the level of emphasis that may be placed on some or all of the methods, we review statistical
information as to which methods are most appropriate, whether adjustments are appropriate within the particular
methods, and if results produced by each method include inherent bias reflecting operational and industry changes.
This supplementary information may include:

¢ open and closed claim counts;

¢  statistics related to open and closed claim count percentages;

e claim closure rates;

e changes in average case reserves and average loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred on open claims;,
¢ reported and ultimate average case incurred changes;

e reported and projected ultimate loss ratios; and

e loss payment patterns.

In establishing our AO reserves, we review our past adjustment expenses in relation to paid claims and
estimated future costs based on expected claims activity and duration.

The sum of our net loss and DCC expense reserve, our AO reserve and our reserve for mandatory pooling
arrangements is our total net reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses.
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As of December 31, 2006, our best estimate of our ultimate liability for loss and loss adjustment expenses, net
of amounts recoverable from reinsurers, was $412.4 miilion, which includes $9.5 million in reserves for mandatory
pooling arrangements as reported by the pool administrators. This estimate was derived from the process and
methodology described above which relies on substantial judgment. There is inherent uncertainty in estimating our
reserves for loss and loss adjusiment expenses. It is possible that our actual loss and loss adjustment expenses
incurred may vary significantly from our estimates.

As noted above, our reserve estimate is developed based upon our analysis of our historical data, and factors
derived from that data, including claims reported, average claim amount incurred, case development, duration,
severity and payment patterns, as well as subjective assumptions. We view our estimate of loss and DCC expenses
as the most significant component of our reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses.

We prepared a sensitivity analysis of our net loss and DCC expense reserve as of December 31, 2006 by
analyzing the effect of reasonably likely changes to the assumptions used in deriving our estimates. Since the base
estimate for our net loss and DCC expense reserve is derived from the outcomes of the six actuarial methodologies
discussed above, the most significant assumption in establishing our reserve is the adjustment of and emphasis on
those methods that we believe are most appropriate.

Of the six actuarial methods we use, three are “incurred” methods and three are “paid” methods. The selected
development factors within each method are derived from our data and the design characteristics of the particular
method. The six different methods each have inherent biases in their respective designs that are more or less
predictive in their use. “Incurred” methods rely on historical development factors derived from changes in our
incurred estimates of claims paid and resetve amounts over time, while “paid” methods focus on our claim payment
patterns and ultimate paid costs. “Incurred” methods focus on the measurement of the adequacy of case reserves at
points in time. As a result, if reserving practices change over time, the “incurred” methods may produce significant
variation in the estimates of ultimate losses. “Paid” methods rely on actual claims payment patterns and therefore
are not sensitive to changes in reserving practices.

The low end of the range of our sensitivity analysis was derived by placing more emphasis (63%) on the
outcomes generated by the three “paid” methods and less emphasis (37%) on the outcomes generated by the three
“incurred” methods. The high end of the range was derived by placing more emphasis (63%) on thé outcomes
generated by the three “incurred” methods and less emphasis (37%) on the outcomes generated by the three “paid”
methods. We believe that changing the emphasis on the “incurred” and “paid” methods better reflects reasonably
likely outcomes than adjusting selected development factors or other variables used within each method. We
believe the results of this sensitivity analysis, which are summarized in the table below, constitute a reasonable
range of the expected outcomes of our reserve for net loss and DCC expenses.

As of December 31, 2006

Mandatory
Loss and Pooling
DCC Expenses AO Arrangements Total
(1n thousands)
Low end of tange.........cooovvveveerninirienerininnens $ 351,250 $ 18,903 $ 9478 $ 379,631
NELTESEIVE wvvverere e eeeeeeeeeeeemeeeeeass 383,987 18,903 9,478 412,368
High end of range........ccoovvveccrivvecrnvanans 384,580 18,903 9,478 412,961

The resulting range derived from this sensitivity analysis would have increased net reserves by $593,000 or
decreased net reserves by $32.7 million, at December 31, 2006. The increase would have reduced net income and
stockholders® equity by $385,000. The decrease would have increased net income and stockholders” equity by $21.3
million. A change in our net loss and DCC expense reserve would not have an immediate impact on our liquidity,
but would affect cash flow in future periods as the losses are paid.
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Given the numerous factors and assumptions used in our estimate of reserves, and consequently this sensitivity
analysis, we do not believe that it would be meaningful to provide more detailed disclosure regarding specific
factors and assumptions and the individual effects of these factors and assumptions on our net reserves.
Furthermore, there is no precise method for subsequently evaluating the impact of any specific factor or assumption
on the adequacy of reserves, because the eventual deficiency or redundancy is affected by multiple interdependent
factors.

Reconciliation of Loss Reserves

The table below shows the reconciliation of loss reserves on a gross and net basis for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, reflecting changes in losses incurred and paid losses.

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
{In thousands)

Balance, beginning of period..........cccivninvninnnrennn $ 484,485 § 432,880 § 377,559
Less amounts recoverable from reinsurers on

unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses...........co.coceene. 120,232 189.624 194,558
Net balance, beginning of period ..........ccocvvvreerviceccnens 364,253 243.256 183.001
Add incurred related to:

CUITEIE YEAT.....oiveiiicieerecteereissieeretssiesest e e ss et niesesse e 201,711 182,174 160,773

PLIOT YEATS 1veereeraerirareiieriioriieei s ceieseiesiessessbssnbsabansnssnns (2,227) 8,673 13,413

Loss on Converium commutation ..........cooeeeevnnererereeces — 13.209 —

Total INCUITED ...eevceceee s 199.484 204,056 174,186

Less paid related to:

LT e 17 1A= | O S T UR 41,002 42,545 40,312

PrIOT YEATS «..oiieiieieee ettt 110,367 96,620 73,619

Total paid ... 151,369 139,165 113931

Add effect of Converium commutation (1) .........c.c.cceoeee... — 56,106 —
Net balance, end of period........ccovvvrinevninncniiesnenen 412,368 364.253 243,256
Add amounts recoverable from reinsurers on

unpaid loss and ioss adjustment eXpenses ..............c.coceeeeee. 106.810 120,232 189.624
Balance, end of period.........cooiiiiiiiieecineee e §519,178 b 484,485 3 432,880

(1) The total payment from Converium was $61.3 million, of which $56.1 million was for ceded reserves and $5.2
million was for paid recoverables as of June 30, 2005.

Our gross reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses of $519.2 million as of December 31, 2006 are
expected to cover all unpaid loss and toss adjustment expenses as of that date. As of December 31, 2006, we had
5,694 open claims, with an average of $91,180 in unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses per open claim. During
the year ended December 31, 2006, 6,581 new claims were reported, and 6,942 claims were closed.

As of December 31, 2005, our gross reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses were $484.5 million. The
increase in our reserves from December 31, 2005 to December 31, 2006 was due to our premiurmn growth during this
time petiod, partially offset by favorable development in prior accident years. As of December 31, 2005, we had
6,055 open claims, with an average of $80,014 in unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses per open claim. During
the year ended December 31, 2005, 7,073 new claims were reported, and 6,702 claims were closed.




As of December 31, 2004, our gross reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses were $432.9 million. The
increase in our reserves from December 31, 2004 1o December 31, 2005 was due to our premium growth during this
time period, offset by an increase in paid loss and loss adjustment expenses related to prior years. As of December
31, 2004, we had 5,684 open claims, with an average of $76,158 in unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses per
open claim. During the year ended December 31, 2004, 7,015 new claims were reported, and 7,086 claims were
closed.

Laoss Development

The table below shows the net loss development for business written each year from 1996 through 2006. The
table reflects the changes in our loss and loss adjustment expense reserves in subsequent years from the prior loss
estimates based on experience as of the end of each succeeding year on a GAAP basis.

The first line of the table shows, for the years indicated, our liability including the incurred but not reported
loss and loss adjustment expenses as originally estimated, net of amounts recoverable from reinsurers. For cxample,
as of December 31, 1996, it was estimated that $44.0 million would be sufficient to settle all claims not already
settled that had occurred on or prior to December 31, 1996, whether reported or unreported. The next section of the
table sets forth the re-estimates in later years of incurred losses, including payments, for the years indicated. The
next section of the table shows, by year, the cumulative amounts of loss and loss adjustment expense payments, net
of amounts recoverable from reinsurers, as of the end of each succeeding year. For example, with respect to the net
loss reserves of $44.0 million as of December 31, 1996 , by December 31, 2006 (ten years later} $39.7 million had
actually been paid in settlement of the claims that relate to liabilities as of December 31, 1996.

The “cumnulative redundancy/(deficiency)” represents, as of December 31, 2006, the difference between the
latest re-estimated liability and the amounts as originally estimated. A redundancy means that the original estimate
was higher than the current estimate. A deficiency means that the current estimate is higher than the original
estimate.

Analysis of Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserve Development

Year Ended December 31,

1996 1997 1993 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

(In thousands)

Reserve for loss and loss
adjustment expenses, net of
reinsurance recoverables ....... $ 43952 $ 55096 $ 43625 § 72,599 5 86192 § 119,020 § 152,908 S 183,001 § 243256 § 364253 $§ 412,368

Net reserve estimated as of:

One year Jater,....connnicinunns 35,447 54,036 49,098 75,588 96,801 123,413 155,683 196,955 265,138 362,026
Two years later. ... 34,082 60,800 50,764 82,633 98,871 116,291 168,410 217836 262,601
Three years later... . 34,252 63,583 57,750 86,336 92,740 119,814 187,225 218,217
Four years Jater ... 35,193 68,754 59,800 86,829 93,328 132,332 189,098
Five years Jater .o 38,318 69,610 60,074 87,088 101,417 134,836
Six years el .....ccooooceerericemmaen 38,319 70,865 61,297 90,156 104,716
Seven years laler....ovuimenirres 39,459 70,684 61,578 91,170
Eight years 1ater .....c.ovcevecniceas 38,388 70,577 62,484
Nine years later ... 39,249 71,023
Ten years later 39,654
Net cumutative redundancy
(deficiency). e § 4,298 § (15930) 5 (18,859) § (18,571) § (18,524) § (15816) § (36,190) § (35.216) § (19345) § 2227
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Year Ended December 31,

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 1001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
(In thousands)

Cumulative amount of reserve

paid, net of reserve

recoveries, through:
One year later 19,143 35,005 25,140 45,095 51,470 51,114 66,545 73,783 5 40,514 $110,369
Two years later. 27,843 46,735 37,835 62,141 62,969 71,582 101,907 65,752 97,091
Three years later.. 30,765 54,969 45404 67,267 70,036 34,341 73,391 99,829
Four years 1ater ......ooocecveecnrceens 32,576 60,249 48,184 70,854 73,680 42919 96,884
Five years later.... 34,765 62,361 50,045 72,744 38,939 59,194
Six years later.. 35313 64,296 50,831 58,809 49,141
Seven years later. 36,367 64,659 51,863 62,550
Eight years later ........coovuecvvennee 356379 64,289 52,796
Nine years later ... 35870 65,002
Ten years later. 36,364
Net reserve — December 31...... $ 43952 $ 55006 $ 43625 $ 72599 § 86,192 5 119020 § 152908 % 183001 S 243256 § 364253 5 412,368
Reinsurance recoverables .......... 9,525 12,463 37,086 183,818 293,632 264,013 193,634 194,558 189,624 120,232 106,810
Gross reserve — December31.. 3 53477 % 67559 % 80711 § 236417 8§ 37982 % 383033 % 346,542 % 371559 5 432880 5 484485 § 519,178
Net re-estimated reserve ... $ 39654 $ 71,023 § 62484 5§ 91,170 $ 104716 § 134836 § 189098 $ 218217 § 262,601 § 362,026
Re-estirnated reinsurance

recoverables » 26733 34,133 123,405 282099 385 387 347,701 274,487 217,689 178,213 115,076

Gross re-gstimated reserve......... $ 66387 §$105156 $ 185889 $ 373,269 $ 490,103 $ 482537 § 463585 § 435606 S 440814 § 477,102

Gross cumulative redundancy
(O T T oy N $ (12,910) $ (37,597) $(105,178) $(116,852) S$(110,279) § (99.504) 3$(117043) $ (58347) S (7934) § 7,383

Qur net cumulative redundancy (deficiency) set forth in the table above is net of amounts recoverable from our
reinsurers, including Reliance Insurance Company, one of our former reinsurers. In 2001, Reliance was placed
under regulatory supervision by the Pennsylvania Insurance Department and was subsequently placed into
liquidation. As a result, we recognized losses related to uncollectible amounts due from Reliance of $770,000 in
2005, $260,000 in 2004, $1.3 million in 2003, $2.0 million in 2002 and $17.0 million in 2001.

Investments

We derive net investment income from our invested assets. As of December 31, 2006, the carrying value of
our investment portfolio, including cash and cash cquivalents, was $665.5 million and the fair value of the portfolio
was $659.7 million.

Our investment strategy is to maximize after tax income and total return on invested assets while maintaining
high quality and low risk investments within the portfolio, We pay investment management fees based on the
market value of assets under management. The investment committee of our board of directors has established
investment guidelines and periodically reviews portfolio performance for compliance with our guidelines.

In 2006 we began a strategic review of our investment management and related policies. As a result of this
review, we retained Prudential Investment Management, Inc., a registered investment advisory firm and a subsidiary
of Prudential Financial, Inc., to manage our portfolio of fixed maturity securities effective as of November 1, 2006.
Prior to November 1, 2006, our investment portfolic was managed by Hibernia Asset Management, LLC.
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Additionally, our strategic investment review resulted in two changes regarding our equity investments. First,
we changed the benchmark for the market value of our holdings of equity securities, from not more than 15% of our
total investment portfolio, to a range from 20% to 30% of sharcholders’ equity, plus redeemable preferred stock, at
the end of the most recently completed fiscal year. Our second change was to restructure our equity portfolio such
that it would be composed of passively managed investments in equity indexes along with a portion of actively
managed equity positions. As a result of this second change, we sold all of the securities in our ¢quity portfolio in
September and October of 2006 and invested $21.1 million, or 11.5% of shareholders’ equity plus redeemable
preferred stock at the end of the most recent fiscal year, into three value-based exchange traded funds. In 2007, we
may purchase more index funds, or we may retain the services of a third-party equity portfolio manager to actively
manage a portion of the equity portfolio,

See Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cendition and Results of Operations—
Investments” for further information on the composition and results of our investment portfolio.

The table below shows the carrying values of various categories of securities held in our investment portfolio,
the percentage of the total carrying value of our investment portfolio represented by each category and the
annualized tax-equivalent yield for the year ended December 31, 2006 based on the carrying value of each category
as of December 31, 2006:

Annualized
Percentage Tax-Equivalent
Carrying Value  of Partfolio Yield
{In thousands)
Fixed maturity securities:

State and political subdivisions...........ccccocvvvirnnenne. § 365,282 54.9% 5.9%
Mortgage-backed securities..........coooeoeevnrieninesrenen. 117,456 17.6% 5.6%
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.

GOVErnment AgENCIES . ...c.cevvreeeeeerevrrisrereesssrvresrerens 78,817 11.8% 5.2%
Corporate BORAS .....c.ccovririreeecer e, 21,123 32% 5.2%
Asset-backed SECUNIES ...o.coeeereecierecr i, 32,436 4.9% 5.4%

Total fixed maturity securities......cc.cocvvecrvncnecrnnian. 615,114 92.4% 5.7%

Equity SECUEs ...coooeei e, 23,666 3.6% 2.0%
Cash and cash equivalents...........cccoorivnirine 26,748 4.0% 4.3%
Total investments, including cash and cash .

equivalents ... 3 665528 . __100%

As of December 31, 2006, our fixed maturity securities had a carrying value of $615.1 million, which
represented 92.4% of the carrying value of our investments, including cash and cash equivalents. For the 12 months
ended December 31, 2006, the pre-tax investment yield of our investment portfolio was 4.1% per annum.
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The gross unrealized gains and losses on, and the cost and fair value of, our investment portfolio as of
December 31, 2006 are summarized as follows:

Cost or Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(In thousands})
Fixed maturity securities, held-to-maturity ................ $615,114 $ 1,294 $ 7,140 £ 609,268
Equity securities, available-for-sale..........coceevvinene 22,157 1,509 — 23,666
TOtAlS it s $637.271 $ 2,803 $.7.140 $632,934

The amortized cost for the fixed maturity securities classified as held-to-maturity includes an unamortized gain
of $4.7 million. This gain resulted in 2004 from the difference between each security’s par value and fair value at
the date of transfer from available-to-sale to held-to-maturity and is being amortized as a yield adjustment over the
respective security’s life.

The table below summarizes the credit quality of our fixed maturity securities as of December 31, 2006, as
rated by Standard and Poor’s.

Perc.entage
Credit Rating Car(r);izzt:'lalue
CAAA e s e e e e e e e e r b e s e na e nnean 88.3%
“AAT e e esarA eSSttt 8.2%
B 2 S O PR OO O OO UUOP PSPPSR 22% .
B 51 = 3 TP UP OO PSPD SRUPRU 1.3%
TOUAL ..ottt et et s e e e s et e e s b et st eararatabene 100.0%

As of December 31, 2006, the average composite rating of our fixed maturity securities was “AAA.” .

The table below shows the composition of our fixed maturity securities by remaining time to maturity as of
December 31, 2006. For sccurities that are redeemable at the option of the issuer and have a carrying value that is
greater than par value, the maturity used for the table below is the earliest redemption date. For securities that are
redeemable at the option of the issuer and have a carrying value that is less than par value, the maturity used for the
table below is the final maturity date.

As of December 31, 2006
Remaining Time to Maturity Carrying Value Percentage
(It thousands)

Les8 than ONE YEAT ...eceiviviierereeceitetene e tevcae e st eseonerensa b ntesb et ne e $ 65427 10.6%
ONE 10 TIVE YEATS ..viiveeeeeieeceeie v terrrs s srastsssnss s sssse s e s e s bssrssbesassaeesensnansesas 225,135 36.6%
FIVE L0 T8I0 FBATS .vvervemerermceeeeemcieirecreererrasasessessasassensasnessnsesnsssnsasesssssesnins 88,160 14.3%
MOTe than teI YEAIS ....c.cerieeeeiicire ettt n s sns s e srerseneae 86,500 14.1%
Mortgage-backed SECUTTIES........cccvviiiiiiieitiin e e rennens 117,456 19.1%
ASSEt-DACKET SECUTTHIRS - oo eeeeeerveee e erresesressressrensnsesneesaseesemeeeeeneens 12.436 5.3%
] 1 OO TS STOUUP OO $ 615114 100.0%
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Reinsurance

We purchase reinsurance to reduce our net liability on individual risks and claims and to protect against
catastrophic losses. Reinsurance involves an insurance company transferring to, or ceding, a portion of the exposure
on a risk to a reinsurer. The reinsurer assumes the exposure in return for a portion of our premium. The cost and
limits of reinsurance we purchase can vary from year to year based upon the availability of quality reinsurance at an
acceptable price and our desired level of retention. Retention refers to the amount of risk that we retain for our own
account. Under excess of loss reinsurance, covered losses in excess of the retention level up to the limit of the
program are paid by the reinsurer. Our excess of loss reinsurance is written in layers, in which our reinsurers accept
a band of coverage up 1o a specified amount. Any liability exceeding the limit of the program reverts to us as the
ceding company. Reinsurance does not legally discharge us from primary liability for the full amount due under our
policies. However, our reinsurers are obligated to indemnify us to the extent of the coverage provided in our
reinsurance agreements.

We believe reinsurance is critical to our business, Qur reinsurance purchasing strategy is to protect against
unforeseen and/or catastrophic loss activity that would adversely impact our income and capital base. We only
select financially strong reinsurers with an A.M. Best rating of “A” (Excellent) or better at the time we enter into a
reinsurance contract. In addition, to minimize our exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, we
evaluate the financial condition of our reinsurers and monitor concentrations of credit risk on a continual basis. We
do not purchase finite reinsurance.

2007 Excess of Loss Reinsurance Treaty Program

Effective January 1, 2007, we entered into a new excess of loss reinsurance treaty program related to our
voluntary and assigned risk business that applies to losses incurred between January 1, 2007 and the date on which
our reinsurance agreements are terminated. Our reinsurance treaty program provides us with reinsurance coverage
for each loss occurrence up to $50.0 million, subject to applicable deductibles, retentions and aggregate limits.
However, for any loss occurrence involving only one claimant, our reinsurance coverage is limited to a maximum of
$10.0 million for any single claimant for the first four layers and $5.0 million for any single claimant for the fifth
layer, subject to applicable deductibles, retentions and aggregate limits, We currently have 16 reinsurers
participating in our 2007 reinsurance treaty program. Under certain circumstances, including a downgrade of a
reinsurer’s A.M. Best rating to “B++" (Very Good) or below, our reinsurers may be required to provide us with
security for amounts due under the terms of our reinsurance program. This security may take the form of, among
other things, cash advances or the issuance of letters of credit to us. If security is required because of a ratings
downgrade, the form of security must be mutually agreed between the reinsurer and us.

QOur 2007 reinsurance treaty program provides coverage in the following five layers:

o First Layer. Affords coverage up to $3.0 million for each loss occurrence in excess of $2.0 million, which
is retained by us. We are subject to an annual aggrepate deductible of approximatety $6.0 million for
losses between $2.0 million and $5.0 million before our reinsurers are obligated to reimburse us. This
layer also affords coverage for up to an aggregate of $3.0 million for certain losses caused by terrorism.
The aggregate limit for all claims under this layer is approximately $51.0 million. The annual aggregate
deductible and aggregate limit are calculated as a percentage of subject premium.

»  Second Layer. Affords coverage up to $5.0 million for each loss occurrence in excess of $5.0 million. The
aggregate limit to all claims, including terrorism, under this layer is $15.0 million.

o Third Layer. Affords coverage up to $10.0 million for each loss occurrence in excess of $10.0 million.
The aggregate limit for all claims, including terrorism, under this layer is $20.0 million.

s Fourth Layer. Affords coverage up to $10.0 million for each loss occurrence in excess of $20.0 million.
The aggregate limit for all claims, including terrorism, under this layer is $20.0 million.

o Fifth Layer. Affords coverage up to $20.0 million for each loss occurrence in excess of $30.0 million.
The aggregate limit for all claims, including terrorism, under this layer is $40.0 million.
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The agreements under our 2007 reinsurance treaty program may be terminated by us or our reinsurers upon 90
days prior notice on any December 31. In addition, we may terminate the participation of one or more of our
reinsurers under certain circumstances as permitted by the terms of our reinsurance agreements.

The table below sets forth the reinsurers participating in our 2007 reinsurance program:

A.M. Best
Reinsurer Rating
Allied World Assurance Company Ltd. ..o e e A
Aspen Insurance UK Limited . ..ot A
Arch Reinsurance COMPANY .....ccovirrireiree e s sma s e e s en b A
AXA RE .ottt eh et eh et R e eR R R Rt A
AXIS Reinsurance COMPANY .....ovvvervirirereeinerresres e osoeescesieeseeeasesacesemeeseasseassesseessssaessemssoesnens A
BRIT Insurance Limited/Danish Re Underwriting Agencies ApS.......oooiiis A
BRIT Syndicates Limited (1) ..ottt A
Chaucer Syndicates Limited/Chaucer Underwriting (1) ..o e A
Danish Re Syndicate/Danish Re Underwriting Agencies APS (1).covvoomiciminniiniinein o A
Federal Insurance Company/Harbor Point Services, [nC. ..., A+t
Hannover Ruckversicherungs-Aktiengesellschaft..........oooiiniiiiiiinniiiie A
| Liberty Syndicate Management Limited (1) .o A
| M.J. Harrington SYNAICATE (1) ....irerrierssnrsrsreninssesssesssessisssensassssarsssseressssssensssssnsisissesssssss s A
' Partner Reinsurance Company of the U.S. ... A+t
| TOKIO MlIERIUIM RE LA .evevevevererereseessssssssosessnses e sssssesssssessesesssesesesesssesssismsesesisssesse e A+

f XL Reinsurance AMEIICA INC. .oooorii e seeee e eeessssat s sm e e e s eeeeeeeeeteeeemmeeeeeteeeeeneeeen emseeansneens A+

(1) Member of Lloyd’s of London syndicate.

Due to the nature of reinsurance, we have receivables from reinsurers that apply to accident vears prior to
2006. The table below summarizes our amounts recoverable from reinsurers as of December 31, 2006.

A.M. Best Amount Recoverable as
Reinsurer Rating of December 31, 2006

{In thousands)

Munich Reinsurance America, INC. .o A $ 23,737

Odyssey America Reinsurance COMPANY ......ccococveveeeeenenccicnnnennenons A 19,750

St. Paul Fire and Marine Insurance Company ........cccccoeveiniiiniiiniines A+ 10,885

Clearwater Insurance COMPany .......ccoovvevenminoiiniieceeeecs e A 9,795

SCOR Reinsurance COMPany .......ccoceceerereerenienmesesiesesesevsesesmssnsssnses A- 7,144

Converium Reinsurance (North America).......cc.ocovvvevevvnrcesieesceaneennes B+ 6,193

| Hannover Ruckversicherungs-Aktiengesellschaft (1) .........cccooeicinnn A 5,792
| Aspen Insurance UK Limited (1) ..o, A 5,643
Partner Reinsurance Company of the U.S (1} .o A+ 3,794

American National Insurance Company .........coocovevcvicinnnninineinnennns At 3,007

Other (22 reINSUTEISY .oveciiriiiiieseisiesii it sraeas — 13.863

TORL .ot e ettt n e e a s 109,603

(1)  Current participant in our 2007 reinsurance program.
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Terrorism Reinsurance

The Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 (the “2002 Act”) was enacted in response to the events of
September 11, 2001 and has been extended by the Terrorism Risk Insurance Extension Act of 2005 (the “2005
Act”™). Both the 2002 Act and the 2005 Act were designed to ensure the availability of insurance coverage for losses
resulting from certain acts of terrorism in the United States. The 2005 Act continues a federal program established
under the 2002 Act through the end of 2007, This program provides federal reimbursement to insurance companies
for a portion of their losses arising from certain acts of terrorism and requires insurance companies to offer coverage
for such acts. The program only applies to insured losses arising out of acts of terrorism committed on‘behalf of
foreign persons or foreign interests that are certified as “acts of terrorism™ by the Secretary of the Treasury. In
addition, the program does not provide any reimbursement for any portion of aggregate indusiry-wide insured losses
from certified acts of terrorism that exceed $100.0 billion in any one year and is subject to certain other limitations
and restrictions.

For insured losses in 2007, each insurance company is responsible for a statutory deductible under the 2005
Act that is equal to 20% of its direct earned property and casualty insurance premiums. For losses occurring in
2007, the U.S. Federal Government will reimburse 85% of an insurance company’s covered losses over the statutory
deductible. In addition, no federal reimbursement is available unless the aggregate insurance industry-wide losses
from a certified act of terrorism exceed $100.0 million for any act of terrorism occurring in 2007. However, there is
no relief from the requirement under the 2005 Act that insurance companies offer coverage for certified acts of
terrorism if those acts do not cause losses exceeding these threshold amounts and thus do not result in any federal
reimbursement payments.

Under the 2005 Act, insurance companies must offer coverage for losses due to certified acts of tetrorism in all
their commercial property and casualty policies, including workers’ compensation policies. Moreover, even in the
absence of this federal law requirement, the workers’ compensation laws of the various states generally do not
permit the exclusion of coverage for losses arising from acts of terrorism, including terrorism that involves the use
of nuclear, biological or chemical agents. In addition, state law prohibits us from limiting our workers’
compensation insurance losses arising from any one catastrophe or any one claimant. We have reinsurance
protection in our 2007 reinsurance treaty program that affords coverage for up to $50 million for losses arising from
terrorism or nuclear, biological and chemical attacks, subject to the deductibles, retentions and aggregate limits.

Technology

We view our internally developed and purchased management information systems as an integral part of our
operations and make a substantial ongoing investment in improving our systems. We provide our field premium
auditors, field safety professionals and field case managers with computer and communication equipment to more
timely and efficiently complete the underwriting process. This technology also helps to facilitate communication
and to report and monitor claims. All of our systems development and infrastructure operation and maintenance is
performed by our information technology professionals, with limited assistance from outside vendors.

Core Systems

ICAMS. Our internally developed Insurance Claims and Accounting Management System, or ICAMS, is an
application designed to support our workers’ compensation insurance business. ICAMS provides comprehensive
rating, analysis, quotation, audit, claims, policy issuance and policy-level accounting transaction processes. By
combining the information we obtain in our underwriting process with information on claims billing and claims
management, we are able to enhance our services to our policyholders.

RealSafe. RealSafe is an internally developed application that supports our field safety professionals, as well

as safety, claims and underwriting departments in our home office, by providing risk assessment and reporting of
information to support safety and loss control initiatives.
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CLAIMExpert. CLAIMExpert is a purchased application utilized by our claims department to assist in work
flow management. The application distributes all claims-related mail to the appropriate FCM. This application
allows for the use of multiple cost containment vendors and routes our claims-related invoices. CLAIMExpert also
serves as the file repository for claims-related mail and documents and is web accessible by our authorized users.

Document Management System. Our document management system is a purchased application currently being
used by our underwriting, audit, finance and treasury departments to scan, index and store imaged documents to
facilitate the movement of work items from one authority level to the next. The system will ultimately include all
departments. The system allows departmental management to closely monitor and medify employee workloads as
needed.

| Freedom Enterprise. FFS-Enterprise is a Fiserv product that functions as our general ledger and accounts
payable systems using an MS SQL database platform. We also use Fiserv companion products for report writing,
check printing and annual statement preparation. Transactions can be manually entered into Enterprise, interfaced
via an ASCII file or copied and pasted from a spreadsheet application. Enterprise is currently set up to accept
transaction detail by department, cost center, line of business and state. Enterprise also offers the capability of baich
processing, which enables off-peak hour work.

Freedom Reinsurance System (FRS). FRS is a Fiserv product that provides ceded reinsurance processing.
Functions performed by FRS include treaty information management, ceded loss billing and coltection and
reinsurance accounting.

Fisual Audit. Visual Audit is a purchased application used by our field premium auditors to input information
necessary to complete an interim or final premium audit,

Information Warehouse. Information Warehouse is an internally developed SQL Server-based set of OLAP
cubes, queries and processes that extracts operational data from ICAMS and other of our applications and transforms
that data for porting to Freedom Enterprise and fher.

Jnet. fnet is an internally developed data analysis portal. fuet is populéted by our Information Warehouse, and
used throughout our company to generate key performance statistics.

Operating Systems

We use Microsoft Active Directory services to provide application access, domain authentication and network
services. Qur server hardware is predominately Compaq/HP, but includes Dell servers as well. Our production
servers are under manufacturer warranties.

Business Continuity/Disaster Recovery

QOur Storage Area Network solution provides us with continuous operations using mirrored servers and storage
situated in two separate corporate buildings, with built-in failover capabilities to minimize business interruption,
We utilize software from Veritas for backup and recovery purposes. Full system backups are performed nightly
using one on-site and one off-site facility for tape storage.

Competition

The insurance industry, in general, is highly competitive and there is significant competition in the workers’
compensation insurance industry. Competition in the insurance business is based on many factors, including
premium rates, policy terms, coverage availability, claims management, safety services, payment terms, types of
insurance offered, overall financial strength, financial ratings assigned by independent rating organizations, such as
A.M. Best, and reputation. Some of the insurers with which we compete have significantly greater financial,
marketing and management resources and experience than we do. We may also compete with new market entrants
in the future.
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We believe the workers’ compensation market for the hazardous industries we target is underserved and
competition is fragmented and not dominated by one or more competitors. Our competitors include other insurance
companies, individual self-insured companies, state insurance pools and self-insurance funds. We believe that more
than 350 insurance companies participate in the workers’ compensation market. The insurance companies with
which we compete vary state by state and by the industries we target.

We believe our competitive advantages include our safety service and claims management practices, our A.M.
Best rating of “A—" (Excellent) and our ability to reduce claims through implementation of our work safety
programs. In addition, we believe that our insurance is competitively priced and our premium rates are typically
lower than those for policyholders assigned to the state insurance pools, allowing us to provide a viable alternative
for policyholders in those pools.

Ratings

Many insurance buyers and agencies use the ratings assigned by A.M. Best and other rating agencies to assist
them in assessing the financial strength and overall quality of the companies from which they are considering
purchasing insurance. In February 2007, A.M. Best announced that it had affirmed our financial strength rating of
“A—" (Excellent) by A.M. Best. An “A—" rating is the fourth highest of 15 rating categories used by A.M. Best.
The rating has a stable outlook for AMERISAFE and our insurance company subsidiaries.

In evaluating a company’s financial and operating performance, A.M. Best reviews the company’s
profitability, indebtedness and liquidity, as well as its book of business, the adequacy and soundness of its
reinsurance, the quality and estimated fair value of its assets, the adequacy of its loss reserves, the adequacy of its
surplus, its capital structure, the experience and competence of its management and its market presence. This rating
is intended to provide an independent opinion of an insurer’s ability to meet its obligations to policyholders and is
not an evaluation directed at investors.

Employees

As of December 31, 2006, we had 448 full-time employees and three part-time employees. None of our
employees is subject to collective bargaining agreements. We believe that our employee relations are good.

Regulation
Holding Company Regulation

Nearly all states have enacted legislation that regulates insurance holding company systems. Each insurance
company in a holding company system is required to register with the insurance supervisory agency of its state of
domicile and furnish information concerning the operations of companies within the holding company system that
may materially affect the operations, management or financial condition of the insurers within the system. Under
these faws, the respective state insurance departments may examine us at any time, require disclosure of material
transactions and require prior notice of or approval for certain transactions. All transactions within a holding
company system affecting an insurer must have fair and reasonable terms and are subject to other standards and
requirements established by law and regulation.
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Change of Control

The insurance holding company laws of nearly all states require advance approval by the respective state
insurance departments of any change of control of an insurer. “Control” is generally presumed to exist through the
direct or indirect ownership of 10% or more of the voting securities of a domestic insurance company or any entity
that controls a domestic insurance company. In addition, insurance laws in many states contain provisions that
require pre-notification to the insurance commissioners of a change of control of a non-domestic insurance company
licensed in those states. Any future transactions that would constitute a change of control of American Interstate,
Silver Oak Casualty or American Interstate of Texas, including a change of control of AMERISAFE, would
generally require the party acquiring control to obtain the prior approval of the department of insurance in the state
in which the insurance company being acquired is incorporated and may require pre-notification in the states where
pre-notification provisions have been adopted. Obtaining these approvals may result in the material delay of, or
deter, any such transaction.

These laws may discourage potential acquisition proposals and may delay, deter or prevent a change of control
of AMERISAFE, including through transactions, and in particular unsolicited transactions, that some or ali of the
sharcholders of AMERISAFE might consider to be desirable.

State Insurance Regulation

Insurance companies are subject to regulation and supervision by the department of insurance in the state in
which they are domiciled and, to a lesser extent, other states in which they conduct business. American Interstate
and Silver Oak Casualty are primarily subject to regulation and supervision by the Louisiana Department of
Insurance, Workers’ Compensation Commission and Insurance Rating Commission. American Interstate of Texas
is primarily subject to regulation and supervision by the Texas Department of Insurance and Workers’
Compensation Commission. These state agencies have broad regulatory, supervisory and administrative powers,
including among other things, the power to grant and revoke licenses 1o transact business, license agencies, set the
standards of solvency to be met and maintained, determine the nature of, and limitations on, investments and
dividends, approve policy forms and rates in some states, periodically examine financial statements, determine the
form and content of required financial statements, and periodically examine market conduct.

Detailed annual and quarterly financial statements and other reports are required to be filed with the
department of insurance in all states in which we are licensed to transact business. The financial statements of
American Interstate, Silver Oak Casualty and American Interstate of Texas are subject to periodic examination by
the department of insurance in each state in which it is licensed to do business.

In addition, many states have laws and regulations that limit an insurer’s ability to withdraw from a particular
market. For example, states may limit an insurer’s ability to cancel or not renew policies. Furthermore, certain
states prohibit an insurer from withdrawing one or more lines of business from the state, except pursuant to a plan
that is approved by the state insurance department. The state insurance department may disapprove a plan that may
lead to market disruption. Laws and regulations that limit cancellation and non-renewal and that subject program
withdrawals to prior approval requirements may restrict our ability to exit unprofitable markets.

Insurance agencies are subject to regulation and supervision by the department of insurance in the state in
which they are licensed. Our wholly owned subsidiary, Amerisafe General Agency, Inc., is licensed in 24 states and
is domiciled in Louisiana. Amerisafe General is primarily subject to regulation and supervision by the Louisiana
Department of Insurance. This agency regulates the solicitation of insurance and the qualification and licensing of
agents and agencies that may desire to conduct business in Louisiana.
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State Insurance Department Examinations

We are subject to periodic examinations by state insurance departments in the states in which we operate. The
Louisiana Department of Insurance generaily examines each of its domiciliary insurance companies on a triennial
basis. American Interstate Insurance Company and Silver Qak Casualty, Inc. underwent an examination in the first
haif of 2006 that covered calendar years 2001 through 2005. We have not received a final report regarding this
examination. American Interstate of Texas was formed in December 2004 and began operations in January 2005.
Under Texas insurance law, American Interstate of Texas will be subject to examination each year in its first three
years of opcrations. American Interstate Insurance Company of Texas is currently undergoing an examination
covering calendar years 2005 and 2006.

Guaranty Fund Assessments

In most of the states where we are licensed to transact business, there is a requircment that property and
casualty insurers doing business within each such state participate in a guaranty association, which is organized to
pay contractual benefits owed pursuant to insurance policies issued by impaired, insolvent or failed insurers. These
associations levy assessments, up to prescribed limits, on all member insurers in a particular state on the basis of the
proportionate share of the premium written by member insurers in the lines of business in which the impaired,
insolvent or failed insurer is engaged. Some states permit member insurers to recover assessments paid through full
or partial premium tax offsets.

Property and casualty insurance company insolvencies or failures may result in additional security fund
assessments to us at some future date. At this time, we are unable to determine the impact, if any, such assessments
may have on our financial position or results of operations. We have established liabilities for guaranty fund
assessments with respect to insurers that are currently subject to insolvency proceedings.

Residual Market Programs

Many of the states in which we conduct business or intend to conduct business, require that all licensed
insurers participate in a program to provide workers’ compensation insurance to those employers who have not or
cannot procure coverage from a carrier on a negotiated basis. The level of required participation in such programs is
generally determined by calculating the volume of our voluntarily business in that state as a percentage of all
voluntarily business in that state by all insurers. The resulting factor is the proportion of premium we must accept as
a percentage of all of premiums in policies residing in that state’s residual market program.

Companies generally can fulfill their residual market obligations by either issuing insurance policies to
employers assigned to them, or participating in a reinsurance pool where the results of all policies provided through
the pool are shared by the participating companies. Currently, we utilize both methods, depending on management’s
evaluation of the most cost-efficient method to adopt in each state that allows a choice of assigned risk or
participation in a pooling arrangement. In general, we believe that assigned risk produces better results as we apply
our cost management approach to these involuntary policyholders. We currently have assigned risk in six states:
Alabama, Alaska, Georgia, North Carolina, South Carolina, and Virginia.

Second Injury Funds

A number of states operate trust funds that reimburse insurers and employers for claims paid to injured
employees for aggravation of prior conditions or injuries. The state-managed trust funds are funded through
assessments against insurers and self-insurers providing workers” compensation coverage in a specific state. Our
recoveries from state-managed trust funds for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $8.3
million, $7.6 million and $8.1 million respectively. Our cash paid for assessments to state-managed trust funds for
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $3.1million, $3.9 million and $3.6 million, respectively.
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Dividend Limitations

Under Louisiana law, American Interstate and Silver Oak Casualty cannot pay dividends to their shareholders
in excess of the lesser of 10% of statutory surplus, or statutory net income, excluding realized investment gains, for
the preceding 12-month period without the prior approval of the Louisiana Commussioner of Insurance. However,
net income from the previous two calendar years may be carried forward to the extent that it has not already been
paid out as dividends. Based on reported capital and surplus at December 31, 2006, this requirement limits
American Interstate’s ability to make distributions to AMERISAFE in 2007 to $19.6 million without approval by the
Louisiana Department of Insurance. Further, under Texas law, American Interstate of Texas cannot pay dividends
to its sharcholder in excess of the greater of 10% of statutory surpius, or statutory net income, for the preceding 12-
month period without the prior approval of the Texas Commissioner of Insurance.

Federal Law and Regulations

As of December 31, 2006, we derived 2.8% of our voluntary in-force premiums from employers engaged in
the maritime industry. As a provider of workers’ compensation insurance for employers engaged in the maritime
industry, we are subject to the United States Longshore and Harbor Workers’ Compensation Act, or the USL&H
Act, and the Merchant Marine Act of 1920, or Jones Act. We are also subject to regulations related to the USL&H
Act and the Jones Act.

The USL&H Act, which is administered by the U.S. Department of Labor, generally covers exposures on the
navigable waters of the United States and in adjoining waterfront areas, including exposures resulting from
stevedoring. The USL&H Act requires employers to provide medical benefits, compensation for lost wages and
rehabilitation services to longshoremen, harbor workers and other maritime workers who may sufter injury,
disability or death during the course and scope of their employment. The Department of Labor has the authority to
require us to make deposits to serve as collateral for losses incurred under the USL&H Act.

The Jones Act is a federal law, the maritime employer provisions of which provide injured offshore workers, or
seamen, with a remedy against their employers for injuries arising from negligent acts of the employer or co-
workers during the course of cmployment on a ship or vessel.

Privacy Regulations

In 1999, Congress enacted the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, which, among other things, protects consumers from
the unauthorized dissemination of certain personal information. Subsequently, a majority of states have
implemented additional regulations to address privacy issues. These laws and regulations apply to all financial
institutions, including insurance companies, and require us to maintain appropriate policies and procedures for
managing and protecting certain personal information of our policyholders and to fully disclose our privacy
practices to our policyholders. We may also be exposed to future privacy laws and regulations, which could impose
additional costs and impact our results of operations or financial condition. [n 2004, the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners, or the NAIC, adopted the Privacy of Consumer Financial and Health Information Model
Regulation, which assisted states in promulgating regulations to comply with the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. In
2002, to further facilitate the implementation of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, the NAIC adopted the Standards for
Safeguarding Customer Information Model Regulation. Several states have now adopted similar provisions
regarding the safeguarding of policyholder information. We have established policies and procedures intended to
ensure that we are in compliance with the Gramm-Leach-Bliley related privacy requirements.
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Federal and State Legislative and Regulatory Changes

From time to time, various regulatory and legislative changes have been proposed in the insurance industry.
Among the proposals that have in the past been or are at present being considered are the possible introduction of
federal regulation in addition to, or in lieu of, the current system of state regulation of insurers and proposals in
various state legislatures (some of which proposals have been enacted) to conform portions of their insurance laws
and regulations to various model acts adopted by the NAIC. We arc unable to predict whether any of these laws and
regulations will be adopted, the form in which any such laws and regulations would be adopted or the effect, if any,
these developments would have on our operations and financial condition.

For information on the Terrorism Risk Act, see “—Reinsurance—Terrorism Reinsurance.”
The National Association of Insurance Commissioners

The NAIC is a group formed by state insurance commissioners to discuss issues and formulate policy with
respect to regulation, reporting and accounting of insurance companies. Although the NAIC has no legislative
authority and insurance companies arc at all times subject to the laws of their respective domiciliary states and, to a
lesser extent, other states in which they conduct business, the NAIC is influential in determining the form in which
such laws are enacted. Model Insurance Laws, Regulations and Guidelines, which we refer to as the Model Laws,
have been promulgated by the NAIC as 2 minimum standard by which state regulatory systems and regulations are
measured. Adoption of state laws that provide for substantially similar regulations to those described in the Model
Laws is a requirement for accreditation by the NAIC. The NAIC provides authoeritative guidance to insurance
regulators on current statutory accounting issues by promulgating and updating a codified set of statutory accounting
practices in its Accounting Practices and Procedures manual. The Louisiana and Texas legislatures have adopted
these codified statutory accounting practices.

The NAIC has recently proposed a Model Law that would require insurance brokers to obtain the written
consent of the insured before receiving compensation from the insurer. This proposed Model Law would also
require all insurance producers (including agents) to disclose to its customers that the producer will receive
compensation from the insurer, that the compensation received by the producer may differ depending upon the
product and insurer and that the producer may receive additional compensation from the insurer based upon other
factors, such as premium volume placed with a particular insurer and loss or claims experience. We do not sell
insurance through brokers. We do sell insurance through agents. We do not believe that the disclosure obligations
under the Model Law proposed by the NAIC would have any significant effect on our business if it were adopted in
the states in which we conduct our business.

Under Louisiana law, American Interstate and Silver Oak Casualty are required to maintain minimum capital
and surplus of $3.0 million. Under Texas law, American Interstate of Texas is required to maintain minimum
capital and surplus of $1.0 million. Property and casualty insurance companies are also subject to certain risk-based
capital requirements by the NAIC. Under those requirements, the amount of capital and surpius maintained by a
property and casualty insurance company is to be determined based on the various risk factors related to it. Asof
December 31, 2006, American Interstate, Silver Oak Casualty, and American Interstate of Texas exceeded the
minimum risk-based capital requirements.

The key financial ratios of the NAIC’s Insurance Regulatory Information System, or IRIS, which ratios were
developed to assist insurance departments in overseeing the financial condition of insurance companies, are
reviewed by experienced financial examiners of the NAIC and state insurance departments to select those companies
that merit highest priority in the allocation of the regulators’ resources. IRIS identifies 12 industry ratios and
specifies “usual values” for each ratio. Departure from the usual values on four or more of the ratios can lead to
inquiries from individual state insurance commissioners as to certain aspects of an insurer’s business.
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The 2006 IRIS results for American Interstate were within expected values. Silver Cak Casualty’s ratios of net
change in adjusted policyholders’ surplus and two-year reserve development to policyholders’ surplus were outside
the expected ranges for such ratios. This occurred because of Silver Oak Casualty’s smaller surplus base and the
impact of the Converium commutation in 2005. The results for Amertcan Interstate of Texas showed a change in
net premium writings greater than the expected range. This growth was attributable to increased premtums assumed
through intercompany pooling.

Statutory Accounting Practices

Statutory accounting practices, or SAP, are a basis of accounting developed to assist insurance regulators in
monitoring and regulating the solvency of insurance companies. SAP is primarily concerned with measuring an
insurer’s surplus to policyholders. Accordingly, statutory accounting focuses on valuing assets and liabilities of
insurers at financial reporting dates in accordance with appropriate insurance law and regulatory provisions
applicable in each insurer’s domiciliary state.

Generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP, are concerned with a company’s solvency, but are also
concerned with other financial measurements, principally income and cash flows. Accordingly, GAAP gives more
consideration to appropriate matching of revenue and expenses and accounting for management’s stewardship of
assets than does SAP. As a direct result, different assets and liabilities and different amounts of assets and liabilities
will be reflected in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP as compared to SAP,

Statutory accounting practices established by the NAIC and adopted in part by the Louisiana and Texas
insurance regulators, determine, among other things, the amount of statutory surplus and statutory net income of
American Interstate, Silver Oak Casualty and American Interstate of Texas and thus determine, in part, the amount
of funds that are avaitable to pay dividends to AMERISAFE.

Website Information

Qur corporate website is located at www.amerisafe.com. Qur annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports that we file or furnish pursuant to
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are available through our website, free of charge, as
soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed or furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or the SEC. Our website also provides access to reports filed by our directors, executive officers and
certain significant shareholders pursuant to Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In addition, our
Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and charters for the standing committees
of our board of directors are available on our website. The information on our website is not incorporated by
reference into this report. In addition, the SEC maintains a website, www.sec.gov, that contains reports, proxy and
information statements and other information that we file electronically with the SEC.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The table below sets forth information about our executive officers and key employees.

Name Age Position

Executive Officers

C. Allen Bradley, Jr....cooiiiciiiins 55  Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Geoffrey R. Banta ... 57  Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Craig P. Leach ...coooveecocniia 57  Executive Vice President, Sales and Marketing

David O. Narigon .......cceeerineinnenns 54  Executive Vice President

Todd Walker.....cooocevenrienrnceeeceens 50  Executive Vice President, Genera! Counsel and Secretary
Key Employees

Allan E. Farm ..o, 48  Senior Vice President, Enterprise Risk Management
Kelly R. Goins..........ccceverevrrvrremnnere. 40 Senior Vice President, Underwriting Operations

Cynthia P. Harris ... 52 Senior Vice President, Human Resources/Client Services
Leon J. Lagneaux ......cccccovcinvimicec 55  Senior Vice President, Safety Operations

Henry O. Lestage, [V ... 46 Senior Vice President, Claims Operations

Edwin R. Longanacre...............ooeeveee. 49  Senior Vice President, Information Technology

G. Janelle Frost.....ceeiecveviciinncceenenies 36  Vice President, Controller

Angela S. Lannen...........oiiviiennenn 61  Vice President, Treasurer

C. Allen Bradley, Jr. has served as Chairman of our board of directors since October 2005, our President since
November 2002, our Chief Executive Officer since December 2003 and a Director since June 2003. From
November 2002 until December 2003 he served as our Chief Operating Officer. Since joining our company in
1994, Mr. Bradley has had principal responsibility for the management of our underwriting operations (December
2000 through June 2005) and safety services (September 2000 through November 2002) and has served as our
General Counsel (September 1997 through December 2003) and Secretary (September 1997 through November
2002). Prior to joining our company, he was engaged in the private practice of law.

Geoffrey R. Banta has served as our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since December
2003. Prior to joining our company in 2003, he held the positions of President and Chief Executive Officer from
2001 until November 2003, and Chief Operating Officer from 1996 until 2001, at Scruggs Consulting, an actuarial
and management consulting firm. From 1994 to 1996, Mr. Banta was Chief Financial Officer of the Atlanta
Casualty Companies, an issuer of non-standard auto insurance whose holding company was a subsidiary of
American Financial Group, Inc.

Craig P. Leach has served as our Executive Vice President, Sales and Marketing since November 2002. He
has served in a variety of sales and key marketing positions within our company since beginning his insurance
career with a predecessor to our company in 1980, including Senior Vice President, Sates and Marketing from 1997
until November 2002.
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David O. Narigon has served as an Executive Vice President with responsibility for Claims, Information
Technology and Premium Audit since September 2006. Prior to joining our company, he provided consulting,
mediation, arbitration and expert witness services to the insurance industry through his company, Narigon
Consulting & Settlement Services, from March 2005 until August 2006, Prior to March 2005, Mr. Narigon was
employed by EMC Insurance Companies where he held the positions of Vice President, Claims from 1988 to June
1998 and Senior Vice President, Claims from June 1998 until March 2005, and President of EMC Risk Services
from 1993 until March 2005.

Todd Walker joined our company in September 2006 as our Executive Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary. From 2002 through September 2006, he was engaged in the private practice of law. Prior to 2002, Mr.
Walker held various legal positions with Ultramar Diamond Shamrock Corp., a New York Stock Exchange listed
refining and marketing company, where he had been employed since 1987,

Allan E. Farr has served as our Senior Vice President, Enterprise Risk Management since April 2004. He has
been employed with our company since 1998 and served as Vice President, Underwriting Services from 1999 until
2004.

Kelly R. Goins has served as our Senior Vice President, Underwriting Operations since March 20035. She has
been employed with our company since 1986 and served as Vice President, Underwriting Operations from 2000
until March 2005.

Cynthia P. Harris has served as our Senior Vice President, Human Resources/Client Services since January
2003. She has been employed with our company since 1977 and served as Vice President, Policyholder Services
and Administration from 1992 until December 2002,

Leon J. Lagneaux has served as our Senior Vice President, Safety Operations since March 2005. He has been
employed with our company since 1994 and served as Vice President, Safety Operations from 1999 until March
2005.

Henry O. Lestage, IV has served as our Senior Vice President, Claims Operations since September 2000. He
has been employed with our company since 1987 and served as Vice President, Claims Operations from 1998 until
2000

Edward R. Longanacre has served as our Senior Vice President, [nformation Technology since March 2005,
He has been employed with our company since 2000 and held the position of Vice President, Information
Technelogy from September 2004 until March 2005 and Information Technology Director from 2000 until
September 2004.

G. Janelle Frost has served as our Controller since May 2004 and Vice President since May 2006. She has
been employed with our company since 1992 and served as Assistant Vice President from May 2004 to May 2006
and Deputy Controller from 1998 to April 2004,

Angela §. Lannen has served as our Vice President, Treasurer since January 2001, She has been employed
with our company since 1999 and served as Planning and Analysis Manager from 1999 untii December 2000.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

In evaluating our company, the factors described below should be considered carefully. The occurrence of one
or more of these events could significantly and adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows.

Risks Related to Our Business
We operate in a highly competitive industry and may lack the financial resources to compete effectively.

There is significant competition in the workers’ compensation insurarice industry. We believe that our
competition in the hazardous industries we target is fragmented and not dominated by one or more competitors. We
compete with other insurance companies, individual self-insured companies, state insurance pools and self-insurance
funds. Many of our existing and potential competitors are significantly larger and possess greater financial,
marketing and management resources than we do. Moreover, a number of these competitors offer other types of
insurance in addition to workers’ compensation and can provide insurance nationwide. We compete on the basis of
many factors, including coverage availability, claims management, safety services, payment terms, premium rates,
policy terms, types of insurance offered, overall financial strength, financial ratings and reputation. If any of our
competitors offer premium rates, policy terms or types of insurance that are more competitive than ours, we could
lose market share. No assurance can be given that we will maintain our current competitive position in the markets
in which we currently operate or that we will establish a competitive position in new markets into which we may
expand.

The workers’ compensation insurance industry is cyclical in nature, which may affect our overall financial
performance.

The financial performance of the workers’ compensation insurance industry has historically fluctuated with
periods of low premium rates and excess underwriting capacity resulting from increased competition followed by
periods of high premium rates and shortages of underwriting capacity resulting from decreased competition.
Although the financial performance of an individual insurance company is dependent on its own specific business
characteristics, the profitability of most workers’ compensation insurance companies generally tends to follow this
cyclical market pattern. Beginning in 2000 and accelerating in 2001, the workers’ compensation insurance industry
experienced a market reflecting increasing premium rates, more restrictive policy coverage terms and more
conservative risk selection. We believe these trends stowed beginning in 2004. We also believe the current
workers’ compensation insurance market is slowly transitioning to a more competitive market environment in which
underwriting capacity and price competition may increase. This additional underwriting capacity may result in
increased competition from other insurance carriers expanding the kinds or amounts of business they write or
seeking to maintain or increase market share at the expense of underwriting discipline. Because this cyclicality is
due in large part to the actions of our competitors and general economic factors, we cannot predict the timing or
duration of changes in the market cycle. We believe that the workers’ compensation insurance industry is slowly
transitioning to a more competitive market environment. These cyclical patterns could cause our revenues and net
income to fluctuate, which may cause the price of our common stock to be volatile.

Our loss reserves are based on estimates and may be inadequate to cover our actual losses.

We must establish and maintain reserves for our estimated liability for loss and loss adjustment expenses. We
establish loss reserves that represent an estimate of amounts needed to pay and administer claims with respect to
insured events that have occurred, including events that have occurred but have not yet been reported to us.

Reserves are based on estimates of the ultimate cost of individual claims. These estimates are inherently uncertain.
Judgment is required to determine the relevance of historical payment and claim settlement patterns under current
facts and circumstances. The interpretation of this historical data can be impacted by external forces, principally
legislative changes, economic fluctuations and legal trends. If there are unfavorable changes in our assumptions, our
reserves may need to be increased.
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Workers’ compensation claims often are paid over a long peried of time. In addition, there are no policy limits
on our liabitity for workers’ compensation claims as there are for other forms of insurance. Therefore, estimating
reserves for workers’ compensation claims may be more uncertain than estimating reserves for other types of
insurance claims with shorter or more definite periods between occurrence of the claim and final determination of
the loss and with policy limits on liability for claim amounts. Accordingly, our reserves may prove to be inadequate
to cover our actual losses. [f we change our estimates, these changes would result in adjustments to our reserves and
our loss and loss adjustment expensces incurred in the period in which the estimates are changed. If the estimate is
increased, our pre-tax income for the period in which we make the change will decrease by a corresponding amount.
In addition, increasing reserves results in a reduction in cur surplus and could result in a downgrade in our A M.
Best rating. Such a downgrade could, in turn, adversely affect our ability to sell insurance policies.

A downgrade in our A.M, Best rating would likely reduce the amount of business we are able to write,

Rating agencies cvaluate insurance companies based on their ability to pay claims. We are currently assigned
a group letter rating of “A-" (Excellent) from A.M. Best, which is the rating agency that we believe has the most
influence on our business. This rating is assigned to companics that, in the opinion of A.M, Best, have demonstrated
an excellent overall performance when compared to industry standards. A.M. Best considers “A-" rated companies
to have an excellent ability to meet their ongoing obligations to policyhelders. The ratings of A.M. Best are subject
to periodic review using, among other things, proprictary capital adequacy models, and are subject to revision or
withdrawal at any time. A.M. Best ratings arc dirccted toward the concerns of policyholders and insurance agencies
and are not intended for the protection of investors or as a recommendation te buy, hold or sell securities. Our
competitive position relative to other companies is determined in part by our A.M. Best rating. Any downgrade in
our rating would likely adversely affect our business through the loss of certain existing and potential policyholders
and the loss of relationships with certain independent agencics,

If we are unable to obtain reinsurance on favorable terms, our ability to write policies could be adversely
affected.

We purchase reinsurance to protect us from the impact of large losses. Rcinsurance is an arrangement in which
an insurance company, called the ceding company, transfers insurance risk by sharing premiums with another
insurance company, called the reinsurer. Conversely, the reinsurer receives or assumes reinsurance from the ceding
company. Our 2007 reinsurance program provides us with reinsurance coverage for each loss occurrence up to
$50.0 millien, subject 1o applicable deductibles, retentions and aggregate limits. However, for any loss occurrence
involving only one claimant, our reinsurance coverage is limited to $10.0 million for any single claimant for the first
four layers and $5.0 million for any single claimant for the fifth layer, subject to applicable deductibles, retentions
and aggregate limits. Qur 2007 program calls for us to retain the first $2.0 million of cach loss. For losses between
$2.0 million and $5.0 million, we are subject to an annual aggregate deductible of approximately $6.0 million before
our reinsurers are obligated to reimburse us. The aggregate limit for all claims for losses between $2.0 million and
$5.0 million is approximately $51.0 million. Sce “Business—Reinsurance.” The availability, amount and cost of
reinsurance are subject to market conditions and our experience with insured losses.

Due to the relationship between cost of reinsurance and the level of business we retain, we have increased our
levels of retention on a per occurrence basis cach year since 2003. As a result, we are exposed to increased risk of
loss resulting from volatility in the frequency and severity of claims, which could adversely affect our financial
performance.

34




If any of our current reinsurers were to terminate participation in our reinsurance treaty program, we coutd
be exposed to an increased risk of loss.

The agreements under our 2007 reinsurance treaty program may be terminated by us or our reinsurers upon 90
days prior notice effective on any January 1. If our reinsurance treaty program is terminated and we enter into a new
program, any decrease in the amount of reinsurance at the time we enter into a new program, whether caused by the
existence of more restrictive terms and conditions or decreased availability, will also increase our risk of loss and, as
a result, could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. We currently have sixteen
reinsurers participating in our reinsurance treaty program, and we believe that this is a sufficient number of
reinsurers to provide us with the reinsurance coverage we require. However, because our reinsurance treaty
program may be terminated on any January 1, it is possible that one or more of our current reinsurers could
terminate participation in our program. In addition, we may terminate the participation of one or more of our
reinsurers under certain circumstances as permitted by the terms of our reinsurance agreements. In cither of those
events, if our reinsurance broker is unablc to spread the terminated reinsurance among the remaining reinsurers in
the program, it could take a significant amount of time to identify and ncgotiate agreements with a replacement
reinsurer. During this time, we would be exposed to an increased risk of loss, the extent of which would depend on
the volume of terminated reinsurance.

A downgrade in the A.M. Best rating of one or more of our significant reinsurers could adversely affect our
financial condition.

Our financial condition could be adversely affected if the A.M. Best rating of one or more of our significant
reinsurers is downgraded. For example, our A.M. Best rating may be downgraded if our amounts recoverable from
a reinsurer are significant and the A.M. Best rating of that reinsurer is downgraded. If one of our reinsurers suffers a
rating downgrade, we may consider various options to lessen the impact on our financial condition, including
commutation, novation and the use of letters of credit to secure amounts recoverable from reinsurers. However,
these options may result in losses to our company, and there can be no assurance that we could implement any of
these options.

We may not be able to recover amounts due from our reinsurers, which would adversely affect our financial
condition.

Reinsurance does not discharge our obligations under the insurance policies we write. We remain liable to our
policyholders even if we are unable to make recoveries that we are entitled to receive under our reinsurance
contracts. As a result, we are subject to credit risk with respect to our reinsurers. Losses are recovered from our
reinsurers as claims are paid. In long-term workers’ compensation claims, the creditworthiness of our reinsurers
may change before we recover amounts to which we are entitled. Therefore, if a reinsurer is unable to meet any of
its obligations to us, we would be responsible for all claims and claim scttlement expenses for which we would have
otherwise received payment from the reinsurer.

In the past, we have been unable to recover amounts from our reinsurers. [n 2001, Reliance Insurance
Company, one of our former reinsurers, was placed under regulatory supervision by the Pennsylvania Insurance
Department and was subsequently placed into liquidation. As a result, between 2001 and December 31, 2006, we
recognized losses related to uncollectible amounts due from Reliance aggregating $21.3 million.

As of December 31, 2006, we had $109.6 million of recoverables from reinsurers. Of this amount, $92.4
million was unsecured. As of December 31, 2006, our largest recoverables from reinsurers included $23.7 million
from Munich Reinsurance America, Inc., $19.8 million from Odyssey America Reinsurance Company and $10.9
million from St. Pau! Fire and Marine Insurance Company. 1f we are unable to collect amounts recoverable from
our reinsurers, our financial condition would be adversely affected.
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Negative developments in the workers’ compensation insurance industry could adversely affect our financial
condition and results of operations.

We principally offer workers’ compensation insurance. We have no current plans to focus our efforts on
offering other types of insurance. As a result, negative developments in the economic, competitive or regulatory
conditions affecting the workers’ compensation insurance industry could have an adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations. Negative developments in the workers’ compensation insurance industry could
have a greater effect on us than on more diversified insurance companies that also sell other types of insurance.

A decline in the level of business activity of our policyholders, particularly those engaged in the construction,
trucking and logging industries, could negatively affect our earnings and profitability.

In 2006, 68.2% of our gross premiums written were derived from policyholders in the construction, trucking
and logging industries. Because premium rates are calculated, in general, as a percentage of a policyholder’s payroll
expense, premiums fluctuate depending upon the level of business activity and number of employees of our
policyholders. As a result, our gross premiums written are primarily dependent ipon economic conditions in the
construction, trucking and logging industries and upon economic conditions generally.

If we do not appropriately establish our premium rates, our results of operations will be adversely affected.

In general, the premium rates for our insurance policies are established when coverage is initiated and,
therefore, before all of the underlying costs are known. Like other workers” compensation insurance companics, we
rely on estimates and assumptions in setting our premium rates. Establishing adequate rates is necessary, together
with investment income, to generate sufficient revenue to offset losses, loss adjustment expenses and other
underwriting expenses and to earn a profit. If we fail to accurately assess the risks that we assume, we may fail to
charge adequate premium rates to cover our losses and expenses, which could reduce our net income and cause us to
become unprofitable. For example, when initiating coverage on a policyhelder, we estimate future claims expense
based, in part, on prior claims information provided by the policyholder’s previous insurance carriers. 1f this prior
claims information is not accurate, we may underprice our policy by using claims estimates that are too low, Asa
result, our actual costs for providing insurance coverage to our policyholders may be significantly higher than our
premiums, In order to set premium rates appropriately, we must:

s  collect and properly analyze a substantial volume of data;

* develop, test and apply appropriate rating formulae;

s closely monitor and timely recognize changes in trends; and

* project both frequency and severity of losses with reasonable accuracy.

We must also implement our pricing accurately in accordance with our assumptions. Our ability to undertake
these efforts successfully, and as a result set premium rates accurately, is subject to a number of risks and
uncertainties, principally:

s insufficient reliable data;

s incorrect or incomplete analysis of available data;

+ uncertainties generally inherent in estimates and assumptions;

¢  the complexity inherent in implementing appropriate rating formulae or other pricing methodologies;

* costs of ongoing medical treatment;

e uncertaintics inherent in accurately estimating retention, investment yields and the duration of our liability
for loss and loss adjustment expenses; and
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e ynanticipated court decisions, legislation or regulatory action,

Consequently, we could set our premium rates too low, which would negatively affect our results of operations
and our profitability, or we could set our premium rates too high, which could reduce our competitiveness and lead
to lower revenues.

Unfaverable changes in economic conditions affecting the states in which we operate could adversely affect
our financial condition or results of operations,

We currently market our insurance in 3Istates and the District of Columbia. Although we have expanded our
operations into new geographic areas and expect to continue to do so in the future, 43.9% of our gross premiums
written for the year ended December 31, 2006 were derived from the six states in which we generated 5.0% or more
of our gross premiums written in 2006. No other state accounted for 5.0% or more of gross premiums written in
2006. In the future, we may be exposed to economic and regulatory risks or risks from natural perils that are greater
than the risks faced by insurance companies that have a larger percentage of their gross premiums written diversified
over a broader geographic area. Unfavorable changes in economic conditions affecting the states in which we write
business could adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations. See “Business—Policyholders.” in
Item | of this report.

If we cannot sustain our relationships with independent agencies, we may be unable to operate profitably.

We market a substantial portion of our workers’ compensation insurance through independent agencies. As of
December 31, 2006, independent agencies produced 84.7% of our voluntary in-force premiums. No independent
agency accounted for more than 1.1% of our voluntary in-force premiums at that date. Independent agencies are not
obligated to promote our insurance and may sell insurance offered by our competitors. As a result, our continued
profitability depends, in part, on the marketing efforts of our independent agencies and on our ability to offer
workers” compensation insurance and maintain financial strength ratings that meet the requirements of our
independent agencies and their policyholders.

Our revenues and results of operations may fluctuate as a result of factors beyond our control, which
fluctuation may cause the price of our commeon stock to be volatile.

The revenues and results of operations of insurance companies historically have been subject to significant
fluctuations and uncertainties. Qur profitability can be affected significantly by:

e rising levels of claims costs, including medical and prescription drug costs, that we cannot anticipate at the
time we establish our premium rates;

e fluctuations in interest rates, inflationary pressures and other changes in the investment environment that
affect returns on invested assets;

s  changes in the frequency or severity of claims;

e the financial stability of our reinsurers and changes in the level of reinsurance capacity and our capital
capacity;

e new types of claims and new or changing judicial interpretations relating to the scope of liabilities of
insuratice companies;

»  volatile and unpredictable developments, including man-made, weather-related and other natural
catastrophes or terrorist attacks; and

s  price competition.

If our revenues and results of operations fluctuate as a result of one or more of these factors, the price of our
common stock may be volatile.
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An inability to effectively manage the growth of sur operations could make it difficult for us to compete and
affect our ability to operate profitably.

Qur continuing growth strategy includes expanding in our existing markets, entering new geographic markets
and further developing our agency relationships. Our growth strategy is subject to various risks, including risks
associated with our ability to:

» identify profitable new geographic markets for entry,

+ attract and retain qualified personnel for expanded operations;

s identify, recruit and integrate new independent agencies; and

e  augment our internal monitoring and control systems as we expand our business.

Because we are subject fo extensive state and federal regulation, legislative changes may negatively impact
our business.

We are subject to extensive regulation by the Louisiana Department of Insurance and the insurance regulatory
agencies of other states in which we are licensed and, to a lesser extent, federal regulation, State agencies have
broad regulatory powers designed primarily to protect policyholders and their employees, and not our shareholders.
Regulations vary from state to state, but typically address:

¢ standards of solvency, including risk-based capital measurements;

®  restrictions on the nature, quality and concentration of our investments;

»  restrictions on the terms of the insurance policies we offer;

s  restrictions on the way our premium rates are established and the premium rates we may charge;

e required reserves for unearned premiums and loss and loss adjustment expenses;

o  standards for appointing general agencies;

e limitations on transactions with affiliates;

*  restrictions on mergers and acquisitions;

»  restrictions on the ability of our insurance company subsidiaries to pay dividends to AMERISAFE;
¢  certain required methods of accounting; and

e  potential assessments for state guaranty funds, second injury funds and other mandatory pooling
arrangements.

We may be unable to comply fully with the wide variety of applicable laws and regulations that are continually
undergoing revision. In addition, we follow practices based on our interpretations of laws and regulations that we
believe are generally followed by our industry, These practices may be different from interpretations of insurance
regulatory agencies. As a result, insurance regulatory agencies could preclude us from conducting some or all of our
activities or otherwise penalize us. For example, in order to enforce applicable laws and regulations or to protect
policyholders, insurance regulatory agencies have relatively broad discretion to impose a variety of sanctions,
including examinations, corrective orders, suspension, revocation or denial of licenses and the takeover of one or
more of our insurance subsidiarics. The extensive regulation of our business may increase the cost of our insurance
and may limit our ability to obtain premium rate increases or to take other actions to increase our profitability.
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The effects of emerging claim and coverage issues on our business are uncertain.

As industry practices and legal, judicial, social and other environmental conditions change, unexpected and
unintended issues related to claims and coverage may emerge. These issues may adversely affect our business by
cither extending coverage beyond our underwriting intent or by increasing the number or size of claims. In some
instances, these changes may not become apparent until after we have issued insurance policies that are affected by
the changes. As a result, the full extent of our liability under an insurance policy may not be known until many
years after the policy is issued. For example, medical costs associated with permanent and partial disabilities may
increase more rapidly or be higher than we currently expect. Changes of this nature may expose us to higher claims
than we anticipated when we wrote the underlying policy.

Additional capital that we may require in the future may not be available to us or may be available to us only
on unfavorable terms.

Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including state regulatory requirements, the
financial stability of our reinsurers and our ability to write new business and establish premium rates sufficient to
cover our estimated claims. We may need to raise additional capital or curtail our growth if the capital of our
insurance subsidiaries is insufficient to support future operating requirements and/or cover claims. If we had to raise
additional capital, equity or debt financing might not be available to us or might be available only on terms that are
not favorable. In the case of equity financings, dilution to our shareholders could result and the securities sold may
have rights, preferences and privileges senior to the common stock. In addition, under certain circumstances, the
sale of our common stock, or securities convertible or exchangeable into shares of our commeon stock, at a price per
share less than the market value of our common stock may result in an adjustment to the conversion price at which
shares of our existing convertible preferred stock may be converted into shares of our common stock. If we cannot
obtain adequate capital on favorable terms or at all, we may be unable to support future growth or operating
requirements and, as a result, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be adversely affected.

If we are unable to realize our investment objectives, our financial condition and results of operations may be
adversely affected.

Investment income is an important component of our net income. As of December 31, 2006, our investment
portfolio, including cash and cash equivalents, had a carrying value of $665.5 million. For the year ended
December 31, 2006, we had $25.4 million of net investment income. Qur investment portfolio is managed under
investment guidelines approved by our board of directors. Although these guidelines stress diversification and
capital preservation, our investments are subject to a variety of risks, including risks related to general economic
conditions, interest rate fluctuations and market volatility. General economic conditions may be adversely affected
by U.S. involvement in hostilities with other countries and large-scale acts of terrorism, or the threat of hostilities or
terrorist acts.

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary policies and domestic and
international economic and political conditions. Changes in interest rates could have an adverse effect on the value
of our investment portfolio and future investment income. For example, changes in interest rates can expose us to
prepayment risks on mortgage-backed securities included in our investment portfolio. When interest rates fall,
mortgage-backed securities are prepaid more quickly than expected and the holder must reinvest the proceeds at
lower interest rates. In periods of increasing interest rates, mortgage-backed securities are prepaid more slowly,
which may require us to receive interest payments that are below the interest rates then prevailing for longer than
expected.

These and other factors affect the capital markets and, consequently, the value of our investment portfolio and

our investment income. Any significant decline in our investment income would adversely affect our revenues and
net income and, as a result, increase our shareholders’ deficit and decrease our surplus.
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Our business is dependent on the efforts of our executive officers because of their industry expertise,
knowledge of our markets and relationships with the independent agencies that sell our insurance.

Qur success is dependent on the efforts of owr executive officers because of their industry expertise, knowledge
of our markets and refationships with our independent agencies. Our executive officers are C. Allen Bradley, Jr.,
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer; Geoffrey R. Banta, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer; Craig P. Leach, Executive Vice President, Sales and Marketing; David (. Narigen, Executive Vice
President; and Todd Walker, Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. We have entered into
employment agreements with each of our executive officers. The employment agreements with Messrs. Bradley,
Banta, and Leach expire in January 2008, unless extended. The employment agreements with Messrs. Narigon and
Walker expire in September 2009, unless extended. Should any of our executive officers cease working for us, we
may be unable to find acceptable replacements with comparable skills and experience in the workers’ compensation
insurance industry and the hazardous industries that we target. As a result, our operations may be disrupted and our
business may be adversely affected. We do not currently maintain life insurance policies with respect to our
executive officers.

AMERISAFE is an insurance holding company and does not have any direct operations.

AMERISAFE is a holding company that transacts business through its operating subsidiaries, including
American Interstate. AMERISAFE’s primary assets are the capital stock of these operating subsidiaries. The ability
of AMERISAFE to pay dividends to our shareholders depends upon the surplus and earnings of our subsidiaries and
their ability to pay dividends to AMERISAFE. Payment of dividends by our insurance subsidiaries is restricted by
state insurance laws, including laws establishing minimum solvency and liquidity thresholds, and could be subject to
contractual restrictions in the future, including those imposed by indebtedness we may incur in the future. See
“Business—Regulation—Dividend Limitations.” in Item lof this report. As a result, at times, AMERISAFE may
not be able to receive dividends from its insurance subsidiaries and may not receive dividends in amounts necessary
to pay dividends on our capital stock. Based on reported capital and surplus at December 31, 2006, American
Interstate would have been permitted under Louisiana insurance law to pay dividends to AMERISAFE in 2007 in an
amount up to $19.6 million without approval by the Louisiana Department of Insurance.

In addition, our ability to pay dividends is subject to restrictions in the articles of incorporation of
AMERISAFE that prohibit us from paying dividends on our common stock {other than in additicnal shares of
common stock) without the consent of the holders of two-thirds of the outstanding shares of our convertible
preferred stock. If holders of our convertible preferred stock consent to the payment of a dividend, we must pay a
dividend to the holders of our convertible preferred stock on an as-converted to common stock basis equal to the
dividend we pay to holders of our common stock. Currently, we do not intend to pay dividends on our common
stock,

Assessments and premium surcharges for state gnaranty funds, second injury funds and other mandatory
pooling arrangements may reduce our profitability.

Most states require insurance companies licensed to do business in their state to participate in guaranty funds,
which require the insurance companies to bear a portion of the unfunded obligations of impaired, insolvent or failed
insurance companies. These obligations are funded by assessments, which are expected to centinue in the future.
State guaranty associations levy assessments, up to prescribed limits, on all member insurance companies in the
state based on their proportionate share of premiums written in the lines of business in which the impaired, insolvent
or failed insurance companies are engaged. See “Business—Regulation” in Item 1 of this report. Accordingly, the
assessments levied on us may increase as we increase our written premium. Some states also have laws that
establish second injury funds to reimburse insurers and employers for claims paid to injured employees for
aggravation of prior conditions or injuries. These funds are supported by either assessments or premium surcharges
based on case incurred losses.
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In addition, as a condition to conducting business in some states, insurance companies are reguired to
participate in residual market programs to provide insurance to those employers who cannot procure coverage from
an insurance carricr on a negotiated basis. Insurance companies generally can fulfill their residual market
obligations by, among other things, participating in a reinsurance pool where the results of all policies provided
through the pool are shared by the participating insurance companies. Although we price our insurance to account
for obligations we may have under these pooling arrangements, we may not be successful in estimating our liability
for these obligations. Accordingly, mandatory pooling arrangements may cause a decrease in our profits. At
December 31, 2006, we participated in mandatory pooling arrangements in 17 states and the District of Columbia.
As we write policics in new states that have mandatory pooling arrangements, we will be required to participate in
additional pooling arrangements. Further, the impairment, insolvency or failure of other insurance companies in
these pooling arrangements would likely increase the liability for other members in the pool. The effect of
assessments and premium surcharges or changes in them could reduce our profitability in any given period or limit
our ability to grow our business.

Being a public company has increased our expenses and administrative workload.

We completed our initial public offering in November 2005. As a public company, we must comply with
various laws and regulations, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and related rules of the Securitics and
Exchange Commission, or the SEC, and requirements of the NASDAQ Global Select Market. We were not required
to comply with these laws and requirements as a private company. Complying with these laws and regulations
requires the time and attention of our board of directors and management and increases our expenses. Among other
things, we must:

e maintain and evaluate a system of internal controls over financial reporting in compliance with the
requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the related rules and regulations of the SEC
and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board;

s maintain policies relating 1o disclosure controls and procedures;

o  prepare and distribute periodic reports in compliance with our obligations under federal securities Jaws;

o institute a more comprehensive compliance function, including with respect to corporate governance; and
» involve to a greater degree our outside legal counsel and accountants in the above activities.

In addition, being a public company has made it more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability
insurance. In the future, we may be required to accept reduced coverage or incur substantially higher costs to obtain
this coverage. These factors could also make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified executives and
members of our board of directors, particularly directors willing to serve on our audit committee.

We may have exposure to losses from terrorism for which we are required by law to provide coverage,

When writing workers’ compensation insurance policies, we are required by law to provide workers’
compensation benefits for losses arising from acts of terrorism. The impact of any terrorist act is unpredictable, and
the ultimate impact on us would depend upon the nature, extent, location and timing of such an act. Qur 2007
reinsurance treaty program affords coverage for up to $50 million for losses arising from terrorism, subject to
applicable deductibles, retentions and aggregate limits. Notwithstanding the protection provided by reinsurance and
the Terrorism Risk Insurance Extension Act of 2003, the risk of severe losses to us from acts of terrorism has not
been eliminated because our reinsurance treaty program includes various sub-limits and exclusions limiting our
reinsurers’ obligation to cover losses caused by acts of terrorism. Accordingly, events constituting acts of terrorism
may not be covered by, or may exceed the capacity of, our reinsurance and could adversely affect our business and
financial condition. [n addition, the Terrorism Risk Insurance Extension Act of 2005 is set to expire on December
31, 2007. If this law is not extended or replaced by legislation affording a similar level of protection to the
insurance industry against insured losses arising out of acts of terrorism, reinsurance for losses arising from
terrorism may be unavailable or prohibitively expensive, and we may be further exposed to losses arising from acts
of terrorism.
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Risks Related to Our Common Stock
The trading price of our common stock may decline,

The trading price of our common stock may decline for many reasons, some of which are beyond our control,
including, among others:

*  our results of operations;

¢ changes in expectations as to our future results of operations, including financial estimates and projections
by securities analysts and investors;

s results of operations that vary from those expected by securities analysts and investors;
¢  developments in the healthcare or insurance industries;

s changes in laws and regulations;

e announcements of claims against us by third parties; and

¢ future issuances or sales of our common stock, including issuances upon conversion of our outstanding
convertible preferred stock.

In addition, the stock market in general has experienced significant volatility that often has been unrelated to
the operating performance of companies whose shares are traded. These market fluctuations could adversely affect
the trading price of our common stock, regardless of our actual operating performance,

Securities analysts may discontinue coverage of our common stock or may issue negative reports, which may
adversely affect the trading price of our common stock.

There is no assurance that securities analysts will continue to cover our company. If securities analysts do not
cover our company, this lack of coverage may adversely affect the trading price of our commeon stock. The trading
market for our common stock relies in part on the research and reports that securities analysts publish about us or
our business. If one or more of the analysts who cover our company downgrades our common stock, the trading
price of our common stock may decline rapidly. If one or more of these analysts ceases to cover our company, we
could lose visibility in the market, which, in turn, could also cause the trading price of our commeon stock to decline.

Future sales of our common stock may affect the trading price of our common stock and the future exercise
of options or the exercise of the conversion rights of our convertible preferred stock may lower our stock
price.

We cannot predict what effect, if any, future sales of our common stock, or the availability of shares for future
sale, will have on the trading price of our common stock. Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common
stock in the public market, or the perception that such sales could occur, may adversely affect the trading price of
our common stock and may make it more difficult for you to sell your shares at a time and price that you determine
appropriate. As of the date of this report, there were 18,708,898 shares of our commeon stock outstanding and
1,214,771 shares of our common stock are issuable upon the conversion of shares of our outstanding convertible
preferred stock. Upon conversion, these shares of common stock will be freely tradable without restriction or
further registration under the Securities Act. There are outstanding options exercisable to purchase 1,392,000 shares
of our common stock, of which 1,292,000 were granted in November 2005 and 100,000 were granted in September
2006. All options vest 20% each year commencing on the first anniversary of the date of grant.
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The terms of our convertible preferred stock could adversely affect the value of our common stock.

The conversion price of our convertible preferred stock is currently $20.58 per share and our outstanding
convertible preferred stock is presently convertible into 1,214,770 common stock. Subject to certain exceptions, the
conversion price of our convertible preferred stock may decrease if we issue additional shares of our common stock
for less than the market price of our common stock.

Holders of our convertible preferred stock have the right to cause us to file a registration statement with the
SEC to sell the shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of the convertible preferred stock. Sales of shares
of common stock issuable upon conversion of our convertible preferred stock could adversely affect the trading
price of our common stock.

We may not pay dividends on our common stock {other than in additional shares of common stock) without the
consent of the holders of two-thirds of the outstanding shares of our convertible preferred stock. 1f holders of our
convertible preferred stock consent to the payment of a dividend by us, we must pay a dividend to the holders of our
convertible preferred stock on an as-converted to common stock basis equal to the dividend we pay to holders of our
common stock.

The terms of our articles of incorporation relating to our convertible preferred stock could impede a change of
control of our company. Following a change of control, holders of our convertible preferred stock have the right to
require us to redeem their shares at a redemption price of $100 per share plus the cash value of any accrued and
unpaid dividends. The redemption provisions of our convertible preferred stock could have the effect of
discouraging a future change of control of our company.

Provisions of our articles of incorporation and bylaws and under the laws of the states of Louisiana and Texas
could impede an attempt to replace or remove our directors or otherwise effect a change of control of our
company, which could diminish the value of our common stock.

Our articles of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that may make it more difficult for sharcholders to
replace or remove directors even if the shareholders consider it beneficial to do so. In addition, these provisions
could delay or prevent a change of control of our company that shareholders might consider favorable. Our articles
of incorporation and bylaws contain the following provisions that could have an anti-takeover effect:

¢ election of our directors is classified, meaning that the members of only one of three classes of our
directors are elected each year;

s  shareholders have limited ability to call shareholder meetings and to bring business before a meeting of
shareholders;

e shareholders may not act by written consent, unless the consent is unanimous; and

s  our board of directors may authorize the issuance of junior preferred stock with such rights, preferences
and privileges as the board deems appropriate.

These provisions may make it difficult for shareholders to replace management and could have the effect of
discouraging a future takcover attempt that is not approved by our board of directors, but which individual
shareholders might consider favorable.

We are incotporated in Texas and are subject to Part 13 of the Texas Business Corporation Act, Under this
statute, our ability to enter into a business combination with any affiliated shareholder is limited.
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In addition, two of our three insurance company subsidiaries, American Interstate and Silver Qak Casualty, are
incorporated in Louisiana and the other, American Interstate of Texas, is incorporated in Texas. Under Louisiana
and Texas insurance law, advance approval by the state insurance department is required for any change of control
of an insurer. “Control” is presumed to exist through the direct or indirect ownership of 10% or more of the voting
securities of a domestic insurance company or any entity that controls a domestic insurance company. Obtaining
these approvals may result in the material delay of, or deter, any such transaction.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2. Properties.

We own our 45,000 square foot executive offices located in DeRidder, Louisiana. In addition, we lease an
additional 28,000 square feet of office space in DeRidder, Louisiana, pursuant to a lease agreement that requires
annual lease payments of $250,000 and expires on December 31, 2007. This lease agreement may be extended for
two additional one-year periods, at our option. We also lease space at other locations for our service and claims
representative offices.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

In the ordinary course of our business, we are involved in the adjudication of claims resulting from workplace
injuries. We are not involved in any legal or administrative claims that we belicve are likely to have a materially
adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2006, no matters were submitted to a vote of shareholders.
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PART II

Item §. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters And Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities.

Market Information and Holders

Our commen stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “AMSF” and has been
traded on the NASDAQ since our initial public offering on November 18, 2005. Prior to that time, there was no
public market for our common stock. As of February 20, 2007, there were 35 holders of record of our common
stock.

The table below sets forth the reported high and low sales prices of our common stock as quoted on the
NASDAQ for the periods presented.

High Low

2005

Fourth Quarter (beginning November 18, 2003) ..., $ 1098 $ 812
2006

FIEST QUAITET. ... cvevirierivercc e resnte e resa oo e e sassennestsesseseressssnesscensnssssasaens $ 1250 $ 836
SeCONd QUAMTET L...c.iiiiie et ettt $ 1435 $1025
THIFA QUATLET . ccviveierciiiiciirii et sb e st sss et eses s b st esessatesnenessesneersesaenentes $ 13.50 $ 930
FOUM QUATLET .......oooeececeectecti bbb bbb bbbt st s sie e e e $ 15.82 $ 943
Dividend Policy

We have not paid cash dividends on our common stock in the prior two years. We currently intend to retain
any future earnings to finance our operations and growth. As a result, we do not expect to pay any cash dividends
on our common stock for the foreseeable future. Any future determination to pay cash dividends on our common
stock will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will be dependent on our earnings, financial condition,
operating results, capital requirements, any contractual, regulatory or other restrictions on the payment of dividends
by our subsidiaries to AMERISAFE, and other factors that our board of directors deems relevant,

AMERISAFE is a holding company and has no direct operations. Qur ability to pay dividends in the future
depends on the ability of our operating subsidiaries to pay dividends to us. Our insurance company subsidiaries are
regulated insurance companies and therefore are subject to significant regulatory restrictions limiting their ability to
declare and pay dividends.

Our ability to pay dividends is also subject to restrictions set forth in our articles of incorporation, which
prohibit us from paying dividends on our common stock (other than in additional shares of common stock) without
the consent of the holders of two-thirds of the outstanding shares of our convertible preferred stock. 1f holders of
our convertible preferred stock consent to the payment of a dividend by us, we must pay a dividend to the holders of
our convertible preferred stock on an as-converted to common stock basis equal to the dividend we pay to holders of
our common stock.
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Descripticn of Capital Stock
AMERISAFE is authorized to issue 69,000,000 shares of capital stock, consisting of:

e 3,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, of which:

. 1,500,000 shares are designated as Series A preferred stock, of which 862,924 shares have been
canceled and retired and cannot be reissued; and

. 1,500,000 shares arc designated as Scrics B preferred stock;
e 500,000 shares of convertible preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, of which:

. 300,000 shares are designated as Series C convertible deferred pay preferred stock of which
250,000 shares have been canceled and retired and cannot be reissued; and

. 200,000 shares are designated as Series D non-voting convertible deferred pay preferred stock;

s 500,000 shares of Series E preferred stock, par valuc $0.01 per share, of which 317,744 shares have been
canceled and retired and cannot be reissued,;

s 10,000,000 shares of junior preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share;

s 50,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share; and

5,000,000 shares of convertible non-voting common stock, par value $0.01 per share.

As of February 20, 2007, the following shares of our capilal stock were outstanding:

* 50,000 shares of Series C convertible preferred stock;
* 200,000 shares of Series D convertible preferred stock; and
» 18,708,898 shares of common stock.

As of February 20, 2007, there were no outstanding shares of Series A, Series B or Series E preferred stock,
junior preferred stock or non-voting common stock. Our Series C and Series D convertible preferred stock are
collectively referred to in this report as our “convertible preferred stock.”

The following is a summary of certain provisions of our outstanding capital stock and our non-voting common
stock {which non-voling common stock is issuable upon converston of our Series D convertible preferred stock).
This summary is qualified in its entirety by the provisions of our articles of incorporation, a copy of which is filed as
an exhibit to this report.
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Common Stock and Non-Voting Common Stock

Foting. Each holder of our commeon stock is entitled to one vote for each share on all matters to be voted on by
our sharcholders. Holders of our common stock vote together as a single class with the holders of our Series C
convertible preferred stock. Holders of shares of non-voting common stock are not entitled to vote on any matter to
be voted on by our shareholders, except as required by Texas law.

Dividends, Holders of common stock and non-voting common stock are entitled to receive dividends, on an
equal basis, at the time and in the amount as our board may from time to time determine, subject to any preferential
amounts payable to holders of our outstanding preferred stock. Qur articles of incorporation prohibit us from paying
dividends on our common stock and non-voting common stock {other than in additional shares of commaon stock or
non-voting common stock, as applicable) without the consent of the holders of two-thirds of the outstanding shares
of our convertible preferred stock. [fholders of our convertible preferred stock consent to the payment of a dividend
by us, we must pay a dividend to the holders of our convertible preferred stock (on an as-converted to common stock
or nen-voting common stock basis) equal to the dividend we pay to the holders of our common stock and non-voting
common stock.

Stock Repurchases. Our articles of incorporation prohibit us from purchasing or redeeming any shares of our
common stock or non-voting common stock without the consent of the holders of two-thirds of the outstanding
shares of our convertible preferred stock.

Liguidation. Upon a liquidation and dissolution of our company, the holders of common stock and non-voting
common stock are entitled to receive, on an equal basis, all assets available for distribution to shareholders, subject
to any preferential amounts payable to holders of our then-outstanding preferred stock.

Issuance and Conversion of Non-Voting Common Stock, Shares of gur non-voting common stock are issuable
upon conversion of our Series D convertible preferred stock at the option of the holders of our Series ) convertible
preferred stock. At the option of the holder, each share of non-voting common stock may be converted at any time
into one share of common stock.

Convertible Preferred Stock

Voting. Each holder of our Series C convertible preferred stock is entitled to one vote for each share of our
common stock into which the Series C convertible preferred stock is convertible on all matters to be voted on by our
shareholders. Holders of our convertible preferred stock vote together as a single class with holders of our common
stock. The Series D convertible preferred stock is non-voting. However, the holders of Series C convertible
preferred stock and Series D convertible preferred stock have the right to vote as a separate class on any amendment
to our articles of incorporation that would adversely affect the rights, privileges and preferences of the convertible
preferred stock.

In addition, the holders of two-thirds of our convertible preferred stock must approve any payment of a
dividend or distribution on our common stock or non-voting common stock (other than in additional shares of
common stock or non-voting common stock, as applicable) or the purchase or redemption of any shares of our
common stock or non-voting common stock.

Dividends. Prior to the completion of our initial public offering in November 2005, holders of our convertible
preferred stock were entitled to receive pay-in-kind dividends at a rate of $7.00 per share per annum, payable in
shares of Series E preferred stock. Under the terms of our articles of incorporation, holders of our convertible
preferred stock are no longer entitled to receive these pay-in-kind dividends as a result of the redemption and
exchange of all outstanding shares of our Series A preferred stock in connection with our initial public offering.
However, if the holders of two-thirds of our outstanding convertible preferred stock consent to the payment of a
dividend by us to the holders of our common stock or non-voting common stock, the holders of our outstanding
convertible preferred stock will receive (on an as-converted to common stock or non-voting common stock basis) a
dividend equal to the dividend to be paid to the holders of our common stock and non-voting common stock.
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Liguidation Rights. Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our company, holders of our
convertible preferred stock are entitled to receive, in cash, an amount equal to the greater of:

e  $100 for each share of convertible preferred stock outstanding, plus the cash value, calculated at $100 per
share, of all accrued and unpaid dividends; and

¢ the amount distributable to the holders of our convertible preferred stock upon liquidation, dissolution or
winding up had the holders converted their shares into common stock or non-voting common stock, as the
case may be, in accordance with the terms of the convertible preferred stock immediately prior to
liquidation, dissolution or winding up.

All liguidation payments in respect of shares of our convertible preferred stock are required to be paid before
any distribution is made in respect of our Series A preferred stock, junior preferred stock, common stock and non-
voting common stock.

Conversion. The Series C convertible preferred stock is convertible into our common stock, and the Series D
convertible preferred stock is convertible into our non-voting common stock, in each case at a conversion rate
calculated by multiplying the number of shares to be converted by $100 and dividing the result by the then-
applicable conversion price, as adjusted from time to time. As of March 15, 2006, the conversion price was $20.58
per share. Our convertible preferred stock is convertible:

s atany time at the option of the holder;

s atour option at any time following the consummation of any public offering of our equity securities or a
change of control of our company if the closing price for our common stock for the prior 20 trading days
is, or the proceeds from the change of control results in a value for our outstanding common stock of, at
least $651.60 per share; and

*  automatically upon consummation of a public offering of our common stock with gross proceeds to us of
at least $40 million at a price to public of at least $651.60 per share, subject to adjustment to retlect stock
splits, combinations and stock dividends.

Conversion Price Adjustments. Subject to certain exceptions, the conversion price will be adjusted if we issue
or sell shares of our common stock or non-voting commen stock (including options to acquire shares and securities
convertible into or exchangeable for shares of common stock or non-voting common stock) without consideration or
for a consideration per share less than the market price of our common stock or non-voting common stock in effect
immediately prior to the issuance or sale. In that event, the conversion price will be reduced to a conversion price
(calculated to the nearest cent) determined by dividing:

*  an amount equal to the sum of:

. the number of shares of common stock and non-voting common stock outstanding immediately
prior to the issuance or sale {including as outstanding all shares of common stock and non-voting
common stock issuable upon conversion of outstanding convertibte preferred stock) multiplied by
the then-existing market price of our common stock; plus

. the consideration, if any, received by us upon the issuance or sale; by
¢ the total number of shares of common stock and non-voting common stock outstanding immediately after
such issuance or sale {including as outstanding all shares of common stock and non-voting common stock

issuable upon conversion of outstanding convertible preferred stock, without giving effect to any
adjustment in the number of shares issuable by reason of such issue and sale).
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If we issue or sell shares of common stock or non-voting common stock for cash, the cash consideration
received will be deemed to be the amount received by us, without deduction for any expenses incurred or any
underwriting commissions or concessions paid or allowed by us. If we issue or sell shares of common stock or non-
voting common stock for a consideration other than cash, the amount of the consideration other than cash received
shall be deemed to be the fair value of such consideration as determined in good faith by our board of directors,
without deduction for any expenses incurred or any underwriting commissions or concessions paid or allowed by us.

No adjustments to the conversion price are required for issuances of shares of our common stock or non-voting
common stock upon any conversion of our convertible preferred stock, under our equity incentive plans or in
connection with any acquisition by us.

Redemption. Following a change of control of our company, holders of our convertible preferred stock have
the right to require us to redeem their shares at a redemption price of $100 plus the cash value, calculated at $100
per share, of all accrued and unpaid dividends. Qur articles of incorporation define a change of control of our
company for this purpose to include:

e the sale, lease or transfer of all or substantially all of our assets in one or a series of related transactions to
any person; or

s the acquisition of beneficial ownership by any person, other than Welsh Carson, in one or a series of
retated transactions, of our voting stock representing more than 50% of the voting power of all outstanding
shares of our voting stock, whether by merger, consolidation or otherwise, other than by way of a public
offering of our equity securities.

In addition, we may at any time, on 30 days’ notice, redeem all, but not less than all, shares of convertible
preferred stock at a redemption price of $103.50 plus the cash value, calculated at $100 per share, of any accrued
and unpaid dividends. Until payment of the redemption price, we may not make any payment or distribution upon
any preferred stock, common stock or non-voting common stock.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following tables summarize certain selected financial data that should be read in conjunction with our
audited financial statements and accompanying notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2006 included in this
report and “Item. 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Income Statement Data

Gross premiums Writlen.. .....oooveverceecae $ 332,491 $ 290,891 $ 264962 $ 223,590 § 185,093
Ceded premiums written...........c..coocevee. (19.950) (21.,541) (21,951) (27.600) (26.563)
Net premiums WIitlen .....ooeveeiciccnicnnnne $ 312,541 § 269350 § 2430040 § 195990 5 158,530
Net premiums eamed.........coccoeveeviienne $ 299,303 § 256,568 5 234,733 § 179,847 ¥ 163,257
Net investment iNCOME ........c.coccveeevereinne 25,383 16,882 12,217 10,106 9,419

Net realized gains (losses) on

investments (1) coeeeereeeeececeeeenen 7,389 2,272 1,421 316 (895)
Fee and other income..........ccocoovriinnnne. 6435 561 589 462 2.082

Total TEVENUES ..ovvvveeerceerceereereecreeennnes 332,720 276,283 248.960 190,731 173,863 .
Loss and loss adjustment expenses

INCUITEd....cveieeecee e 169,484 204,056 174,186 129,250 121,062
Underwriting and certain other

operating costs (2) ..ccoveerervinrninennn 35,024 31,113 28,792 23,062 22,674
COMMISSIONS 1.vvvererverrereisererernesrrecnsranes 19,030 16,226 14,160 11,003 9,189
Salaries and benefits .ooovvvereverievivnrrererenns 17,234 16,045 15,229 15,037 16,541
Interest eXPense .....cocvevvevvrvisnicinicee e 3,496 2,844 1,799 203 498
Policyholder dividends (3)........c.cc....... 6.006 4 1,108 736 156

Total eXPenses ..coovevveerevereeeeereens 280.274 270,288 235,274 179,291 170,120
Income before taxes........ccoeeveeevnenene. 52,446 5,995 13,686 11,440 3,743
Income tax expense (benefit)................. 15.088 635 3,129 2.846 (1.438)

NEt INCOME. .. oovireiiiiriiniieiseeeiererseernes 37,358 5,930 10,557 8,594 5,181
Payment-in-kind preferred dividends .... — (8.593) (92.781) (10,133) {9.453)
Net income (loss) available to

common shareholders.......ccocovvvenenns § 37358 § (2.663) § 776  $ (1,539 § (4272
Portion allocable to common

shareholders (4) ....ccoeveeieern s 88.6% 100.0% 70.2% 100.0% 100.0%
Net income (loss) allocable to

common shareholders..........cccoeeeeeee. $ 3309 § (2663) § 345 0§ (1,539) § (4,272)
Diluted earnings per common share

equIvalEnt ... $ 1.88 § (1.25) § 214 $ (855 % (23.72)
Diluted weighted average of common

share equivalents outstanding.............. 17,597,328 2,129.492 255,280 180,125 180,125

Selected Insurance Ratios

Current accident year loss ratio (3) ....... 67.4% 71.0% 68.5% 70.6% 71.8%
Prior accident year loss ratio (6)............ (0.8)% 8.5% 5.7% 1.3% 2.4%
Net 1088 Tat0 .oevveevcree e 66.6% 79.5% 74.2% 71.9% 74.2%
Net underwriting expense ratio (7)........ 23.8% 24.7% 24.8% 27.3% 29.7%
Net dividend ratio (3}(8) -ooccovnnevnens 2.0% 0.0% 0.5% 0.4% 0.1%
Net combined ratio (9) ...ovveevinininns 92.4% 104.2% 99.5% 99.6% 104.0%
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As of December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

(In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalents...................... § 26,748 § 49286 § 25421 § 49815 3 44,677
INVEStMENtS ..o e 638,780 533,618 364,868 257,729 205,315
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers.... 109,603 122,562 198,977 211,774 214,342
Premiums receivable, net....................... 144,384 123,934 114,141 108,380 95,291
Deferred income taxes.................. 29,466 22,413 15,624 12,713 11,372
Deferred policy acquisition costs........... 18,486 16,973 12,044 11.820 9,505
Deferred charges.........oooooirniiie. 3,548 3,182 3,054 2,987 1,997
Total SSELS ..oeeeneeveceee e 994,146 892,320 754,187 678,608 603,801
Reserves for loss and loss

adjustment CXPENSes ... ovveveerrnsrrerrrrens 519,178 484,485 432,880 377,559 346,542
Unearned premiums..........cocooeevvneenenenn. 137,761 124,524 111,741 103.462 87,319
Insurance-related assessments ............... 40,886 35,135 29,876 26,133 23,743
Debt.iiiieciec e 36,090 36,090 36,090 16,310 8,000
Redeemable preferred stock (10) 25,000 50,000 131,916 126,424 121,300
Shareholders’ equity (deficit) (11)......... 158,784 97,346 (42,862) (20,652) (25,100}

(1) In 2006, includes $3.5 million net realized gains in connection with the sale of all equity securities as discussed under “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Investment Portfolio” in Item 7 of this report.

(2) Includes policy acquisition expenses, such as assessments, premium taxes and other general and administrative expenses, excluding
comimissions and salaries and benefits, related to insurance operations and corporate operating expenses.

(3) In 2006, includes $5.2 million of dividends accrued for policyholders in Florida. Florida law requires payment of dividends to Florida
policyholders pursuant to a formula based on underwriting results from policies written in Florida in a consecutive three-year period.

(4) Reflects the participation rights of our convertible preferred stock. See Note 12 to our audited financial statements.

(5) The current accident year loss ratio is calculated by dividing loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred for the current accident year by
the current year’s net premiums earned.

(6) The prior accident year loss ratio is calculated by dividing the change in loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred for pricr accident
years by the current year’s net premiums eamed.

(7} The net underwriting expense ratio is calculated by dividing underwriting and certain other operating costs, commissions and salaries and
benefits by the current year’s net premiums earned.

(8) The net dividend ratio is calculated by dividing policyholder dividends by the current year’s net premiums eamed.

(9) The net combined ratio is the sum of the net loss ratio, the net underwriting expense ratio and the net dividend ratio.

(10) Includes our Series C and Series D convertible preferred stock, each of which is mandatorily redeemable upon the occurrence of certain
events that are deemed to be outside our centrol. In November 2006, 250,000 shares of Series C preferred stock were converted into
shares of common stock by the holders in connection with a secondary public offering of common stock. For years prior to 2005, also
includes our Series A preferred stock, which was mandatorily redeemable upon the occurrence of certain events that were deemed to be
outside our control. In connection with the initial public offering of our common stock in November 2005, all outstanding shares of our
Series A preferred stock were redeemed and exchanged for shares of our common stock.

(11) In 1997, we entered into a recapitalization transaction that resulted ina $164.2 million charge to retained earnings.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction
with our consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in ltem 8 of this report. This discussion
includes forward-looking statements that are subject to risks, uncertaintics and other factors described in Item 1A of
this report. These factors could cause our actual results in 2007 and beyond to differ materially from those
expressed in, or implied by, those forward-looking statements.

Overview

AMERISAFE is a holding company that markets and underwrites workers’ compensation insurance through its
subsidiaries. Workers’ compensation insurance covers statutorily prescribed benefits that employers are obligated to
provide to their employees who are injured in the course and scope of their employment. Qur business strategy is
focused on providing this coverage to small to mid-sized employers engaged in hazardous industries, principally
construction, trucking and logging, Employers engaged in hazardous industries pay substantially higher than
average rates for workers’ compensation insurance compared to employers in other industries, as measured per
payroll dollar. The higher premium rates are due to the nature of the work performed and the inherent workplace
danger of our target employers. Hazardous industry employers also tend to have less frequent but more severe
claims as compared to employers in other industries due to the nature of their businesses. We provide proactive
safety reviews of employers” workplaces. These safety reviews are a vital component of our underwriting process
and also promote safer workplaces. We utilize intensive claims management practices that we believe permit us to
reduce the overall cost of our claims. In addition, our audit services ensure that our policyholders pay the
appropriate premiums required under the terms of their policies and enable us to monitor payroll patterns or
aberrations that cause underwriting, safety or fraud concerns. We believe that the higher premiums typically paid by
our policyholders, together with our disciplined underwriting and safety, claims and audit services, provide us with
the opportunity to earn attractive returns on equity.

We actively market our insurance in 31states and the District of Columbia through independent agencies, as
well as through our wholly owned insurance agency subsidiary. We are also licensed in an additional 14 states and
the U.S. Virgin Islands.

One of the key financial measures that we use to ¢valuate our operating performance is return on average
equity. We calculate return on average equity by dividing net income by the average of sharcholders® equity plus
redeemable preferred stock. Our return on average equity was 22.6% in 2006, 5.0% in 2005, and 10.8% in 2004.
Our overall financial objective is to produce a return on equity of at least 15% over the long-term while maintaining
optimal operating leverage in our insurance subsidiaries that is commensurate with our A.M. Best rating. For 2007,
we anticipate producing a combined ratio of 95% or lower. Qur combined ratio was 92.4% in 2006, 104.2% in 2005
and 99.5% in 2004. |

Investment income is an important element of cur net income. Because the period of time between our receipt
of premiums and the ultimate settlement of claims is often several years or longer, we are able to invest cash from
premiums for significant periods of time. As a result, we are able to generate more investment income from our
premiums as compared to insurance companies that operate in many other lines of business. From December 31,
2002 to December 31, 2006, our investment portfolio, including cash and cash equivalents, increased from $250.0
million to $665.5 million and produced net investment income of $25.4 millien in 2006, $16.9 million in 2005 and
$12.2 million in 2004. In the third quarter of 2005, we received $61.3 million from one of our reinsurers pursuant to
a commutation agreement. In the fourth quarter of 2005 we completed our initial public offering, and we retained
$53.0 million of the net proceeds from the offering. Of the net proceeds we retained, we contributed $45.0 million
to our insurance subsidiaries. The remaining $8.0 million will be used to make additional capital contributions to
our insurance company subsidiaries as necessary to supplement our anticipated growth and for general corporate
purposes.
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The use of reinsurance is an important component of our business strategy. We purchase reinsurance to protect
us from the impact of large losses. Our reinsurance program for 2007 includes 16 reinsurers that provide coverage
to us in excess of a certain specified loss amount, or retention level. Under our reinsurance program, we pay our
reinsurers a percentage of our gross premiums earned and, in turn, the reinsurers assume an allocated portion of
losses for the accident year. Our 2007 reinsurance program provides us with reinsurance coverage for each loss
occurrence up to $50.0 million, subject to applicable deductibles, retentions and aggregate limits. However, our
reinsurance coverage is limited to $10.0 million for any single claimant for the first four tayers and $5.0 miltion for
any single claimant for the fifth layer, subject to applicable deductibles, retentions and aggregate limits. We retain
the first $2.0 million of each loss and are subject to an annual aggregate deductible of approximately $6.0 million for
losses berween $2.0 million and $5.0 milticn before our reinsurers are obligated to reimburse us, The aggregate
limit for all claims for losses between $2.0 million and 5.0 million is approximately $51.0 million. As losses are
incurred and recorded, we record amounts recoverable from reinsurers for the portion of the losses ceded to our
reinsurers.

We retain a significant amount of losses under our reinsurance programs. Based, in part, on the cost of
reinsurance, we have increased our retention level in each of the past five years. In 2002, our retention level was
£500,000. In 2003, we increased our retention to $500,000 plus 20% of each loss occurrence between $500,000 and
$5.0 million. In 2004, we further increased our retention level to $1.0 million. In addition, for losses between $1.0
million and $2.0 million, we had an annual aggregate deductible of $300,000 and, after we satisfied the deductible,
retained 10% of each loss occurrence. For losses between $2.0 million and $5.0 million, we had an annual
aggregate deductible of $1.3 million and, after we satisfied the deductible, retained 20% of each loss occurrence. In
2005, we continued to retain the first $1.0 million of each loss occurrence. However, for losses between $1.0
miltion and $5.0 million, we increased our annual aggregate deductible to $5.6 million and, after we satisfied the
deductible, retained 10% of each loss occurrence. In 2006, we retained the first $1.0 million of each loss and were
subject to an annual aggregate deductible of $15.4 million for losses between $1.0 million and $2.0 million before
our reinsurers were obligated to reimburse us. After the deductible was satisfied, we retained 25.0% of each loss
between $1.0 million and $2,0 million, The aggregate limit for all claims for losses between $1.0 million and $2.0
million was $5.4 million. We were subject to an annual aggregate deductible of $7.7 million for losses between $2.0
million and $5.0 million before our reinsurers were obligated to reimburse us. The aggregate limit for all claims for
losses between $2,0 million and $5.0 million was $39.0 million. As a result of increases in our retention levels and
collections from our reinsurers in the normal course of business, our amounts recoverable from reinsurers decreased
from $122.6 million at December 31, 2005 to $109.6 million at December 31, 2006.

Our most significant balance sheet liability is our reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses. We record
reserves for estimated losses under insurance policies that we write and for loss adjustment expenses related to the
investigation and scttlement of claims. Qur reserves for loss and loss adjustment cxpenses represent the estimated
cost of all reported and unrcported loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred and unpaid at any given point in time
based on known facts and circumstances. Reserves are based on estimates of the most likely ultimate cost of
individual claims. These estimates are inherently uncertain. Judgment is required to determine the relevance of our
historical experience and industry information under current facts and circumstances. The interpretation of this
historical and industry data can be impacted by external forces, principally frequency and severity of future claims,
length of time to achieve ultimate settlement of claims, inflation of medical costs and wages, insurance policy
coverage interpretations, jury determinations and legislative changes. Accordingly, our reserves may prove to be
inadequate to cover our actual losses. If we change our estimates, these changes would be reflected in our results of
operations during the period in which they are made, with increases in our reserves resulting in decreases in our
earnings. In 2006, we decreased our estimates for prior year loss reserves by $2.2 million, which increased net
income by $1.4 million. We increased our estimates for prior year loss reserves by $8.7 million in 2005 and
$13.4 million in 2004. We also recorded a $13.2 million loss in connection with a commutation agreement with
Converium in 2005. These increased estimates and the commutation decreased our net income by $14.2 million in
2005 and $8.7 million in 2004.
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The workers® compensation insurance industry is cyclical in nature and influenced by many factors, including
price competition, medical cost increases, natural and man-made disasters, changes in interest rates, changes in state
laws and regulations and general economic conditions. A hard market cycle in our industry is characterized by
decreased competition that results in higher premium rates, more restrictive policy coverage terms and lower
commissions paid to agencies. In contrast, a soft market cycle is characterized by increased competition that results
in lower premium rates, expanded policy coverage terms and higher commissions paid to agencies. We currently
belicve that the workers’ compensation insurance industry is slowly transitioning to a more competitive market
environment. Our strategy across market cycles is to maintain underwriting profitability, deploy capital judiciously,
manage our expenses and focus on underserved markets within our target industries that we believe will provide
opportunities for greater returns,

Principal Revenue and Expense ltems
Our revenues consist primarily of the following:

Net Premiums Earned. Net premiums eamned is the earned portion of our net premiums written. Net
premiums written is equal to gross premiums written less premiums ceded to reinsurers. Gross premiums written
includes the estimated annual premiums from each insurance policy we write in our voluntary and assigned risk
businesses during a reporting period based on the policy effective date or the date the policy is bound, whichever is
later.

Premiums are earned on a daily pro rata basis over the term of the policy. At the end of each reporting period,
premiums written that are not earned are classified as uneamed premiums and are earned in subsequent periods over
the remaining term of the policy. Our insurance policies typically have a term of one year. Thus, for a one-year
policy written on July 1, 2006 for an employer with constant payroll during the term of the policy, we would eam
half of the premiums in 2006 and the other half in 2007. On a monthly basis, we also recognize net premium earned
from mandatory pooling arrangements,

We estimate the annual premiums to be paid by our policyholders when we issue the policies and record those
amounts on our balance sheet as premiums receivable, We conduct premium audits on all of our voluntary business
policyholders annualty, upon the expiration of each policy, including when the policy is renewed, The purpose of
these audits is to verify that policyholders have accurately reported their payroll expenses and employee job
classifications, and therefore have paid us the premium required under the terms of the policies. The difference
between the estimated premium and the audited premium is referved to as “earned but unbilled” premium, or EBUB
premium. EBUB premium can be higher or lower than the estimated premium. EBUB premium is subject to
significant variability and can either increase or decrease earned premium based upon several factors, including
changes in premium growth, industry mix and economic conditions. Due to the timing of audits and other
adjustments, actual EBUB premium is generally not determined for several months after the expiration of the policy.

Prior to 2006, we periodically reviewed EBUB premium trends. However, the variability in those trends
caused us to conclude that EBUB premium could not be reasonably estimated. As a result, we recorded EBUB
premium as gross written premium and earmed premium in the period that the premium audit was completed. In
2006, we again analyzed whether EBUB premiums could be reasonably estimated. Based on this most recent
analysis, at December 31, 2006, we recorded an estimate for EBUB premium of $5.3 million, or 1.6% of gross
premiums written in 2006. This adjustment for estimated EBUB premium less related losses and expenses,
increased our 2006 net income by $712,000. In future periods, we will review our estimate of EBUB premiums and
record an adjustment quarterly.
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Net Investment Income and Net Realized Gains and Losses on Investments. We invest our statutory surplus
funds and the funds supporting our insurance liabilities in fixed maturity and cquity sccurities. In addition, a portion
of these funds are held in cash and cash equivalents to pay current claims. Our net investment income includes
interest and dividends earned ot our invested assets. We assess the performance of our investment portfolio using a
standard tax equivalent yield metric. Investment income that is tax-exempt is increased by our marginal federal tax
rate of 35% to express yield on tax-exempt securities on the same basis as taxable securities. Net realized gains and
losses on our investments are reported separately from our net investment income. Net realized gains occur when
our investment securities are sold for more than their costs or amortized costs, as applicable. Net realized losses
occur when our investment securitics are sold for less than their costs or amortized costs, as applicable, or are
written down as a result of an other-than-temporary impairment. We classify all of our fixed maturity securities as
held-to-maturity and all of our equity securities as available-for-sale. Net unrealized gains or losses on our equity
securities are reported separately within accumulated other comprehensive income on our balance sheet.

Fee and Other Income. We recognize commission income earned on pelicies issued by other carriers that are
sold by our wholly owned insurance agency subsidiary as the related services are performed. We also recognize a
small portion of interest income from mandatory pooling arrangements in which we participate.

Qur expenses consist primarily of the following:

Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses Incurred. Loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred represents our
largest expense item and, for any given reporting period, includes estimates of future claim payments, changes in
those estimates from prior reporting periods and costs associated with investigating, defending and servicing claims.
These expenses fluctuate based on the amount and types of risks we insure. We record loss and loss adjustment
expenses related to estimates of future claim payments based on case-by-case valuations and statistical analyses.
We seek to establish all reserves at the most likely ultimate exposure based on our historical claims experience. It is
typical for our more serious claims to take several years to settle and we revise our estimates as we receive
additional information about the condition of injured employees. Our ability to estimate loss and loss adjustment
expenses accurately at the time of pricing our insurance policies is a critical factor in our profitability.

Underwriting and Certain Other Operating Costs. Underwriting and certain other operating costs are those
expenses that we incur to underwrite and maintain the insurance policies we issue. These expenses include state and
local premium taxes and fees and other operating costs, offset by commissions we receive from reinsurers under our
reinsurance treaty program. We pay state and local taxes, licenses and fees, assessments and contributions to state
workers’ compensation security funds based on premiums. [n addition, other operating costs include general and
administrative expenses, excluding commissions and salaries and benefits, incurred at both the insurance company
and corporate levels.

Commissions. We pay commissions 1o our subsidiary insurance agency and to the independent agencies that
sell our insurance based on premiums collected from policyholders.

Salaries and Benefits. We pay salaries and provide benefits to our employees.
Policyholder Dividends. In limited circumstances, we pay dividends to policyholders in particular states as an
underwriting incentive. Additionally, Florida law requires payment of dividends to Florida policyholders pursuant

to a formula based on underwriting results from policies written in Florida over a consecutive three-year period.

Interest Expense. Interest expense represents amounts we incur on our outstanding indebtedness at the then-
applicable interest rate.

Income Tax Expense. We incur federal, state and local income tax expense.
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Critical Accounting Policies

It is important to understand our accounting policies in order to understand our financial statements.
Management considers some of these policies to be very important to the presentation of our financial results
because they require us to make significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of our assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the related disclosures. Some of the estimates
result from judgments that can be subjective and complex and, consequently, actual results in future periods might
differ from these estimates.

Management believes that the maost critical accounting policies relate to the reporting of reserves for loss and
loss adjustment expenses, including losses that have occurred but have not been reported prior to the reporting date,
amounts recoverable from reinsurers, assessments, deferred policy acquisition costs, deferred income taxes, the
impairment of investment securities and share-based compensation.

The following is a description of our critical accounting policies.

Reserves for Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses. We record reserves for estimated losses under insurance
policies that we write and for loss adjustment expenses related to the investigation and settlement of policy claims.
Our reserves for foss and loss adjustment expenses represent the estimated cost of all reported and unreported loss
and loss adjustment expenses incurred and unpaid at any given point in time based on known facts and
circumstances. Our reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses are estimated using case-by-case valuations and
statistical analyses.

In establishing these estimates, we make various assumptions regarding a number of factors, including
frequency and severity of claims, length of time to achieve ultimate settlement of claims, projected inflation of
medical costs and wages, insurance policy coverage interpretations and judicial determinations. Due to the inherent
uncertainty associated with these estimates, and the cost of incurred but unreported claims, our actual liabilities may
vary significantty from our original estimates. On a quarterly basis, we review our reserves for loss and loss
adjustment expenses to determine whether adjustments are required. Any resulting adjustments are included in the
results for the current period. In establishing our reserves, we do not use loss discounting, which would involve
recognizing the time value of money and offsetting estimates of future payments by future expected investment
income. Additional information regarding our reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses can be found under the
caption “Business—Loss Reserves” in Item 1 of this report.

Amounts Recoverable from Reinsurers. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers represent the portion of our paid
and unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses that are assumed by reinsurers. These amounts are separately reported
on our balance sheet as assets and do not reduce our reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses because
reinsurance does not relieve us of liability to our policyholders. We are required to pay claims even if a reinsurer
fails to pay us under the terms of a reinsurance contract. We calculate amounts recoverable from reinsurers based
on our estimates of the underlying loss and loss adjustment expenses, as well as the terms and conditions of our
reinsurance contracts, which could be subject to interpretation. In addition, we bear credit risk with respect to our
reinsurers, which can be significant because some of the unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses for which we
have reinsurance coverage remain outstanding for extended periods of time.

Assessments. We are subject to various assessments and premium surcharges related to our insurance
activities, including assessments and premium surcharges for state guaranty funds and second injury funds.
Assessments based on premiums are recorded as an expense as premiums are earned and generally paid one year
after the calendar year in which the policies are written. Assessments based on losses are recorded as an expense as
losses are incurred and are generally paid within one year of when claims are paid by us. State guaranty fund
assessments are used by state insurance oversight agencies to pay claims of policyholders of impaired, insolvent or
failed insurance companies and the operating expenses of those agencies. Second injury funds are used by states to
reimburse insurers and employers for claims paid to injured employees for aggravation of prior conditions or
injuries. In some states, these assessments and premium surcharges may be partially recovered through a reduction
in future premium taxes.
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Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs. We defer commission expenses, premium taxes and certain marketing,
sales, underwriting and safety costs that vary with and are primarily related to the acquisition of insurance policies.
These acquisition costs are capitalized and charged to expense ratably as premiums are earned. In calculating
deferred policy acquisition costs, these costs are limited to their estimated realizable value, which gives effect to the
premiums to be earned, anticipated losses and settlement expenses and certain other costs we expect to incur as the
premiums are earned, less related net investment income. Judgments as to the ultimate recoverability of these
deferred policy acquisition costs are highly dependent upon estimated future profitability of unearned premiums. If
the unearned premiums were less than our expected claims and expenses after considering investment income, we
would reduce the deferred costs.

Deferred Income Taxes. We use the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method,
deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributed to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities resulting from a tax rate change impacts our net income or loss in the reporting period that includes the
enactment date of the tax rate change.

In assessing whether our deferred tax assets will be realized, management considers whether it is more likely
than not that we will generate future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, tax planning strategies
and projected future taxable income in making this assessment. If necessary, we establish a valuation allowance to
reduce the deferred tax assets to the amounts that are more likely than not to be realized.

Impairment of Investment Securities. Impairment of an investment security results in a reduction of the
carrying value of the security and the rcalization of a loss when the fair value of the security declines below our cost
or amortized cost, as applicable, for the security and the impairment is deemed to be other-than-temporary. We
regularly review our investment portfolio to evaluate the necessity of recording impairment losses for other-than-
temporary declines in the fair value of our investments. We consider various factors in determining if a decline in
the fair value of an individual security is other-than-temporary. Seme of the factors we consider include:

¢ how long and by how much the fair value of the security has been below its cost;

» the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer of the security, including any specific events
that may affect its operations or earnings;

e our intent and ability to keep the security for a sufficient time period for it to recover its value;

s any downgrades of the security by a rating agency; and

* any reduction or elimination of dividends, or nonpayment of scheduled interest payments.

Share-Based Compensation. As of January 1, 2005, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS} No. 123(R) — Share-Based Payment. In accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), we are using the “modified

prospective” method to record prospectively compensation costs for new and modified stock option awards over the
applicable vesting periods.
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Results of Operations

The table below summarizes certain operating results and key measures we use in monitoring and evaluating

our operations.

Income Statement Data
Gross premiums WEHEEN. ... ..cccovrrrnnninrcrerrsesrsreerssesns
Ceded premiums WIIEI.....o.ovevrverernvennsins i inrenes
Net premiums WHHEN ...
Net premiums €amed..........ccovvnnn.
Net investment iNCOME .....c.ccoveermencinnniinn
Net realized gains on investments (1)......cccoeiineinninns
Fee and other income..........oiiecveninirsinnnn s
TOtal TEVEIMUES ..veeienieeiieiie e
Loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred.................
Underwriting and certain other operating costs (2) ......
COMITISSIONS ..vvvevverirreeeeerermemeeieimenesee s ereeemcemceereemsssass
Salaries and benefits ..........ocvveeeererevrrorvrn e
INtErest EXPenSe ..ot re st
Policyholder dividends (3)......c.ccococvrimniniiiniiiiniiiiii
Total EXPeniSes .....cccvruemrereiiiiiirrc e
Income before taxes. ..o
Income tax EXPENSE ..ovvvvviiire i
NEL INCOME. .....ccovieerinrieicncnnii e e reerassrnsnesseen

Selected Insurance Ratios

Current accident year 10ss ratio (4) ........ocooovvrverccnnnns
Prior accident year 10ss ratio (5).....cccovmvvninsiiciciininnns
INEE 1085 FALIO 1ovveceieiree e
Net underwriting expense ratio (6).......cccocecvcveerinecns
Net dividend ratio (3) (7) oo veevreere i
Net combined ratio (8) ....ovovececce i

Year Ended December 31,
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2006 2005 2004
{In thousands)

5 33249 3 290,891 § 264,962
(19.950) (21.541) (21.951)
3 312541 $ 269,350 § 243011
$ 299,303 h 256,568 $ 234,733
25,383 16,882 12,217
7,389 2,272 1,421

645 561 __ 589
332,720 276,283 248,960
199,484 204,056 174,186
35,024 31,113 28,792
19,030 16,226 14,160
17,234 16,045 15,229

3,496 2,844 1,799
6,006 4 1,08
280,274 270,288 235274
52,446 5,995 13,686

15 088 65 3.129

§ 37358 § 5930 § 10557
67.4% 71.0% 68.5%
{0.8Y% 8.5% 5.7%
66.6% 1%.5% 74.2%
23.8% 24.7% 24.8%
2.0% 0.0% 0.5%
92.4% 104.2% 99.5%




As of December 31,
2006 2005 2004

{In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents .............cccoovveereeeveveeeeen. $ 26,748 $ 49,286 b 25421
Investments 638,780 533,618 364,868
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers 109,603 122,562 198,977
Premiums receivable, net........coccoiicinnniiisiininians 144,384 123,934 114,141
Deferred inCOME tAXES ...vivuverveerviririseeccriere e s s 29,466 22413 15,624
Deferred policy acquisition COStS.........cvervveeevinrerennens 18,486 16,973 12,044
Deferred charges........oovvvivvecesnieis i 3,548 3,182 3,054
TOtAl ASSELS ...t r s e e e e e rree s s e een 994,146 892,320 754,187
Reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses ........... 519,178 484,485 432,880
Unearned premitms..........oecieivieieise e 137,761 124,524 111,741
Insurance-related assessments . 40,886 T 35,135 29,876
DEDE vttt ettt 36,090 36,090 36,090
Redeemable preferred stock (9) ..ol 235,000 50,000 131,916
Shareholders’ equity (deficit) (10).....coooevvreieeenn, 158,784 97.346 {42,862)

(1) In 2006, includes $3.5 million net realized gains in connection with the sale of all equity securities as discussed below under “—

@
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&)
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Investment Portfolio” in Item 7 of this report,

Includes policy acquisition expenses, such as assessments, premium taxes and other general and administrative expenses, excluding
comrissions and salaries and benefits, related to insurance operations and corporate operating expenses.

In 2006, includes $5.2 million of dividends accrued for policyholders in Florida. Florida law requires payment of dividends to Florida
policyholders pursuant to a formula based on underwriting results from policies written in Florida in a consecutive three-year period.

The current accident year loss ratio is calculated by dividing loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred for the current accident year by
the current year’s net premiums earned.

The prior accident year loss ratio is calculated by dividing the change in loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred for prior accident
years by the current year’s net premiums eamed.

The net underwriting expense ratio is calculated by dividing underwriting and certain other operating costs, commissions and salaries and
benefits by the current year’s net premiums eamed.

The net dividend ratio is calculated by dividing policyholder dividends by the current year's net premiums eamed.
The net combined ratio is the sum of the net loss ratio, the net underwriting expense ratio and the net dividend ratio.

Includes our Series C and Series D convertible preferred stock, each of which is mandatorily redeemable upor the occurrence of certain
events that are deemed to be outside our control. In November 2006, 250,000 shares of Series C preferred stock were converted into
shares of commen stock by the holders in connection with a secondary public offering of common stock. For 2004, also includes our
Series A preferred stock, which was mandatorily redeemable upon the occurrence of certain events that were deemed to be outside our
control. In connection with the initial public offering of our common stock in November 2005, all outstanding shares of our Series A
preferred stock were redeemed and exchanged for shares of our common stock,

In 1997, we entered into a recapitalization transaction with our then-principal shareholder that resulted in a $164.2 million charge to
retained eamings. For periods presented prior 1o November 2003, shareholders® equity (deficit) included our Series E preferred stock. In
connection with the initial public offering of our common stock in November 2003, all outstanding shares of our Series E preferred stock
were redeemed for cash.
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Overview of Operating Results
Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005

Gross Premiums Written. Gross premiums written in 2006 were $332.5 million, compared to $290.9 million in
2005, an increase of 14.3%. The increase was attributable to a $27.9 million increase in annual premiums on
voluntary policies written during the period and an $18.3 million increase in premiums resulting from payroll audits
and related premium adjusiments. The increase from payroll audits and related premium adjustments includes a
$5.3 million increase resulting from an adjustment to estimated “earned but unbilled” premium as discussed above
under “—Principal Revenues and Expense Items,” in this Itemn 7. These increases were offset by a $2.2 million
decrease in direct assigned risk premiums and a $2.5 million decrease in assumed premiums from mandatory
pooling arrangements.

Net Premiums Written, Net premiums written in 2006 were $312.5 million, compared to $269.4 million in
2005, an increase of 16.0%. The increase was attributable to the growth in gross premiums written and a $1.6
million decrease in premiums ceded to reinsurers, from $21.5 million in 2005 to $19.5 million in 2006. Asa
percentage of gross premiums written, ceded premiums were 6.0% in 2006, compared to 7.4% in 2005.

Net Premiums Earned. Net premiums eamed in 2006 were $299.3 million, compared to $256.6 million in
2005, an increase of 16.7%. This increase was primarily the result of an increase in premiums written during 2005,
which resulted in higher premiums earned in 2006.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income in 2006 was $25.4 million, compared to $16.9 million in 2005,
an increase of 50.4% . The change was primarily attributable to an increase in our investment portfolio, including
cash and cash equivalents, from a monthly average of $467.0 million in 2005 to a monthly average of $626.3 million
in 2006, an increase of 34.1%. Also contributing to this growth was an increase in the pre-tax investment yield on
our investment portfolio from 3.5% per annum in 2005, to 4.1% per annum in 2006.

Net Realized Gains on Investments. Net realized gains on investments in 2006 totaled $7.4 million, compared
to $2.3 million in 2005. The increase was primarily attributable to the sale of all equity securities in our investment
portfolio pursuant to a revision of our investment guidelines as discussed below under “—Investment Portfolio™ in
this Item 7. The net realized gain from the sale of all equity securities was $3.5 million, of which $1.3 million in
losses were recognized in the third quarter and $4.8 million in gains were recognized in the fourth quarter.

Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses Incurred. Loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred were $199.5
million in 2006, compared to $204.1 million in 2005, a decrease of $4.6 million, or 2.2%. The decrease was the
result of $21.9 million in additional prior accident year reserves recorded in 2005, which amount included §13.2
million related to the commutation of certain reinsurance contracts, as well as $2.2 million of faverable prior
accident year development in 2006. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in current accident year
loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred resulting from increased net premiums eamned in 2006 as compared to
2005. Our net loss ratic was 66.6% in 2006, compared to 79.5% in 2005.
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Underwriting and Certain Other Operating Costs, Commissions and Salaries and Benefits. Underwriting and
certain other operating costs, commissions and salaries and benefits in 2006 were $71.3 million, compared to $63.4
million in 2005, an increase of $7.9 million or 12.5%. This increase was partially due to a $2.8 million increase in
agents’ commissions; a $1.2 million increase in salaries and benefits, which included a $922,000 increase in salary
expense attributable to share-based compensation; a $3.1 million increase in premium-based assessments and taxes,
which resulted from growth in our gross premiums earned in 2006; a $1.4 million increase in deferred policy
acquisition costs; and a $1.8 million professional fees attributable to Sarbanes-Oxley compliance and expenses
associated with a registered offering of our common stock on behalf of certain of our sharecholders. Offsetting these
increases were a $1.7 million increase in ceding comrmissions from reinsurers, which acts to reduce underwriting
expenses, and a $2.1 million decrease in loss-based assessments attributable to a reduction in gross reserves. Our
underwriting expense ratio declined from 24,7% in 2005 to 23.8% in 2006.

Interest Expense. Interest expense in 2006 was $3.5 million, compared to $2.8 million in 2005, an increase of
22.9%. This increase was due to an increase in our weighted average interest rate from 7.3% per annum in 2005 to
8.9% per annum in 2006. Qur weighted average borrowings for both years were $36.1 million,

Policyholder Dividend Expense. Policyholder dividend expense in 2006 was $6.0 million, compared to $4,000
in 2005. The increase was attributable to $5.2 million of dividends accrued for Florida policyholders pursuant to a
statutory formula based on our underwriting results on policies written in Florida over a consecutive three-year
period.

Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense in 2006 was $15.1 million, compared to $65,000 in 2005. The
increase was primarily attributable to a $46.5 million increase in our pre-tax income, from $6.0 million in 2005 to
$52.4 million in 2006.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

Gross Premiums Written. Gross premiums written in 2005 were $290.9 million, compared to $265.0 million in
2004, an increase of 9.8%. The increase was attributable primarily to a $16.8 million increase in annual premiums
on policies written during the period, a $5.8 million increase in premiums resulting from payroll audits and related
premium adjustments, and a $3.5 million increase in assigned risk premiums, offset by a decrease of $1.1 million in
assumted premiums from mandatory pooling arrangements.

Net Premiums Written, Net premiums written in 2005 were $269.4 million, compared to $243.0 million in
2004, an increase of 10.8%. The increase was attributable to growth in gross premiums written and a small decrease
in premiums ceded to reinsurers, $21.5 million in 2005 compared to $22.0 million in 2004. As a percentage of gross
premiums written, ceded premiums were 7.4% in 2005 compared to 8.3% in 2004,

Net Premiums Earned. Net premiums earned in 2005 were $256.6 million, compared to $234.7 million in
2004, an increase of 9.3%. This increase was primarily the result of an increase in premiums written during 2004,
which resulted in higher premiums earned in 2005.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income in 2005 was $16.9 million, compared to $12.2 million in 2004,
an increase of 38.2%. The change was attributable to an increase in our investment portfolio, including cash and
cash equivalents, from a monthly average of $350.9 million in 2004 to a monthly average of $467.0 million in 2005,
an increase of 33.0%. Pre-tax investment yield on our investment portfolic was 3.5% in both 2005 and 2004,

Net Realized Gains on Investments. Net realized gains on investments in 2005 totaled $2.3 million, compared

to $1.4 million in 2004. The increase was attributable to the timing of the sale of equity securities in accordance
with our investment guidelines.
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Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses Incurred. Loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred totaled $204.1
million in 2005, compared to $174.2 million in 2004, an increase of $29.9 million, or 17.2%. Increases in our
reserves resulting from our commutation with one of our reinsurers and reserve strengthening for prior accident
years accounted for $21.9 million, or 73.3%, of this increase. Our net loss ratio was 79.5% in 2005, compared to
74.2% in 2004.

Underwriting and Certain Other Operating Costs, Commissions and Salaries and Benefits. Underwriting and
certain other operating costs, commissions and salarics and benefits in 2005 were $63.4 million, compared to
$58.2 million in 2004, an increase of 8.9%. This increase was primarily due to a $2.1 million increase in agent
commissions, a $1.8 million increase in loss-based assessments and a $2.4 million decrease in ceding commissions.
This increase was partially offset by an $884,000 decrease in salaries. In 2005, we transferred our employee agents
from our insurance company subsidiary to our insurance agency subsidiary, which resulted in a change in their
compensation expense from salary to commission expense. The increase in our loss-based assessments resulted
primarily from state second injury funds. Ceding commissions, which are commissions we receive from reinsurers,
reduce our total underwriting expenses. Our underwriting expense ratio declined slightly from 24.8% in 2004 to
24.7% in 2005.

Interest expense. Interest expense in 2005 was $2.8 million, compared to $1.8 million in 2004. Our weighted
average borrowings increased to $36.1 million in 2005 from $31.1 million in 2004. The increase in weighted
average borrowings resulted from the issuance of $25.8 million of subordinated notes in April 2004, the proceeds of
which were used to redeem then-outstanding shares of our Series E preferred stock. In addition, our weighted
average interest rate increased to 7.3% per annum in 2003, from 4.9% per annum in 2004,

Income tax expense. Our income tax expense in 2005 was $65,000, compared to income tax expense of
$3.1 million in 2004. The decrease in tax expense was attributable to lower net income and a 25.9% increase in tax-
exempt interest from 2004 to 2005.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our principal sources of operating funds are premiums, investment income and proceeds from sales and
maturities of investments. Our primary uses of operating funds include payments of claims and operating expenses.
Currently, we pay claims using cash flow from operations and invest our excess cash in fixed maturity and equity
securities. We presently expect that our projected cash flow from operations will provide us sufficient liquidity to
fund our anticipated growth, including payment of claims and operating expenses, payment of interest on our
subordinated notes and other holding company expenses, for at least the next 18 months.

We forecast claim payments based on our historical trends. We seek to manage the funding of claim payments
by actively managing available cash and forecasting cash flows on a short- and long-term basis. Cash payments, net
of reinsurance, for claims were $151.4 million in 2006, $139.2 million in 2005 and $113.9 million in 2004. In 2005,
we also received $61.3 million in a commutation with one of our reinsurers, as described below. Since
December 31, 2002, we have funded claim payments from cash flow from operations, principally premiums, net of
amounts ceded to our reinsurers, and net investment income. Our investment portfolio has increased from $250.0
million at December 31, 2002 to $665.5 million at December 31, 2006. We do not presently anticipate selling
securities in our investment portfolio to pay claims or to fund operating expenses. Accordingly, we currently
classify all fixed maturity securities in the held-to-maturity category. Should circumstances arise that would require
us to do so, we may incur losses on such sales, which would adversely affect our results of operations and could
reduce investment income in future periods.

As discussed above under “—OQverview,” we purchase reinsurance to protect us against severe claims and
catastrophic events, Based on our estimates of future claims, we believe we are sufficiently capitalized to satisfy the
deductibles and retentions in our 2007 reinsurance program. We reevaluate our reinsurance program at ieast
annually, taking into consideration a number of factors, including cost of reinsurance, our liquidity requirements,
operating leverage and coverage terms.
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Even if we maintain our existing retention levels, if the cost of reinsurance increases, our cash flow from
operations would decrease as we would cede a greater portion of our written premiums to our reinsurers.
Conversely, our cash flow from operations would increase if the cost of reinsurance declined relative to our
retention.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $81.8 million in 2006, as compared to $142.0 million in 2005,
and $91.9 million in 2004. Major components of cash provided by operating activities in 2006 were net premiums
collected of $292.5 million and amounts recovered from reinsurers of $7.9 million, offset by claim payments of
$160.2 million, federal taxes paid of $15.2 million and operating expenditures of $43.2 million. included in these
operating expenditures were pre-tax expenses of $1.1 million related to a public offering of common stock by
certain of our shareholders. We were obligated to pay these expenses under the terms of a registration rights
agreement. Major components of cash provided by operating activities in 2005 were net premiums collected of
$260.1 million and amounts recovered from reinsurers of $85.0 million, offset by claim payments of $161.7 million,
federal taxes paid of $3.7 million and operating expenditures of $37.7 million. Included in amounts recovered from
reinsurers was $61.3 million as the result of a commutation with one of our reinsurers, as discussed below. Major
components of cash provided by operating activities in 2004 were net premiums collected of $237.8 million and
amounts recovered from reinsurers of $54.1 million, offset by claim payments of $160.6 million and operating
expenditures of $39.4 million.

Net cash used by investing activitics was $104.8 million in 2006, as compared to $171.3 million in 2005 and
$109.0 million in 2004. In 2006, major components of net cash used by investing activitics included investment
purchases of $256.6 million and net purchases of furniture, fixtures and equipment of $1.2 mitlion, offset by
proceeds from sales and maturities of investments of $153.0 million. In 2005, major components of net cash used
by investing activities included investment purchases of $296.2 million and purchases of furniture, fixtures and
equipment of $1.4 million, offset by proceeds from sales and maturities of investments of $126.3 million. In 2004,
major components of net cash used by investing activities included invesiment purchases of $145.3 million and net
purchases of furniture, fixtures and equipment of $2.8 million, offsct by proceeds from sales and maturities of
investments of $36.7 million and proceeds of $2.4 million from repayment of a loan.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $442,000 in 2006, as compared to $53.1 million in 2005 and
$7.4 million of net cash used in 2004. Major components of cash provided in financing activities in 2006 were
$428.,000 of proceeds from the exercise of stock options and $14,000 of tax benefit from share-based compensation.
Major components of cash provided by financing in 2005 included gross proceeds of $72.0 million from the initial
public offering, offset by $8.8 million of underwriting discounts and other costs related to the initial public offering
and $10.2 million to redeem shares of Series A and Series E preferred stock. In 2004, major components of net cash
used in financing activities included the redemption of $27.2 million of Series E preferred stock and the repayment
of the remaining $6.0 million of a note payable, offset by proceeds of $25.8 million from the issuance of
subordinated notes pursuant to a trust preferred securities transaction.

Interest on the outstanding subordinated notes accrues at a floating rate equal to the three-month LIBOR plus a
marginal rate. Our $10.3 million issuance of subordinated notes due 2034 has a marginal rate of 4.1%, and, as of
December 31, 2006, had an effective rate of 9.5%. These notes are prepayable at par beginning in January 2009.
Our $25.8 million issuance of subordinated notes due 2034 has a marginal rate of 3.8% and, as of December 31,
2006, had an effective rate of 9.2%. These notes are prepayable at par beginning in April 2009.

In November 2006, we completed a public offering of 9,071,576 shares of common stock. All of these shares
were offered by existing shareholders. In connection with this public offering, holders of 250,000 shares of our
convertible preferred stock converted those shares into 1,214,771 shares of our common stock. We did not receive
any of the proceeds from this offering.
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Because our convertible preferred stock is mandatorily redeemable upon the occurrence of certain events that
are deemed to be outside of our control, our preferred stock is presented on the balance sheet outside of
shareholders’ equity. As a result of the conversion of these shares of preferred stock into common stock, in 2006 we
increased shareholders’ equity by $25 million, the amount we reccived when the preferred shares were issued in
1998. Offsetting this increase were expenses of $1.1 million associated with the public offering.

During 2004, Converium Reinsurance (North America), one of our reinsurers, reported a significant loss,
resulting in a downgrade in its A.M. Best rating. Although Converium continued to reimburse us under the terms of
our reinsurance agreements, we initiated discussions with Converium to seek to reduce the credit risk associated
with the amounts due to us. Effective June 30, 2005, we entered into a commutation agreement with Converium. In
the third quarter of 2005, Converium paid us $61.3 million pursuant to this agreement in exchange for a termination
and full release of three of our five reinsurance agreements with Converium. Under the commutation agreement, all
liabiiities reinsured with Converium under these three reinsurance agreements have reverted back to us. We
recorded a pre-tax loss of $13.2 million related to this commutation agreement. Converium remains obligated to us
under the remaining two agreements. At December 31, 2006, the amount recoverable from Converium under the
remaining two reinsurance agreements was $6.2 million. The $61.3 million we reccived in connection with the
commutation with Converium was contributed to our investment portfolio.

AMERISAFE is a holding company that transacts business through its operating subsidiaries, including
American Interstate, Silver Qak Casualty and American Interstate of Texas. AMERISAFE’s primary assets are the
capital stock of these operating subsidiaries. The ability of AMERISAFE to fund its operations depends upon the
surplus and earnings of its subsidiaries and their ability to pay dividends to AMERISAFE. Payment of dividends by
our insurance subsidiaries is restricted by state insurance laws, including laws establishing minimum solvency and
liquidity thresholds. See “Business—Regulation—Dividend Limitations” in Itemn 1of this report. Based on reported
capital and surplus at December 31, 2006, American Interstate is permitted under Louisiana insurance law to pay
dividends to AMERISAFE in 2007 in an amount up to $19.6 million without approval by the Louisiana Department
of Insurance.

Investment Portfolio

The first priority of our investment strategy is capital preservation, with a secondary focus on maximizing
after-tax income. We presently expect to maintain sufficient liquidity from funds generated from operations to meet
our anticipated insurance obligations and operating and capital expenditure needs, with excess funds invested in
accordance with our investment guidelines.

We allocate our portfolio into three categories; cash and cash equivalents, fixed maturity securities and equity
securities. Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on deposit, commercial paper, short-term municipal securities,
pooled short-term money market funds and certificates of deposit. Our fixed maturity securities includes obligations
of the U.S. Treasury or U.S. agencies, obligations of states and their subdivisions, long-term certificates of deposit,
U.S. dollar-denominated obligations of the U.S. corporations, mortgage-backed securities, mortgages guaranteed by
the Federal National Mortgage Association and asset-backed securities. As discussed below, currently a portion of
our investment portfolio allocated to equity securities is invested in three separate value-based exchange traded
funds.

In 2006, we began a strategic review of our investment management and related policies. As a result of this
review, we revised our invesiment guidelines. Under our revised guidelines, the market value of the equity
securities in our investment portfolio will range from 20% to 30% of shareholders’ equity, plus redeemable
preferred stock, at the end of the most recently completed fiscal year. Under our prior investment guidelines, the
portion of our investment portfolio invested in equity securities was limited to 12% of the carrying value and 15% of
the market value of the total portfolio. As a result of the changes in our investment guidelines, we expect to hold a
smaller percentage of our investment portfolio in equity securities, with a greater emphasis on index funds.
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In anticipation of the change in our investment guidelines, we sold all of the equity securities in our investment
portfolio. These sales began in the third quarter and were completed in the fourth quarter of 2006, We presently
intend to reposition the equity portion of our investment portfolio to consist of a combination of value-based
exchange traded funds and an externally managed portfolio of individual equity securities. To achieve this
repositioning, we purchased $21.1 million of value-based exchange traded funds in late 2006. Until a new equity
portfolio manager is appointed, we may purchase additional equity index funds to bring the percentage of our total
portfolio invested in equity securities within our current investment guidelines.

Also as a result of the strategic review, we retained Prudential Investment Management, Inc., or PIM, a
registered investment advisory firm and a subsidiary of Prudential Financial, Inc., to manage our portfolio of fixed
maturity securities under investment guidelines approved by our board of directors. PIM began managing our fixed
maturity securities in November 2006.

Under Louisiana and Texas law, as applicable, each of American Interstate, Silver Oak Casualty and American
Interstate of Texas is required to invest only in securities that are either interest-bearing or eligible for dividends, and
must limit its investment in the securities of any single issuer to five percent of the insurance company’s assets. As
of December 31, 2006, we were in compliance with these requirements.

We employ diversification policies and balance investment credit risk and related underwriting risks to
minimize our total potential exposure to any one business sector or security. Our investment portfolio, including
cash and cash equivalents, had a carrying value of $665.5 million as of December 31, 2006, and is summarized in
the table below by type of investment.

Percentage
Carrying Value of Portfolio

{In thousands)

Fixed maturity securities:

State and political subdivisions $ 365,282 54.9%
Mortgage-backed SECUTTLES .....c.oovciviviimiiini s creeereenes 117,456 17.6%
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of '

U.S. GOVErnmMent ageNCIEs ....cococcrerererreree et 78,817 11.8%
Corporate bonds .......cccocvevcvecnens 21,123 32%
Asset-backed SECULIHES .......oovvrirveeeeeeraccrermree e 32436 _49%

Total fixed Maturity SECUMIES ....ccevvveerierirr e 615,114 92.4%

Equity securities (1) ..ot 23,666 3.6%
Cash and cash eqUIVAIERLS ......cooiveverormeree e 26,748 _4.0%
Total investments, including cash and cash equivalents ........................ § 665,528 100.0%

(1)  Equity securities represented 12.9% of shareholders’ equity plus redeemable preferred stock as of December 31, 2006.

We regularly evaluate our investment portfolio to identify other-than-temporary impairments in the fair values
of the securities held in our investment portfolio. We consider various factors in determining whether a decline in
the fair value of a security is other-than-temporary, including:

s how long and by how much the fair value of the security has been below its cost;

s the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer of the security, including any specific events
that may affect its operations or earnings;

s  our intent and ability to keep the security for a sufficient time period for it to recover its value;

¢ any downgrades of the security by a rating agency; and
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+ any reduction or elimination of dividends, or nonpayment of scheduled interest payments.

As of December 31, 2006, there were no other-than-temporary declines in the fair values of the securities held
in our investment portfolio.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

We manage risk on certain long-duration claims by settling these claims through the purchase of annuities
from unaffiliated life insurance companies. In the event these companies are unable to meet their obligations under
these annuity contracts, we could be liable to the claimants, but our reinsurers remain obligated to indemnify us for
all or part of these obligations in accordance with the terms of our reinsurance contracts, As of December 31, 2006,
the present value of these annuities was $60.3 million, as estimated by our annuity providers. Each of the life
insurance companies issuing these annuities, or the entity guaranteeing the life insurance company, has an A M,
Best rating of “A” (Excellent) or better, For additienal information, see Note 18 to our consolidated financial
statements in Item 8 of this report.

We lease equipment and office space under noncancelable operating leases. Future minimum lease payments
at December 31, 2006, were as follows:

Future Minimum

Year Lease Payments
(In thousands)
2007 ettt et e £t E e £ as b s e e e e st en e renenneen $ 749
ZOOB. .ottt s e ek 569
2009 et aas e r s s a et e r e b e eneab s 473
200 e e e h et e et ettt s ena e reses g
§ 1,799

Rental expense was $1.4 million in 2006, $924,000 in 2005 and $956,000 in 2004,
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The table below provides information with respect to our long-term debt and contractual commitments as of

December 31, 2006.
Payment Due By Period
Less Than More Than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
(In thousands)

Subordinated notes (1) ...ccoocvvervrrereenas $ 36,090 hY 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 36,090
Loss and loss adjustment expenses (2).... 519,178 187,423 227,919 51,399 52,437
Loss-based insurance assessments {3) ..... 17,669 6,379 7,757 1,749 1,784
Capital lease obligations..........c.cccccoceenns 548 507 41 0 0
Operating lease obligations...................... 1,799 749 1,042 3 0
Purchase obligations.............cccocivniinnn 424 284 140 0 0

Total oo § 575,708 $195342 $ 236,899 § 53,156 3 90311

m

@

3)

Amounts do not include interest payments associated with these obligations. Interest rates on our subordinated notes are variable and may
change on a quarterly basis. See “—Liquidity and Capital Resources” in ltem | of this report for further discussion of our subordinated
notes.

The loss and loss adjustment expense payments due by peried in the table above are based upon the loss and loss adjustment expense
estimates as of December 31, 2006 and actuarial estimates of expected payout patterns and are not contractual liabilities as to a time
certain. Our contractual liability is to provide benefits under the policy. As a result, our calculation of loss and loss adjustment expense
payments due by period is subject to the same uncertainties associated with determining the level of loss and loss adjustment expenses
generally and to the additional uncertainties arising from the difficulty of predicting when claims (including claims that have not yet been
reported to us) will be paid. For a discussion of our loss and loss adjustment expense process, see “Business—Loss Reserves” in Item 1 of
this repert. Actual payments of loss and loss adjustment expenses by period will vary, perhaps materially, from the amounts shown in the
table above to the extent that current estimates of loss and loss adjustment expenses vary from actual ultimate claims amounts and as a
result of variations between expected and actual payout patterns. See “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Qur Business—Our loss reserves
are based on estimates and may be inadequate to cover our actual losses™ in Item 1 of this report for a discussion of the uncertainties
associated with estimating loss and loss adjustment expenses.

We are subject to various annuzl assessments imposed by certain of the states in which we write insurance policies. These assessments are
generally based upon the amount of premiums written or losses paid during the applicable year, Assessments based on premiums are
generally paid within one year after the calendar year in which the policies are written, while assessments based on losses are generally
paid within one year after the loss is paid. When we establish a reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses for a reported claim, we
accrue our obligation to pay any applicable assessments. If settiement of the claim is to be paid out over more than one year, our
obligation to pay any related loss-based assessments extends for the same period of time. Because our reserves for loss and loss
adjustment expenses are based on estimates, our accruals for loss-based insurance assessments are also based on estimates. Actual
payments of loss and loss adjustment expenses may differ, perhaps materially, from our reserves. Accordingly, our actual loss-based
insurance assessments may vary, perhaps materially, from our accruals.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect

‘ on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity,
‘ capital expenditures or capital resources.
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Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Market risk is the risk of potential economic loss principally arising from adverse changes in the fair value of
financial instruments. The major components of market risk affecting us are credit risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk. We currently have no exposure to foreign currency risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential loss arising principally from adverse changes in the financial condition of the issuers
of our fixed maturity securities and the financial condition of cur reinsurers.

We address the credit risk related to the issuers of our fixed maturity securities by investing in fixed maturity
securities that are rated “BBB™ or higher by Standard & Poor’s. We also independently, and through our
independent fixed maturity investment manager, monitor the financial condition of all issuers of our fixed maturity
securities. To limit our risk exposure, we employ stringent diversification policies that limit the credit exposure to
any single issuer or business sector.

We are subject to credit risk with respect to our reinsurers. Although our reinsurers are obligated to reimburse
us to the extent we cede risk to them, we are ultimately liable to our policyholders on ail risks we have reinsured.
As a result, reinsurance contracts do not limit our ultimate obligations to pay claiis and we might not collect
amounts recoverable from our reinsurers. We address this credit risk by initially selecting reinsurers with an A.M.
Best rating of “A” (Excellent) or better and by performing, along with our reinsurance broker, quarterly credit
reviews of our reinsurers. If one of our reinsurers suffers a credit downgrade, we may consider various options to
lessen the risk of asset impairment including commutation, novation and letters of credit. Sce “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liguidity and Capital Resources.” in
Item 7 of this report.

Interest Rate Risk

We had fixed maturity securities with a fair value of $609.3 million and a carrying value of $615.1 million as
of December 31, 2006 that are subject to interest rate risk. We are also subject to interest rate risk on our
subordinated debt securities, which have quarterly adjustable interest rates based on LIBOR plus a fixed margin.
Interest rate risk is the risk that we may incur losses due to adverse changes in interest rates. Fluctuations in interest
rates have a direct impact on the market valuation of our fixed maturity securities and the cost to service our
subordinated debt securities. We manage our exposure to interest rate risk through a disciplined asset and liability
matching and capital management process. In the management of this risk, the characteristics of duration, credit and
variability of cash flows are critical elements. These risks are assessed regularly and balanced within the context of
our liability and capital position.
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The table below summarizes the interest rate risk associated with our fixed maturity securities by illustrating
the sensitivity of the fair value and carrying value of our fixed maturity sccuritics as of December 31, 2006 to
sctected hypothetical changes in interest rates, and the associated impact on our shareholders’ equity. We classity
our fixed maturity securities as held-to-maturity and carry them on our balance sheet at cost or amortized cost, as
applicable. Temporary changes in the fair value of our fixed maturity securities that are held-to-maturity, such as
those resulting from interest rate fluctuations, do not impact the carrying value of these securities and, therefore, do
not affect our shareholders’ equity. However, temporary changes in the fair value of our fixed maturity securities
that are held as available-for-sale do impact the carrying value of these securities and are reported in our
shareholders’ equity as a component of other comprehensive income, net of deferred taxes. The selected scenarios
in the table below are not predictions of future events, but rather are intended to illustrate the effect such events may
have on the fair value and carrying value of our fixed maturity securities and on our shareholders’ equity.

Hypothetical
Percentage
Estimated Increase
Estimated Change in (Decrease) in
Hypothetical Change Change in Carrying Carrying Shareholders’
in Interest Rates Fair Value Fair Value Value Value Equity
200 basis point increase.............. $557,324 $(51,944) $615,114 $ e —
100 basis point increase............... 581,580 (27,688} 615,114 — —
Nochange . ......coooveoiinieiin 609,268 — 615,114 — —
100 basis point decrease ............. 636,854 27,586 615,114 — —
200 basis point decrease ............. 668,529 59,262 615,114 — e
Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that we may incur losses due to adverse changes in the market prices of the equity
securities we hold in our investment portfolio. We classify our portfolio of equity securities as available-for-sale
and carry these securities on our balance sheet at fair value. Accordingly, adverse changes in the market prices of
our equity securities result in a decrease in the value of our total assets and shareholders’ equity. In order to
minimize our exposure to equity price risk, we invest primarily in mid-to-large capitalization issues and seek to
diversify our equity holdings across several business sectors. In addition, we currently limit the percentage of equity
securities held in our investinent portfolio to a range of 20% to 30% of sharcholders’ equity, plus redeemable
preferred stock, at the end of the most recent fiscal year. As of December 31, 2006, the equity securities in our
investment portfolio had a fair value of $23.7 million, representing 12.9% of sharcholders’ equity plus redeemable
preferred stock on that date. As of that date, our equity portfolio was invested in three value-based exchange traded
funds, See “Business — Investments” in Item | of this report.
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Audited Financial Statements as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and for the three years in the
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
AMERISAFE, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of AMERISAFE, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2006 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. Our audits also include the
financial statement schedules listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial statements and schedules are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements and schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of AMERISAFE, Inc. and Subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the
consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related
financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, present
fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{(United States), the effectiveness of AMERISAFE, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 2, 2007,
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

New Orleans, Louisiana
March 2, 2007
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AMERISAFE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
' ‘ (In thousands, except share data)

December 31,

2006 2005
Assets
Investments;
Fixed maturity securitiecs—held-to-maturity, at amortized cost (fair value $609,268 and
$458,819 in 2006 and 2005, respectively) $ 615114 § 465,648
Fixed maturity securities—available-for-sale, at fair value (cost $0 and $1,709 in 2006 and
2005, TESPECHIVELY) ©oviiiiiiiiiii i bbb bt se s s e et e —_ £,695
Equity securities—available-for-sale, at fair value (cost $22,157 and $62,875 in 2006
and 2005, respectlvely) 23.666 66.275
Total investments .......... 638,780 533,618
Cash and cash equwa!ents ............... 26,748 49,286
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers 109,603 122,562
Premiums receivable, net ............... 144,384 123,934
Deferred income taxes ...... 29,466 22,413
Accrued Interest reCeIVADIE ...t e e et e s eaaa bt st eamntens 5,921 4,597
Property and @QUIPIMEIIL, MEL ......c.oieeceiereierticr et ree e esesete st es s casen s sens e st e s s secssees et pse e peenny 5,687 6,321
Deferred policy acquisition costs 18,486 16,973
Deferred charges ......cooreveerereenns 3,548 3,182
L0 T LT U TP 11,523 - 9434

04146 5892320
Liabilities, redeemable preferred stock and shareholders’ equity
Liabilities:

Reserves for loss and 10ss adjustment XPENSES ...ovvrorveriiinsar s s s ssnsssnsssesesne s 519,178 § - 484,485
Unearited premiums oo s . 137,761 124,524
Reinsurance premitms PayabIE ...t e 1,378 694
Amounts held for others ......... 1,827 1,484
Policyholder deposits .............. 39,141 38,033
Insurance-related assessments 40,886 35,135
Federal income tax payable ........... 3,631 1,677
Accounts payable and other Habilities ... 30,470 22,852
Subordinated debt SECUITHES ....c...ciiiiieee et et ne e e ee et e e rmpr e e 36,090 36,090
810,362 744,974
Redeemable preferred stock:
Series A nonconvertible—3$0.01 par value, $100 per share redemption value:
Authorized shares—1,500,000; issued and cutstanding shares—none in 2006
and 2005 . . — .-
Series C convertlble—$0 01 par value $100 per share redemptlon valuc T
Authorized shares—300,000; issued and outstanding shares—30,000 in 2006 and
300,000 in 2005 . 5,000 30,000
Series D convemblc—SO 01 par value, $100 per share redempnon value
Authorized sharcs—200,000; issued and outstanding shares—200,000 in 2006 and 2005 ....... 20,000 20,000
25,000 50,000
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock: Series E nonconvertible—$0.01 par value, $100 per share redemption value:
Authorized—500,000; issued and outstanding shares—none in 2006 and in 2005 ... — —
Common stock:
Voting—30.01 par value authorized shares—50,000,000 in 2006 and 2005;
issued and outstanding shares—18,705,098 in 2006 and 17,424,054 in 2005 .........c.ccooven.ee. 187 174
Additional paid-in capital 171,557 145,206
Accumulated deficit ................. (16,988) (54,346)
Accumulated other comprehenswe income . 4,028 6,312
158,784 97,346

$ 594,146 § 892,320

See accompanying notes.

72




AMERISAFE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Revenues

Premiums €arned ....ooooeecveivviiieesie et $ 299,303 $ 256,568 $ 234,733
Net INVESHMENE INCOIMIE ...ovvieii i reissciareteesseeeeemenrereeeeeesas 25,383 16,882 12,217
Net realized gains on investments .......cccocveenieneniienicnnen. 7,389 2,272 1,421
Fee and other inCOmME .......ocovveniviiiiiie e 645 561 589
TOtAl TEVENUES ...oceviiiviiieereteimee e e e e eee et eeene e sreeeeens 332,720 276,283 248,960
Expenses

Loss and loss adjustment expenses incurred ..........c.ccoeeee. 199,484 204,056 174,186
Underwriting and certain other operating costs ................. 35,024 3LL13 28,792
COMMISSIONS ..eveeviieicrerreeiniesteesteeeereeeeeesaeaeeeesensssnreeesaenan 19,030 16,226 14,160
Salaries and benefits .......cocoveiieeeeie e 17,234 16,045 15,229
INIETESE EXPENISE ..v.vvivvvriisseeeeeeeeerceeeeaeceeatraresterssnteererarsnnenes 3,496 2,844 1,799
Policyholder dividends ......ccccoovrirviinii e 6.006 4 1,108
TOtal @XPENSES ...oevivverciee e e 280,274 270,288 235,274
Income before iNCOME tAXES . ovvvievv i sseee s sabaeeas 52,446 5,995 13,686
INCOME taX EXPENSE ....ooivrreerrire et 15,088 65 3.129
INEL IBCOME ...ooiivicriree s scteee e eee e eae e e e see s esreeeesaeeaes s 37,358 5,930 10,557
Preferred stock dividends .ovooeoveooeiooeee e — {8,593) (9.781)

Net income (loss) available to common shareholders ....... § 37,358 $  (2,663) S 776

Earnings (loss) per share

BAaSIC oo st s 1.88 §  (1.2%5) $ 2.42
DiIlUted .ot e by 1.88 § (125 b 2.14
Shares used in computing earnings (loss) per share

Basic ..o 17,579,825 2,129,492 225367
Diluted ..o 17,594,736 2,129,492 255,280

See accompanying notes.
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AMERISAFE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(In thousands, except share data)

Accumulated
Series E Additional Other
Preferred Stock Common Stock Paid-In Accumulated Comprehensive
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit Income Total
Balance at January |, 2004 247209 § 24720 180,123 5 2 % — 5 (52,544) 3 7,170 §  (20,652)
Comprehensive income:

Net income ... —_ —_ — — — 10,557 — 10,557
Other comprehensive income,

net of tax:

Unrealized loss on securities ... — —_ —_ —_ — — (11n (117)
Comprehensive income ................. 10,440
Conversion of warmants .................. — — 119,649 1 — 85 — 86
Dividends paid in Scries A

preferred stock ., [TV — — — — — (5.492) — (5.492)
Dividends paid in Senes E

preferred stock . 42,880 4,289 — —_ {4,289) — —
Redemption of Series preferre

stock .. . {272.436) (27.244) — — — — — (27,244}

Balance at Dcccmber 31 2004 17,653 1,765 299,774 3 — (51,683) 7,053 (42,862)

Cemprehensive income:

Net income . — - — —_ — 5,930 _ 5,930

Other comprehemne income:

Change in unrealized gains,

net of tax . —_ — — —_ — — (741) (741)
Comprehens:ve income ..... — — — — — — — 5,189
Dividends paid in Series A

preferred Stock v — —_ — — — (4,376) — (4,376}
Dividends paid in Series E
preferred stock ............ 27,655 2,766 — — — (2,766) - —
1PQ — Common stuck 1ssut:d — — 8,000,000 80 71,920 — — 72,000
IPO — Commeon stock issued
in exchange for Series A
preferred stock ... S — — 9,120,948 91 81,997 {837) — 81,251
Restricted common stock lssucd — — 3,332 — _ — -— —_
Share-based compensation ............. — —_ — —_ 53 —_ — 53
IPO — Series A preferred stock
redecmed ......... — — — — — (52) — (52)
IPO — Scncs E prefcrred stock
redeerned .. (45,308) 4,531 — — —_— (562) — (5,093}
PO — Ofﬁ:ring costs:
Underwriting discount — —_ — — (5,040 — — (5,040)
Other IPO expenscs ... — — — — (3,724) — — (3.724)
Balance at December 31, 2005 .. — — 17,424,054 174 145,206 {54,346) 6,312 47,346
Comprehensivc income:
Net income . — — — — — 37,358 _ 37,358
Other wmprehenswe income:
Change in unrealized gains,
net of tax ... — — — — — — (2,284} (2,284)
Comprehensive income .. — — — — — — - 35,074
Common stock issued
upon conversion of Series C
preferred StocK e — — 1,214,771 12 24,988 — — 25,000
Common stock issued
upon exercise of options............... — _ 47,560 1 427 — — 428
Restricted common stock issued...... — —_ 18,773 — 168 — — 168
Share-based compensation.............. —_ —_ —_ — 754 —_ —_ 754
Tax benefit of share-based
compensation... — — — — 14 — — 14
Balance a1 December 31 2006 . = & — 18705098 & 187 & 171,557 § (16988) § 4,028 158,784

See accompanying notes.
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AMERISAFE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Operating activities
NEL INCOME ....oivivieiririiiieti s e sese e sese e eresesn s seeenenees ¥ 37358 3% 5930 § 10,557
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activitics:

Deprociation ..o et 1,960 2,159 1,695
Net amortization/accretion of Investments ........ooccvvvveeveevennnn. 2,272 2,256 1,673
Deferred iNCOME 1AXES 1vvivieeer it a e s sraies (5,824) (6,389) (2,849)
Net realized gains on investments .............cccoceevveveevceeeeenennn. (7,389} (2,272) (1,421)
(Gain)loss on sale of asset ..o, (82) 2 —
Share-based compensation ..o 922 53 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Premiums receivable .o {20,450) (9,793) (5,761)
Accrued interest receivable ..., {1,324) (1,474) (464)
Deferred policy acquisition costs and deferred charges ....... (1,879) (5,057 (291)
Other 8SSELS ...ooviiiice e (2,089) 424 3,497
Reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses .................... 34,693 51,605 55,321
Unearned premitms ..o seeseeseenens 13,237 12,783 8,279
Reinsurance balances ... 13,643 76,248 13,173
Amounts held for others and policyholder deposits ............. 1,451 4,557 4,975
Accounts payable and other liabilities ......ccocoeceeeeiieine 15,323 11.063 3.565
Net cash provided by operating activities .........oeceevreceeeareininennns 81,822 142,095 91,949
Investing activities
Purchases of investments held-to-maturity ... (214,627) (240,054) (113,461)
Purchases of investments available-for-sale ............coovvveevvnrnnn, (41,972) (56,113) (31,795)
Proceeds from maturities of investments held-to-maturity ......... 61,182 99,953 21,789
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
AvaIlable-TOr-SALE ....ovvvevivienecme et 91,859 26,342 14,908
Repayments on mortgage loan ........c.covvvvverveninneiieesinner s ssseseens — — 2,370
Purchases of property and equipment .....c..ccoovveveeniiiiiccinnnnnn, (1,330} (1,409) (2,778)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment .........ccccoeeenee. 86 3 2
Net cash used in investing activities ........ccceevverercnvecinccinnn, (104,802) {171,280) (108,965)
Financing activities
Proceeds from stock option XerciSe ..oovvvveveeevieveecnirereeeieens 428 — —
Tax benefit from share-based payments ..........cccoiiiivienienann. 14 — —
Net proceeds from initial public offering ..........co.ocooovv i, — 63,236 —
Series A preferred stock redemption ......coevveireeriricrneniniiciane, — (5,093) —
Series E preferred stock redemption .........coccoeevvevicivisninisinnnins — (5,093) (27,244)
Principal payments on note payable ...........cocveivieiiniciievieceninnn — — (6,000}
Warrants exercised .....ocooooiiininiini e, — — 86
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debt securities ............. — — 25,780
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ...........cc....... 442 53.050 (7.378)
Change in cash and cash equivalents ...........cooovevvieiiiiciien, (22,538) 23,865 (24,394)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .......................... 49,286 25421 49.815
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ..........cococovvvvniiciennn. § 26748 § 49286 § 25421
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
TNEETESE PAIA ..oooeoeeeeceece v esre e $ 2655 % 2,55 § 1,260
Income taxes Paid ......c..ooevoiieeeee e e $ 18638 § 3650 § 8,434
Pay-in-kind dividends (non-cash) .........ccococooiiiiiiiiei i, $ — & 8593 § 9,781

See accompanying notes,
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1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

AMERISAFE, Inc., is an insurance holding company incorporated in the state of Texas. The accompanying
censolidated financial statements include the accounts of AMERISAFE and its subsidiaries: American Interstate
Insurance Company (*“AIIC™) and its insurance subsidiaries, Silver Oak Casualty, Inc. (“SOCI”") and American
Interstate Insurance Company of Texas (“AIIC-TX"), Amerisafe Risk Services, Inc. (“RISK”) and Amerisafe
General Agency, Inc. (“AGAI”). AIIC and SOCI are property and casualty insurance companies organized under
the state of Louisiana. AHC-TX is a property and casualty insurance company organized under the laws of the state
of Texas, was incorporated on December 20, 2004, and commenced business on January 1, 2005, RISK, a whoily-
owned subsidiary of the Company, is a claims and safety service company servicing only affiliated insurance
companies. AGAI, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, is a general agent for the Company. AGAI sells
insurance, which is underwritten by AIIC, SOCI and AIIC-TX, as well as by nonaffiliated insurance carriers. The
assets and operations of AGAI are not significant to that of the consolidated entity.

The terms “AMERISAFE,” the “Company,” “we,” “us,” or “our” refer to AMERISAFE, Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries, as the context requires.

The Company provides workers™ compensation and general liability insurance for companies primarily in
special trade groups, including construction, trucking and logging. Assets and revenues of AlIC represent
approximately 99% of comparable consolidated amounts of the Company for each of 2006, 2005 and 2004.

On November 23, 2005, the Company completed the initial public offering of its common stock with the sale
of 8,000,000 shares at $9.00 per share. Prior to that time, there was no public market for the Company’s common
stock. The shares were registered under the Securities Act of 1933 under a Registration Statement on Form S-1 that
was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 17, 2005. The Registration
Statement also covered additional shares of common stock made available for sale by certain of the Company’s
shareholdets pursuant to an option granted to the underwriters of the offering. On December 9, 2005, the
underwriters exercised the option to purchase 485,750 shares of common stock from the selling shareholders. The
sale of these shares closed on December 14, 2005. The Company did not receive any of the proceeds from the sale
of shares by the selling shareholders.

The Company’s net proceeds from the initial public offering were $63.2 million, after deducting $5.0 million
in underwriting discounts and commissions and $3.7 million in other expenses related to the offering. The Company
used $10.2 million of net proceeds to redeem shares of Series A preferred stock and Series E preferred stock. The
Company tetained $53.0 million of the net proceeds from the offering. Of this amount, the Company contributed
$45 million to its insurance company subsidiaries. The remaining $8.0 million will be used to make additional
capital contributions to the Company’s insurance company subsidiaries as necessary 1o support anticipated growth
and for general corporate purposes, including to pay interest on the Company’s outstanding subordinated notes and
10 fund other holding company operations.

On November 21, 2006, the Company completed a secondary public offering of 9,071,576 shares of common
stock. All of these shares were sold by selling sharehelders. The Company did not receive any of the proceeds from
this offering. In connection with the offering, certain selling shareholders converted 250,000 shares of the
Company’s outstanding Series C convertible preferred stock into 1,214,771 shares of common stock.
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AMERISAFE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly
owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (“GAAP”). The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

On October 27, 2005, the Company effected a 72-for-one reverse stock split. All amounts included in these
financial statements have been restated to give effect to the reverse stock split.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.
Investments

At acquisition, investments in held-to-maturity fixed maturity securities are recorded at amortized cost. The
Company has the ability and positive intent to hold these investments until maturity. Available-for-sale fixed
maturity securities and equity securities are recorded at fair value, Temporary changes in the fair value of the
available-for-sale fixed maturity and equity securities are reported in shareholders’ equity as a component of other
comprehensive income, net of deferred income taxes.

During 2004, the Company transferred all fixed maturity securities, other than redeemable preferred stock,
from the available-for-sale category to the held-to-maturity category. This transfer between categories was
accounted for at fair value as of the transfer date. At the date of transfer, the fair valuc of all securities transferred
was 510,707,000 (36,960,000 nct of income taxes) greater than the sccurities” par value, The difference between
each security’s par value and fair value at the date of transfer is being amortized as a yield adjustment over the
respective security’s life. The fair value at the date of transfer, adjusted for subsequent amortization, is considered
to be the security’s amortized cost basis.

Investment income is recognized as it is earned. The discount or premium on fixed maturities is amortized
using the scientific “constant yield” method. Anticipated prepayments, where applicable, are considered when
determining the amortization of premiums or discounts. Realized investment gains and losses are determined using
the specific identification method.

The Company regularly reviews the fair value of its investments. Impairment of an investment security results
in a reduction of the carrying value of the security and the realization of a loss when the fair value of the security
declines below the cost or amortized cost, as applicable, for the sccurity and the impairment is deemed to be other-
than-temporary. The Company tegularly reviews the investment portfolio to evaluate the existence of other-than-
temporary declines in the fair value of investments. The Company considers various factors in determining if a
decline in the fair value of an individual security is other-than-temporary, including but not limited to the length of
time and magnitude of the unrealized loss, the volatility of the security, analysts’ recommendations and price targets,
opinions of the Company’s external investment advisor, market liquidity and the Company’s intent to sell or ability
to hold the security.

If the Company determines that the decline in fair value is other-than-temporary, the Company adjusts the cost

basis of the investment and reports an impairment charge in net realized gains (losses) on investments in the
consolidated statements of income in the period in which the Company makes this determination.

77




AMERISAFE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include commercial paper, short-term municipal securities, pooled short-term money market
funds and certificates of deposit with an original maturity of three months or less.

Preminums Receivable

Premiums receivabie consist primarily of premium-related balances due from policyhelders. The Company
considers premiums receivable as past due based on the payment terms of the underlying poiicy. The balance is
shown net of the allowance for doubtful accounts. Receivables due from insureds are charged off when a
determination has been made that a specific balance will not be collected based upon the collection efforts of
Company personnel. An estimate of amounts that are likely to be charged off is established as an allowance for
doubtful accounts as of the balance sheet date. The estimate is primarily comprised of specific balances that are
considered probable to be charged off after all collection efforts have ceased, as well as historical trends and an
analysis of the aging of the receivables.

Property and Equipment

The Company’s property and equipment, including certain costs incurred to develop or obtain software for
internal use, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated primarily by the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, generally 39 years for the building and three to
seven years for all other fixed assets.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

The direct costs of acquiring and renewing business are capitalized to the extent recoverable and are amortized
over the effective period of the related insurance policies in proportion to premium revenue earned. These
capitalized costs consist mainly of sales commissions, premium taxes and other underwriting costs. The Company
evaluates deferred policy acquisition costs for recoverability by comparing the unearmned premiums to the estimated
total expected claim costs and related expenses, offset by anticipated investment income. The Company would
reduce the deferred costs if the unearned premiums were less than expected claims and expenses after considering
investment income, and report any adjustments in amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs. There were no
adjustments necessary in 2006, 2005 or 2004.

Reserves for Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses

Reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses represent the estimated ultimate cost of all reported and
unreported losses incurred through December 31. The Company does not discount loss and loss adjustment expense
reserves. The Company uses a consulting actuary to assist in the evaluation of the adequacy of the reserves for loss
and loss adjustment expenses. The reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses are estimated using individual
case-basis valuations, statistical analyses and estimates based upon experience for unreported claims and their
associated loss and loss adjustment expenses. Such estimates may be more or less than the amounts ultimately paid
when the claims are settled. The estimates are subject to the effects of trends in loss severity and frequency.
Although considerable variability is inherent in these estimates, management believes that the reserves for loss and
loss adjustment expenses are adequate. The estimates are continually reviewed and adjusted as necessary as
experience develops or new information becomes known. Any adjustments are included in current operations.

Subrogation recoverables, as well as deductible recoverables from policyholders, are estimated using

individual case-basis valuations and aggregate estimates. Deductibles that are recoverable from policyholders and
other recoverables from state funds, decrease the liability for loss and loss adjustment expenses.
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The Company funds its obligations under certain settled claims where the payment pattern and ultimate cost
are fixed and determinable on an individual claim basis through the purchase of annuities. These annuities are
purchased from unaffiliated carriers and name the claimant as payee. The cost of purchasing the annuity is recorded
as paid loss and loss adjustment expenses. To the extent the annuity funds estimated future claims, reserves for loss
and loss adjustment expense are reduced.

Premium Revenue

Premiums on workers’ compensation and general liability insurance are based on actual payroll costs or
proeduction during the policy term and are normally billed monthly in arrears or annually. However, the Company
generally requires a deposit at the inception of a policy.

Premium revenue is eamed on a pro rata basis over periods covered by the policies. The reserve for unearned
premiums on these policies is computed on a daily pro rata basis.

The Company estimates the annual premiums to be paid by its policyholders when the Company issues the
policies and records those amounts on the balance sheet as premiums receivable. The Company conducts premium
audits on all of its voluntary business policyholders annually, upon the expiration of each poticy, including when the
policy is renewed. The purpose of these audits is to verify that policyholders have accurately reported their payroll
expenses and employee job classifications, and therefore have paid the Company the premium required under the
terms of the policies. The difference between the estimated premium and the audited premium is referred to as
“earned but unbilled” premium, or EBUB premium. EBUB premium can be higher or lower than the estimated
premium. EBUB premium is subject to significant variability and can either increase or decrease earned premium
based upon several factors, including changes in premium growth, industry mix and economic conditions. Due to
the timing of audits and other adjustments, actual EBUB premium is generally not determined for several months
after the expiration of the policy.

Prior to 2006, the Company periodically reviewed EBUB premium trends. However, the variability in those
trends caused the Company to conclude that EBUB premium could not be reasonably estimated. As a result, the
Company recorded EBUB premium as gross written premium and earned premium in the period in which the
premium audit was completed. In 2006, the Company again analyzed whether EBUB premiums could be
reasonably estimated. Based on this most recent analysis, at December 31, 2006, the Company recorded an estimate
for EBUB premium of $5.3 million, or 1.6% of gross premiums written in 2006. This adjustment for estimated
EBUB premium less related losses and expenses, increased the Company’s 2006 net income by $712,000. In future
periods, the Company will review its estimate of EBUB premiums and record an adjustment quarterly.

Reinsurance

Reinsurance premiums, losses and allocated loss adjustment expenses are accounted for on a basis consistent
with those used in accounting for the original policies issued and the terms of the reinsurance contracts.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers include balances currently owed to the Company for losses and allocated
loss adjustment expenses that have been paid to policyholders, as well as amounts that are currently reserved for and
will be recoverable once the related expense has been paid.

Upon management’s determination that an amount due from a reinsurer is uncollectible due to the reinsurer’s
insolvency, or other matters, the amount is written off.

Ceding commissions are earned from certain reinsurance companies and are intended to reimburse the
Company for costs related to acquiring policies. Ceding commission income is recognized over the effective period
of the related insurance policies in proportion to premium revenue eamed and is reflected as a reduction in
underwriting and other operating costs.
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Contingent commissions are earned from certain reinsurance companies based on the financial results of the
applicable risks underwritten by the Company. Contingent commission revenue on reinsurance contracts is
recognized during the related reinsurance treaty period and is based on the same assumptions used for recording loss
and allocated loss adjustment expenses. These commissions are reflected as a reduction in underwriting and other
operating costs and are adjusted as necessary as experience develops or new information becomes known. Any such
adjustments are included in current operations. Contingent commissions recognized reduced underwriting and other
operating costs by $66,000 in 2006 and $200,000 in 2004, and increased underwriting and other costs by $251,000
in 2005,

Fee and Other Income

The Company recognizes income related to commissions carned by AGAI as the related services are
performed.

Advertising

All advertising expenditures incurred by the Company are charged to expense in the period to which they relate
and are included in underwriting and other operating costs in the consolidated statements of income. Total
advertising expenses incurred were $447,000 in 2006, $382,000 in 2005 and $412,000 in 2004.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method. The provision for income taxes has two
components, amounts currently payable or receivable and deferred amounts, Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled. The effect on deferred income tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in
the period that includes the enactment date.

The Company considers deferred tax assets to be recoverable if it is probable that the related tax losses can be
offset by future taxable income. The Company includes reversal of existing temporary differences, tax planning
strategies available and future operating income in this assessment. To the extent the deferred tax assets exceed the
amount expected to be recovered in future years, the Company records a valuation allowance for the amount
determined unrecoverable. The Company has not recorded a vatuation allowance, since the recorded deferred tax
asset is expected to be fully realized.

Insurance-Related Assessmentis

Insurance-related assessments are accrued in the period in which they have been incurred. The Company is
subject to a variety of assessments related to insurance commerce, including those by state guaranty funds and
workers’ compensation second-injury funds. State guaranty fund assessments are used by state insurance oversight
agencies to cover losses of policyholders of insolvent or rehabilitated insurance companies and for the operating
expenses of such agencies. These mandatory assessments may be partially recovered through a reduction in future
premium taxes in certain states. Assessments related to premiums are generally paid one year after the calendar year
in which the premium is written, while assessments related to losses are generally paid within one year of when the
loss is paid.
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Policyholder Dividends

The Company writes certain policies for which the policyholder may participate in favorable claims experience
through a dividend. An estimated provision for workers’ compensation policyholders’ dividends is accrued as the
related premiums are earned. Dividends do not become a fixed liability unless and until declared by the respective
Boards of Directors of AMERISAFE’s insurance subsidiaries. The dividend to which a policyholder may be
entitled is set forth in the policy and is related to the amount of losses sustained under the policy. Dividends are
calculated after the policy expiration. The Company is able to estimate the policyholder dividend liability because
the Company has information regarding the underlying loss experience of the policies written with dividend
provisions and can estimate future dividend payments from the policy terms. Additionally, Florida law requires
payment of dividends to Florida policyholders pursuant to a formula based on underwriting results from policies
written in Florida over a consecutive three-year period.

Variable Interest Entities

In December 2003, the Company formed Amerisafe Capital Trust 1 (“ACT I") for the sole purpose of issuing
$10,000,000 in trust preferred securities. ACT I used the proceeds from the sale of these securities and the
Company’s initial capital contribution to purchase $10,310,000 of subordinated debt securities from the Company.
The debt securities arc the sole assets of ACT [, and the payments under the debt securities are the sole revenues of
ACTL

In April 2004, the Company formed Amerisafe Capital Trust I (*ACT II”) for the sole purpose of issuing
$25,000,000 in trust preferred securities. ACT II used the proceeds from the sale of these securities and the
Company’s initia} capital contribution to purchase $25,780,000 of subordinated debt securities from the Company.
The debt securities are the sole assets of ACT 11, and the payments under the debt securities are the sole revenues of
ACTIL

The Company concluded that the equity investments in ACT [ and ACT I (collectively, the *Trusts™) are not
at risk since the subordinated debt securities issued by the Company are the Trusts’ sole assets. Accordingly, the
Trusts are considered variable interest entities. The Company is not considered to be the primary beneficiary of the
Trusts and has not consolidated these entities.

Earnings Per Share

The Company applies the two-class method to compute basic earnings per share (“EPS”). This method
calculates earnings per share for each class of common stock and participating security. Income available to
common shareholders is allocated to common shares and participating securities to the extent that each security
shares in earnings as if all earnings for the period had been distributed. The amount of earnings allocated to
common shares is divided by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period.
Participating securities that are convertible into common stock are included in the computation of basic EPS if the
effect is dilutive.

Diluted EPS include potential common shares assumed issued under the treasury stock method, which reflects
the potential dilution that would occur if any outstanding options or warrants were exercised or restricted stock
becomes vested, and includes the *if converted” method for participating securities if the effect is dilutive. The two-
class method of calculating diluted EPS is used in the event the “if converted” method is anti-dilutive.

81




AMERISAFE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006

Stock-Based Compensation

On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Statement No.
123(R) (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, which is a revision of FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, Statement No. 123(R) supersedes Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No.
25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and amends FASB Statement No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows.
Generally, the approach in Statement No. 123(R) is similar to the approach described in Statement No. 123.
However, Statement No. 123(R) requires all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee
stock options, to be recognized in the income statement based on their fair values. Pro forma disclosure is no longer
an option.

Statement No. 123(R) permits public companies to adopt its requirements using one of two methods. One
method is a “modified prospective” method in which compensation cost is recognized beginning with the effective
date (a) based on the requirements of Statement No. 123(R) for all share-based payments granted after the effective
date and (b) based on the requirements of Statement 123 for all awards granted to employees prior to the effective
date of Statement No. 123(R) that remain unvested on the effective date. The other method is a “modified
retrospective” method, which includes the requirements of the modified prospective method described above, but
also permits entities to restate based on the amounts previously recognized under Statement No. 123 for purposes of
pro forma disclosures for either (a) all prior periods presented or (b) prior interim periods of the year of adoption.
Statement No. 123(R) was to be adopted no later than January 1, 2006. Early adoption was permitted in periods in
which financial statements had not yet been issued.

In anticipation of the initial public offering of the Company’s common stock, the Company adopted the
provisions of Statement No. 123(R) using the modified prospective method, effective January 1, 2005. As all share-
based payments previously issued by the Company were fully vested, there was no effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial position or results of operations as of the date of adoption.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 155, “Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments™
(“SFAS No. 155”). SFAS No. 155 allows financial instruments that have embedded derivatives to be accounted for
as a whole, eliminating the need to separate the derivative from its host, if the holder elects to account for the whole
instrument on a fair value basis. This new standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2006.
The Company expects that SFAS No. 155 wilt not have a material effect on its consolidated financial position or
results of operations.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 1097 (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 provides guidance to reduce the diversity in
practice associated with recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions. This
interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company expects that FIN 48
will not have a material effect on its consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 1577).
SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework and gives guidance regarding the methods used for
measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company expects that SFAS
No. 157 will not have a material effect on its consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

82




AMERISAFE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (*“SFAS No. 159™), provides companies with an option to report selected financial assets and
liabilities at fair value. This Statement is effective as of the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal vear beginning after
November 15, 2007. Early adoption is permitted as of the beginning of the previous fiscal year provided that the
entity makes that choice in the first 120 days of that fiscal year and also elects to apply the provisions of Statement
157. The Company has not yet determined the impact this standard will have on its consolidated financial pos1t10n or
results of operations.

2. Investments

The gross unrealized gains and losses on, and the cost and fair value of, those investments classified as held-to-
maturity at December 31, 2006 are summarized as follows:

Cost or Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(In thousands)
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of

U.S. Government agencies .......coceeeeveveeeeeeerenane. $ 18817 % 93 & (921) § 77,989
States and political subdivisions .........ccccccvvieninnnn, 365,282 996 (3481 362,797
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed

SECULILIES uovveieeieieeiiec e ses e srner b erssnireens 149,892 193 (2,225) 147,860
Corporate bonds ........coocvvvveiniiicrenieinieeceeeeeeeane. 21,023 12 (513) 20,522
Long-term certificates of deposit .......cococoveevveeivnenne. 100 — o 100
TOAlS ..veeeie e $ 615114 $ 1294 § (7,140) § 609,268

The amortized cost for the fixed maturity securities classified as held-to-maturity inctudes an unamortized gain
of $4,688,000. This gain resulted in 2004 from the difference between each security’s par value and fair value at the
date of transfer from available-to-sale to held-to-maturity and is being amortized as a yield adjustment over the
respective security’s life,

The gross unrealized gains and losses on, and the cost and fair value of, those investments classified as
available-for-sale at December 31, 2006 are summarized as follows:

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(In thousands)
EQUILY SECUFItIES ...ovoveeeeeccececeeeee oo § 22,157 § 1509 8 — § 23666
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The gross unrealized gains and losses on, and the cost and fair value of, those investments classified as held-to-
maturity at December 31, 2005 are summarized as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(In thousands)
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of

U.S. Government 4gENCies .....cocoeererirerererenenenens $ 71,548 % 75 % (934) § 70,689
States and political subdivisions ........cceeiinnnn, 255,598 585 (4,345) 251,838
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed

SECUITEIES .eveevrrinerrerneenrereresssnensesaessenaesenaeessssesnens 115,510 217 (1,950) 113,777
Corporate bonds ... 22,892 17 (494) 22,415
Long-term certificates of deposit ......coceevrvininnn. 100 — e 100
TOLALS ©eeeeeiveeveceeernsesrererererreren e escaenencrescennes $ 465648 $ 894 § (7,723) §$458,819

The gross unrealized gains and losses on, and the cost and fair value of, those investments classified as
available-for-sale at December 31, 2005 are summarized as foliows:

Cost or Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

{In thousands)

EqUity SECUMEIES .vivrvioiirnrireiiineninirnessasessenessaresenns $ 62,875 § 5355 § (1,955) § 66,275
Fixed maturity S€CUrties .......ocoooeeveeeecvineeriveenennns 1,709 7 20 1,695
TOUALS L1vveriviseseecereeec e erensebe et $ 64584 § 5362 § (1,976) § 67970

A summary of the cost or amortized cost and fair value of investments in fixed maturity securities at
December 31, 2006, by contractual maturity, is as follows:

Cost or
Amortized
Cost Fair Value
(In thousands)
Maturity:
DUE In 2007 .o $ 65427 § 65262
In 2008 through 2011 ...eveeeee e 225,135 221,963
In 2002 through 2016 ...overeeere e e 88,160 87,434
ATIET 2016 oot s s e en e b e 86,500 86,749
Mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities ..., 149,892 147.860
TOALS oottt et s ss st er s et seeae e et ebe e s eae e eaeasetetenraerensere $615,114 $609,268

The actual maturities of the fixed maturity securities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers
may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

At December 31, 2006, there were $275,000 of cash and short-term investments and $14,747,444 of held-to-
maturity investments on deposit with regulatory agencies of states in which the Company does business.
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A summary of the Company’s realized gains and losses on sales, calls or redemptions of investments for 2006,
2005 and 2004 is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2006

Proceeds from sales .....ooovveveveeeevveeenne,

Gross realized investment gains ............
Gross realized investment losses ...........

Net realized investment gain ................
IMpairments ...........ccovvminesninrrrennns

Other, including losses on calls and

redemplions ......ccvoevernrerieiecereeenes

Net realized investment gains (losses) ......c.........

Year ended December 31, 2005

Proceeds fromsales ..............ocoovveeeeeeee.

Gross realized investment gains ............
Gross realized investment 10S8€S ..........ccccocooveee..

Net realized investment gain .................
IMpairments ........coovevcecevvecnirenienreens

Other, including gains on calls and

redEeMPLIONS ....ooveervierrenieeeseree e

Net realized investment gains ................

Year ended December 31, 2004

Proceeds from sales .......ccocevveeeenvinnen,

Gross realized investment gains ............
Gross realized investment losses ...........

Net realized investment gain .................
[mpairments .........ocooeceineireceieeeeee

Other, including gains on calls and

Tedemptions .....c.covoeeeinieenceeene.

Net realized investment gains ................
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Fixed

Maturity

Securities

Available Equity

for Sale Securities Other Total

(In thousands)

................ $ 2000 §$89859 § — § 91859
................ $ — §$ 10601 § — % 10,601
................ — (3.142) — (3.142)
................ — 7,459 —_ 7,459
................ (%) — (63) (70)

3 3) § 7459 § {65) § 7,389
................ $ — §$26342 § - §26342
................ by — § 3338 3§ — § 3,338

— (1.179 — (1,179)

................ — 2,159 — 2,159
................ e — 113 113
................ $ — § 2159 § 113 §._221
nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn § — § l;légg $ __. - §=l§!§25
................ b — % 1,784 % — § 1,784
................ e (537) — {337)
................ - 1,247 — 1,247
................ —_ — 174 174
................ $ — $ 1247 § 174 § 1421
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Major categories of the Company’s net investment income are summarized as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Gross investment income:

Fixed maturity SECUFITIES .ovviveruevereeieerneimennririsrers e sseeeneeas $§ 22,261 §15,515 $11,294

EQUItY SECUMHIES ...eviviiiiiiineieeerer e erars s 1,522 1,333 g1t

Cash and cash equivalents ..o s 2,674 1,031 693
Total gross iNVestment iNCOME ........ccoiiimiimnimininimnreis s 26,457 17,879 12,798
INVESHMENT BXPEIISCS 1reueeereeerericrmerereereseetbisis bbb asssessars s sssnsas {1.074) (997) (581)

Net invesiment income

................................................................... $ 25383 816882 §12,217

The following table summmarizes the gross unrealized losses on securities which were at a loss for either less
than twelve months or twelve months or longer:

Less Than Twelve Months
Twelve Months or Longer
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Valute Losses

{In thousands)

December 31, 2006

Fixed maturity securitics ..........cococceecvvnninins $157,606 § 2,011 $258,177 § 5,129
Equity SECUTItES ..o — — — —

December 31, 2005:
Fixed maturity SECUTITIES ....covvevrevrniiiiinainnnns 34,119 2,544 271,579 5,179
Equity SECUTTHES .ovviiriceceiiirininiineii s reesrnvnens 40,437 1,405 3,599 571

The Company reviewed all securities with unrealized losses in accordance with the impairment policy
described in Note 1. The Company determined that the unrealized losses in the fixed maturity portfolio relate
primarily to changes in market interest rates since the date of purchase or the transfer of the investments from the
available-for-sale classification to the held-to-maturity classification. The Company expects to recover the
amortized cost of these securities since management has the positive intent to hold the securities until they mature.
As of December 31, 2006, there were no unrealized losses in the Company’s equity portfolio. All unrealized losses
in the December 31, 2005 equity portfolio were determined to be due to general market conditions.

3. Premiums Receivable

Premiums receivable consist primarily of premium-related balances due from policyholders. The balance is
shown net of the allowance for doubtful accounts. The components of premiums receivable are shown below:

December 31,
2006 2005
{In thousands)
Premiums r@CEIVADLE ....occooooiiirei it e st ere et $ 146,894 § 126,148
Allowance for doubtful aCCOUNLS ..oveveviieiiiiiie e s (2,510) (2.214)
Premiums receivable, TIEL ..ooiiicririe st ne st s sb s sba e e $ 144,384 $.12
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The following summarizes the activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts:

) December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Balance, beginning of Year .......coccvviiviiiiiisissi e $ 2214 % 2916 § 3,229
Provision for bad debts ..o 1,839 956 1,507
WIIE-0TFS oot (1.543) (1.658) {(1,820)
Balance, end of Year ..o § 2510 $ 2214 § 2916

4. Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

The Company incurs certain costs related to acquiring policies. These costs are deferred and expensed over the
life of the related policies. Major categories of the Company’s deferred policy acquisition costs are summarized as

follows:
December 31,
2006 2005

(In thousands)
Agents’ COMMUSSIONS ........ocovevevireeereeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeersees e e etores $ 12,080 $ 11,033
PrEMIUIT TAXES Loviiviiotoeieeeieeesteetretiteeeemeeem e e eeeeeeeabs s a0teeeaaeeeeneesemenemeneaeen e 3,469 3,088
Deferred underwriting eXPenSes ..o.oovveeveieeeicririiereseseesesseseesesseseeseerevrsssris 2937 2,852
Total deferred policy acquiSition COSIS .....ivviiirriiecceeceee e $ 18486 3 16973

The following summarizes the activity in the deferred policy acquisition costs:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Balance, beginning of year .........c.cccccvninninnnnnn e $ 16973 $ 12,044 § 11,820
Policy acquisition costs deferred ........oooeveivivveeicrcienenns 41,939 36,714 26,193
Amortization expense during the year ........ccc.cceevvnererennn (40.426) _ (31,785) (25.969)
Balance, end Of YEAT .ooveeeevrroroseesseereeseees e ereee $ 18486 S 16973 § 12,044
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5. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following:

December 31,
2006 2005
(Ia thousands)
Land and office DUldIng ......ccoovvimienimerecri et $ 4382 § 4,383
Furniture and eqQUIPMEINT ...c.cocoviiiininninnis i 6,244 6,445
SOTEWATE .eeeeeeeeeeeeieeeeereiateesteestesseessbssaesvaearae e ees b ransevane 1 aesmeaeeereeab s et b st st b s rnens 6,943 6,502
BT Lay0 1T o1 (= U UV RPN 73 79

17,642 17,809
............................................................................. (11,955) __(11.488)

...................................................... § 5687 § 6321

At December 31, 2006, furniture and equipment included property held under capital leases of $70,000 and
software included property held under capital leases of $1,315,000. Accumulated depreciation includes $835,000
that is related to these properties. At December 31, 2005, furniture and equipment included property held under
capital leases of $90,000 and software included property held under capital leases of $1,242,000. Accumulated
depreciation includes $391,000 that is related to these properties. The capital lease obligations related to this
property are included in accounts payable and other liabilities.

Accumulated depreciation

Real estate, furniture and equipment, net

Future minimum lease payments related to the capital lease obligations are detailed below (in thousands):

2007 oooivivieeeeeeetessa s s e s e ee st kb st st R AR R R R R R R Res e A s bR ] 507
2008 oo ceeeeverer st e e e rese et eaea oot o SRR S e n RS SR SRR E e 41
Total Minimum 18aSe PAYIMICNLS ......coiiuiiininiirrrieiin it e 548
Less amount representing iNtErESt .....o.ociiienminiimuiinierss st s (4)

Present value of net minimum lease payments

6. Reinsurance

The Company cedes certain premiums and losses to various reinsurers under quota share and excess-of-loss
treaties. These reinsurance arrangements provide for greater diversification of business, allow management to
control exposure to potential losses arising from large risks, and provide additional capacity for growth. Ceded
reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders. The Company remains
liable to its policyholders for the portion reinsured to the extent that any reinsurer does not meet the obligations
assumed under the reinsurance agreements. To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer
insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit
risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities, or economic characteristics of the reinsurers on a continual
basis. The effect of reinsurance on premiums written and earned in 2006, 2005 and 2004 was as {ollows:

2006 Premiums 2005 Premiums 2004 Premiums
Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned
(In thousands)
Gross .cocceeeeveveerirnens $ 332,491 $319,253 $ 290,891 $ 278,109 § 264,962 § 256,684
Ceded .....cocvvvvervveeen. (19,950) _ (19.950) (21.541) (21.541) (21.951) (21.951)
Net premiums .......... $ 312,541 $299.303 § 269350 §$ 256,568 § 243,011 §$_234,733
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The amounts recoverable from reinsurers consist of the following:

December 31,
2006 2005
(In thousands}

Unpaid losses recoverable:

ASE DASIS veeticeeeeeeeeecv v e aen e eeemeser e e e ne bt et et er et nan e $ 89285 % 106,626
Incurred but NOL TEPOTIED ...ovvveiceiriccivresieesrneseseresee s e st rar st 17,525 13,606
Paid 105SE5 FECOVETADIR ....voviiviineeee et ettt et ssbt e oo eesaee e rres 2,793 2.330
TOMA Lottt et et ee e e e e b e e e s st e sensaesreesanabeas $ 109,603 3 122562

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers consists of ceded case reserves, ceded IBNR reserves and paid losses
recoverable. Ceded case and ceded IBNR reserves represent the portion of gross loss and loss adjustment expense
liabilities that are recoverable under reinsurance agreements, but are not yet due from reinsurers. Paid losses
recoverable are receivables currently due from reinsurers for ceded paid losses. The Company considers paid losses
recoverable outstanding for more than 90 days to be past due. At December 31, 2006, there were no paid losses
recoverable that were past due.

The Company received reinsurance recoveries of $7,860,000 in 2006, $85,025,000 in 2005 and $54,144,000 in
2004,

At Becember 31, 2006, unsecured reinsurance recoverables from reinsurers that exceeded 3% of statutory
surplus of the Company’s insurance subsidiary are shown below (in thousands). The A.M. Best Company rating for
the reinsurer is shown parenthetically.

Munich Reinsurance America, Inc. (A) ...o.covieiiciciiecinrccnerer e e eercemenenas $ 23,737
Odyssey America Reinsurance COTporation (A) .vovvviiisiererniniossiesesesesesesessssesesevessesosens 19,750
St. Paul Fire & Marine Insurance Company (A=) .ocooeimicceeeeeee s resssennns 10,885
Clearwater Insurance Company (A) .........c.oooeeeciniiiesinie ittt steeeseeeeeseseeeenteesessesrssaeas 9,795
SCOR Reinsurance Company (A=) .......cccoovooieecininiessnie ittt eee e eees e seeeaeasesressssss s 7,144
Converium Reinsurance (North America) (B+) ..ot 6,193
OTHET TEINSUIETS .ottt e ee ettt st s b e te e eae e eseessemeenerrrrrgontesbeassassaaras 14,884
Total unsecured reinsurance reCOVErables ..o s 92,388
Letters Of CTEAIT .ot s s s e et s b e s e e 17,215
Total reinsurance reCOVETADIES ..ottt e $.109,603
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7. Income Taxes

The Company’s deferred income tax asscts and liabilities are as follows:

December 31,
2006 2005
(In thousands)

Deferred income tax assets:

Discounting of net unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses ...................... $£ 19,105 §16,047
Unearned PreIMIUINS ..ooeveieerereirmmrnermressesesrsrermrsesrensissstersinssrorransssesssssssssnsns 11,785 10,738
Accrued expenses and Other ... 1,653 1,703
Accrued policyholder dividends ... 2,198 271
Accrued insurance-related aSSESSIMENtS ......o.ccvvcvvvinvcreinieinicneee e 6,195 6,189
Total deferred tAX ASSEIS .....ooii ittt e et e e s s s e s sre e e e e str e e eranre e s sanereaesesanne 40,936 34,948
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Deferred policy acqUISIHION COSIS ....vovviereii i e {7,965) (7,749)
DefetTed ChaTZES ..oo.oooevevecciie e se e s sa e s (1,087) (998)
Unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale .......coooveviniinninnninn (2,169) (3,399)
Property and equipment, primarily a result of differences in depreciation .., (249) (372)
OHRET oottt er ettt et et e en e b e e b s sb et bt sssar s s e s sa s e e e e nr e e e srens e (17
Total deferred tax Liabilities .......c.coveerreenremmrmrne et e (11.470) _(12,535)
Net defetred INCOME 1aX BSSEL ......oeevreriiiriic i men s e $ 29466 $22413

The compenents of consolidated income tax expense (benefit) are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
{In thousands)
Current:
Federal ..ot bbb n e sa et es $§ 20606 % 5928 § 5444
BT it eeeee et r b et s a e e e b be e e rrra e e erer e enrneeenan 306 526 . 534
20,912 6,454 5,978
Deferred:
Faeral .oo.ooveeeeeeeeeeeeeaeseeeseeeeeeeneeeeaeeeeeeeesaeeeessenmesanaraebees (5.824) (6,389 (2.849)
0 PV UPOTROTRRTOOOt § 15088 § 65 § 3,129

Income tax expense (benefit) from operations is different from the amount computed by applying the U.S.
federal income tax statutory rate of 35% to income before income taxes as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Income tax computed at federal statutory tax rate .................... $ 1835 § 2,098 § 4,790
Tax-exempt INTEFEST, MEL oovvvveeririrreneeierneeerareeneese s e e eeene (3,145 (2,187) (1,737)
State INCOME TAX .rvisiricieeriseesieerirrrrrrrerreerinesssseesneeesessnesaneesnes 306 526 534
Dividends received deduction ..........ooccveevnienmicceiciiicniine (236) (224) (135)
OhET .o st rtr st s sttt e b s e et e sresarenaereen (193) (148) (323)

$15088 § 65 § 3,129
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8. Note Payable

At December 31, 2003, the Company had a note payable with an outstanding balance of $6,000,000, bearing
interest at the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.75% (1.91%). The note matured on April 1, 2004, and the Company made
a final payment of $6,000,000, plus accrued interest.

9. Subordinated Debt Securities

On December 16, 2003, the Company entered into a trust preferred securities transaction pursuant to which it
issued $10,310,000 aggregate principal amount of subordinated debt securities due in 2034. To effect the
transaction, the Company formed a Delaware statutory trust, Amerisafe Capital Trust I (“ACT I”). ACT I issued
$10,000,000 of preferred securities to investors and $310,000 of common securities to the Company. ACT I used
the proceeds from these issuances to purchase the subordinated debt securities, The Company pays interest on its
ACT I subordinated debt securities quarterly at a rate equal to LIBOR plus 4.10% per annum (9.47% at December
31, 2006). ACT I pays interest on its preferred securities at the same rate. The Company subordinated debt
securities and ACT I preferred securities are repayable on or after January 8, 2009, Payments of principal, interest
and premium, if any, on the ACT I preferred securities are guaranteed by the Company.

On April 29, 2004, the Company entered into a second trust preferred securitics transaction pursuant to which
it issued $25,780,000 aggregate principal amount of subordinated debt securities due in 2034, To effect the
transaction, the Company formed a Delaware statutory trust, Amerisafe Capital Trust 11 (“ACT II”). ACT II issued
$25,000,000 of preferred securities to investors and $780,000 of common securities to the Company. ACT II used
the proceeds from these issuances to purchase the subordinated debt securities. The Company pays interest on its
ACT II subordinated debt securities quarterly at a rate equal to LIBOR plus 3.80% per annum (9.17% at December
31, 2006). ACT Il pays interest on its preferred securities at the same rate. The Company subordinated debt
securities and ACT I preferred securities are repayable on or after April 29, 2009. Payments of principal, interest
and premium, if any, on the ACT II preferred securities are guaranteed by the Company.
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10. Loss and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending reserve balances, net of related
amounts recoverable from reinsurers, for 2006, 2005 and 2004:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
{In thousands)

Reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”) ........... $ 434,485 § 432,880 § 377,559
Less amounts recoverable from reinsurers on unpaid
loss and LAE .....c.o.oovieieeeeeeereeecciniccmnssssns e eeees 120,232 189,624 194,558
Reserves for loss and LAE, net of related amounts
recoverable from reinsurers, at beginning of year ................. 364,253 243,256 183,001
Add:
Provision for loss and LAE for claims occurring in
the current year, net of reinsurance ........coveveivereioieseenes 201,711 182,174 160,773
Change in estimated loss and LAE for claims
occurring in prior years, net of reinsurance ........ooienn (2,227 8,673 13,413
Loss on Converium COMMmMULAtIoN ... oerrrnrenrininnne — 13,209 —
Incurred losses during the current year, net of
FEITSUTATICE ..vviieremeresisrsesassseeeesssessasneeesssreeesseasnesannmeneessisssisinns 199,484 204,056 174,186

Less loss and LAE payments for claims, net of
reinsurance, occurring during:

CUITENT VAL <evvvrevercreeacrereerercossbirsiaatestesteses s ssnnsssissoessies 41,002 42,545 40,312
PIIOT YEATS wo.veeveveeevaevrscsrerecre e rar s sne s s st assrees 110,367 96,620 73,619
151,369 139,165 113,931
Add effect of Converium commutation (1) .....ccccvnnnninnrinnninnnne — 56,106 —
Reserves for loss and LAE, net of related amounts
recoverable from reinsurers, at end of year .......cccoviceenniinn 412,368 364,253 243256
Add amounts recoverable from reinsurers on unpaid
1085 AN LAE o oot e s ssassrr e e ee e s 106,810 120,232 189,624
Reserves for loss and LAE ......ooiiiiiiniinine e, $ 519,178 484.4 $ 432,880

(1)  The total payment from Converium was $61.3 million, of which $56.1 million was for ceded reserves and $5.2 million was for paid
recoverables as of June 30, 2005,

The Company’s reserves for loss and loss adjustment expenses, net of amounts recoverable from reinsurers, at
December 31, 2005 were decreased in 2006 by $2,227,000, and at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were increased
during the subsequent year by $21,882,000 and $13,413,000, respectively. Over 75% of the 2005 prior year
development occurred in accident years 1999 through 2002. The unfavorable development was the result of
settlements above the established case reserves or upward revisions to the estimated scttlements on an individual
case basis, totaling $7.9 million, and the commutation with our largest reinsurer, Converium Reinsurance North
America (“Converium”), as discussed in the following paragraph. The revisions to the Company’s case reserves
reflect new information gained by claims adjusters in the normal course of adjusting claims and then reflected in the
financial statements when the information becomes available. It is typical for more serious claims to take several
years to settle and the Company continually revises estimates as more information about claimants’ medical
conditions and potential disability becomes known and the claims get closer to being settled.
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During 2004, Converium was downgraded by A.M Best Company, from A—to B—, as a result of the emergence
of significant and previously unrecorded losses. While this downgrade had no immediate impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements, it caused a decrease in the Company’s A.M. Best Capital Adequacy Ratio due to
the increase in the credit risk capital charge sustained against the Converium recoverable. Effective June 30, 2005,
the Company entered into a commutation agreement with Converium pursuant to which the Company received cash
payments totaling $61,297,000 in exchange for a full termination and release of three of the five reinsurance
agreements between Converium and the Company. The commutation agreement provides that all liabilities of the
Company reinsured with Converium under these three reinsurance agreements revert back to the Company in
exchange for these cash payments. As a result of the termination of the three reinsurance agrecments, the Company
recognized a pretax loss of $13,209,000 in June 2005. Converium remains obligated to the Company under the
remaining two reinsurance agreements. As of December 31, 2006, the amount recoverable from Converium under
these two agreements was $6.2 million. Converium continues to reimburse the Company for its portion of reinsured
paid losses, and no amounts are past due. In December 2006, Converium was acquired by National [ndemnity
Company, a subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway Company, which has a A.M. Best rating of A++. Converium’s rating
was upgraded from B- to B+.

The anticipated effect of inflation is imiplicitly considered when estimating liabilities for loss and loss
adjustment expenses. Average scverities are projected based on historical trends adjusted for implemented changes
in underwriting standards, policy provisions and general economic trends. These anticipated trends are monitored
based on actual development and are modified if necessary.

11. Statutory Accounting and Regulatory Requirements

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries file financial statements prepared in accordance with statutory
accounting principles prescribed or permitted by the insurance regulatory authorities of the states in which the
subsidiaries are domiciled. Statutory-basis shareholder’s capital and surplus at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
of the directly owned insurance subsidiary, American Interstate Insurance Company, and the combined statutory-
basis net income and realized investment gains for all AMERISAFE’s insurance subsidiaries for the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2006, were as follows (in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Capital and SUTPlUS .......oovieiiniiniiniie e, 196,017 $ 157,740 §$112,334
Net income (0S8 ..ooccovvriin i v e et 38,591 (4,208) 7,828
Realized investment gains ....ccooceveeeereveeiee e 7,389 2,272 1,421

Property and casualty insurance companies are subject to certain risk-based capital (“RBC”) requirements
specified by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners. Under these requirements, a target minimum
amount of capital and surplus maintained by a property/casualty insurance company is determined based on the
various risk factors related to it. At December 31, 2006, the capital and surplus of AIIC and its subsidiaries
exceeded the minimum RBC requirement.

Pursuant to regulatory requirements, AIIC cannot pay dividends to the Company in excess of the lesser of 10%
of statutory surplus, or statutory net income, excluding realized investment gains, for the preceding 12-month
period, without the prior approval of the Louisiana Commissioner of Insurance. However, for purposes of this
dividend calculation, net income from the previous two calendar years may be carried forward to the extent that it
has not already been paid out as dividends. No such dividends were paid to the Company in 2006, 2003 or 2004,
Based upon the above described calculation, AIIC could pay to the Company dividends up to $19,602,000 in 2007
without seeking regulatory approval.
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12. Capital Stock
Common Stock

The Company ts authorized to issue 50,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share. On
November 23, 2005, the Company completed the initial public offering of its common stock with the sale of
8,000,000 shares at $9.00 per share. In connection with the offering, the Company also issued 9,120,948 shares of
common stock in exchange for all then-outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock. At December 31, 2006, there
were 18,705,098 shares of common stock issued and outstanding.

At December 31, 2006, 1,214,770 shares of common stock were issuable upon conversion of all outstanding
shares of Series C and Series D convertible preferred stock, based on the conversion price on that date of $20.58.

Non-Voting Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 5,000,000 shares of convertible non-voting common stock, par value $0.01
per share. Shares of non-voting common stock are issuable upon conversion of outstanding shares of the
Company’s Series D convertible preferred stock at the option of the holder of the Series D convertible preferred
stock. At the option of the holder, each share of non-voting common stock may be converted at any time into one
share of common stock. There were no shares of non-voting common stock outstanding at December 31, 2006 and
2005 or issued during the three-year period ended December 31, 2006.

Series A Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 1,500,000 shares of Series A preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, of
which 862,924 shares have been canceled and retired and cannot be reissued. No shares of Series A preferred stock
were outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005. The following table summarizes the activity in the Series A
preferred stock for the two years in the period ended December 31, 2005 (dollars in thousands):

Redemption
Shares Amount
Balance at January 1, 2004 ..........oooivieromrenvereornn e esene e eees e 764,243 § 76,424
Series A preferred stock dividends ..o 54918 5,492
Balance at December 31, 2004 ... e nsaes e 819,161 81,916
Series A preferred stock dividends acerued ..o 43,763 4,376
Series A preferred stock dividends redeemed ... (50,410) (5,041)
Series A preferred stock exchanged for common stock ..., (812.514) (81,251)
Balance at December 31, 2005 .. .. iiiireresceeesensresssieeersnessseessmeesees — § —

In connection with the initial public offering in November 2005 and in accordance with the terms of its articles
of incorporation, the Company used $5.1 million of the proceeds from the offering to redeem 50,410 outstanding
shares of Series A preferred stock. The redemption price for the Series A preferred stock was $100 plus the cash
value (calculated at the tate of $100 per share) of all accrued and unpaid dividends per share from the most recent
quarterly dividend payment date to the redemption date (the “Redemption Price”).

In accordance with the terms of the Series A preferred stock set forth in the Company’s articles of
incorporation, holders of not less than two-thirds of the Series A preferred stock elected to exchange all
then-outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock for shares of common stock. The exchange rate for each share
of Series A preferred stock was $100 divided by the price per share to the public in the public offering. The
Company issued 9,120,948 shares of common stock in connection with the exchange of all then-outstanding shares
of Series A preferred stock.
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Prior to the exchange of Series A preferred stock for common stock effective upon the completion of the initial
public offering, holders of Series A preferred stock were entitled to cumulative dividends at the rate of $7 per year
payable quarterly in shares of Series A preferred stock.

There were no shares of Series A preferred stock outstanding at December 31, 2006,
Series B Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 1,500,000 shares of Series B preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share.
There were no shares of Series B preferred stock outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2003 or issued during the
three-year period ended December 31, 2006.

Series C and Series D Convertible Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 500,000 shares of convertible preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, of
which 300,000 shares are designated as Series C convertible deferred pay preferred stock and 200,000 shares are
designated as Serics D non-voting convertible deferred pay preferred stock (collectively, the “Convertible Preferred
Stock™}. The terms of the Series C and Series D convertible preferred stock are identical, except that holders of
Series C convertible preferred stock are entitled to vote (on an as-converted to common stock basis) on all matters to
be voted on by shareholders of the Company.

Prior to the completion of the Company’s initial public offering in November 2005, holders of the Convertible
Preferred Stock were entitled to cumulative dividends at the rate of $7 per year payable quarterly in shares of Series
E preferred stock. Under the terms of the Company’s articles of incorporation, holders of the Convertible Preferred
Stock are no longer entitled to receive these pay-in-kind dividends as a result of the redemption and exchange of ail
outstanding shares of Series A preferred stock. However, if holders of two-thirds of the outstanding shares of
Convertible Preferred Stock consent to the payment of a dividend by the Company to the holders of common stock
or non-voting common stock, holders of Convertible Preferred Stock will receive {on an as-converted to common
stack or non-voting common stock basis) a dividend equal to the dividend paid to holders of common stock and non-
voting common stock.

The Series C convertible preferred stock is convertible at the option of the holder into shares of common stock
at a rate of $100 per share divided by the then-applicable conversion price. The Series D convertible preferred stock
is convertible at the option of the holder into shares of non-voting common stock at a rate of $100 per share divided
by the then-applicable conversion price. In turn, each share of non-voting common stock is convertible at the option
of the holder into one share of common stock. As of December 31, 2006, the conversion price was $20.58 per share
and the outstanding shares of Convertible Preferred Stock were convertible into 1,214,770 shares of common stock.

Subject to certain exceptions, the conversion price will be adjusted if the Company issues or sells shares of
common stock or non-voting commoen stock (including options to acquire shares and securities convertible into or
exchangeable for shares of commeon stock or non-voting common stock) without consideration or for a consideration
per share less than the market price of the common stock or non-voting common stock in effect immediately prior to
the issuance or sale. In that event, the conversion price will be reduced to a conversion price (calculated to the
nearest cent} determined by dividing (1) an amount equal to the sum of (a} the number of shares of common stock
and non-voting common stock outstanding immediately prior to the issuance or sale (including as outstanding all
shares of commen stock and non-voting common stock issuable upon conversion of outstanding Convertible
Preferred Stock) multiplied by the then-existing market price of the common stock; plus (b) the consideration, if
any, received by the Company upon the issuance or sale, by (2) the total number of shares of common stock and
non-voting common stock outstanding immediately after such issuance or sale (including as outstanding all shares of
common stock and non-voting common stock issuable upon conversion of outstanding Convertible Preferred Stock,
without giving effect to any adjustment in the number of shares issuable by reason of such issue and sale).
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If the Company issucs or sells shares of common stock or non-voting common stock for cash, the cash
consideration received will be deemed to be the amount received by the Company, without deduction for any
expenses incurred or any underwriting commissions or concessions paid or allowed by the Company. If the
Company issues or sells shares of commeon stock or non-voting common stock for a consideration other than cash,
the amount of the consideration other than cash received shall be deemed to be the fair value of such consideration
as determined in good faith by the board, without deduction for any expenses incurred or any underwriting
commissions or concessions paid or allowed by the Company.

No adjustments to the conversion price are required for issuances of shares of common stock or non-voting
common stock upon any conversion of Convertible Preferred Stock, under the Company’s equity incentive plans or
in connection with any acquisition by the Company.

The Convertible Preferred Stock is automatically convertible into shares of common stock upon consummation
of a public offering of shares of common stock with gross proceeds of at least $40,000,000 to the Company at a
price to the public of at least $651.60 per share (subject to adjustment to reflect stock splits, combinations and stock
dividends). In addition, the Convertible Preferred Stock is convertible at the Company’s option upon consummation
of a public offering of its equity securities if the closing price of the common stock for the 20 trading days prior to
consummation results in, or concurrently with the disposition of substantially all of the assets of the Company or a
change of control of more than 50% of the voting power of all outstanding shares of voting stock, other than through
a public offering of equity sccurities (collectively, a “Change of Control™), if the proceeds from the transaction result
in, a value for the outstanding common stock of at least $651.60 per share.

The Company may redecm all, but not less than all, of the outstanding shares of Convertible Preferred Stock at
a price per share of $103.50 plus accrued and unpaid dividends. The Convertible Preferred Stock is mandatorily
redecmable at the Redemption Price upon a Change of Control.

The Convertible Preferred Stock is classified outside of permanent equity because the shares are mandatorily
redcemable upon the occurrence of certain events that are deemed to be outside the control of the Company.

No shares of Convertible Preferred Stock were issued during the three-year period ended December 31, 2006.
On November 21, 2006, 250,000 shares of Series C convertible preferred stock were converted into 1,214,771
shares of common stock. The 250,000 shares of Series C preferred stock exchanged were canceled and retired and
cannot be reissucd.

At December 31, 2006, there were 50,000 shares of Series C convertible preferred stock and 200,000 shares of
Series D convertible preferred stock issued and outstanding.

Series E Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 500,000 shares of Series E preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, of
which 317,744 shares have been redeemed by the Company. Theses shares have been canceled and retired and
cannot be reissued.

Prior to the completion of the Company’s initial public offering in November 2005, holders of Series E
preferred stock were entitled to cumulative dividends at the rate of $7 per year payable quarterly in shares of Series
E preferred stock. In connection with the offering and in accordance with the terms of its articles of incorporation,
the Company used $5.1 million of the proceeds from the offering to redeem all then-outstanding shares of Series E
preferred stock, at the Redemption Price. The Company made cash redemptions of Series E preferred stock on May
28, 2004, June 8, 2004 and June 30, 2004,

There were no outstanding shares of Series E preferred stock as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.
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Junior Preferred Stock

The Company’s board has the authority, without further action by the shareholders, to issue up to 10,000,000
shares of junior preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share, in one or more series. In addition, the board may fix the
rights, preferences and privileges of any series of junior preferred stock it may determine to issue, subject to the
rights, preferences and privileges of the Convertible Preferred Stock. There were ne shares of junior preferred stock
outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005 or issued during the three-year period ended December 31, 2006,

Liguidation Provisions

In the event of any liquidation or dissolution of the Company, the holders of Convertible Preferred Stock will
receive $100 for each outstanding share before any distributions are made to holders of any other then-outstanding
series of preferred stock, junior preferred stock, commen stock or non-voting common stock. Any remaining net
assets will be distributed first to holders of common stock and non-voting common stock, subject to any other
preferential amounts payable to holders of any then-outstanding series of preferred stock or junior preferred stock.

13. Stock Options and Restricted Stock
2005 Incentive Plan

[n connection with the mitial public offering, the Company’s shareholders approved the AMERISAFE 2005
Equity Incentive Plan (the “2005 Incentive Plan™).

The 2005 Incentive Plan is administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board and is designed to
provide incentive compensation to executive ofticers and other key management personnel, The 2005 Incentive
Plan permits awards in the form of incentive stock options, as defined in Section 422(b) of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, non-qualified stock optiens, restricted shares of commeon stock and restricted stock units. The
maximum number of shares of common stock that may be issued pursuant to option grants and restricted stock and
restricted stock unit awards under the 2005 Incentive Plan is 1,900,000 shares, subject to the authority of the Board
to adjust this amount in the event of a merger, consolidation, reorganization, stock dividend, stock split, combination
of shares, recapitalization or similar transaction affecting the common stock. Officers, other key employees,
consultants and other persons performing services for the Company that are equivalent to those typically provided
by Company employces are eligible to participate in the 2005 Incentive Plan. However, only employees (including
Company officers) can receive grants of incentive stock options.

Stock options granted under the 2005 Incentive Plan have an exercise price of not less than 100% of the fair
value of the common stock on the date of grant. However, any stock options granted to holders of more than 10% of
the Company’s voting stock will have an exercise price of not less than 110% of the fair value of the common stock
on the date of grant. Stock option grants are exercisable, subject to vesting requirements determined by the
Compensation Committee, for periods of up to ten years from the date of grant, except for any grants to holders of
more than 10% of the Company’s voting stock, which will have exercise periods limited to a maximum of five
years. Stock options generally expire 90 days after the cessation of an optionee’s service as an employee. However,
in the case of an optionee’s death or disability, the unexercised portion of a stack option remains exercisable for up
to one year after the optionee’s death or disability. Stock options granted under the 2005 Incentive Plan are not
transferable, except by will or the laws of descent and distribution.
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Upon the completion of the initial public offering, the Board approved grants of options to officers and
employees to purchase an aggregate of 1,548,500 shares of common stock in November 2005. These options have
an exercise price equal to the initial public offering price of $9.00 and are subject to pro rata vesting over a five-year
period. In September 2006, the Company granted options to purchase an aggregate of 100,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock at a per-share exercise price equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common
stock on the date of grant, At December 31, 2006, 447,837 shares of common stock were available for future
awards under the 2005 Incentive Plan.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model to estimate the fair value of each option on
the date of grant. The expected terms of options are developed by considering the Company’s historical attrition
rate for those employees at the officer level, who are eligible to reccive options. Further, the Company aggregates
individual awards into homogenous groups based upon grant date. Expected volatility is estimated using daily
historical volatility for six companies within the property and casualty insurance sector that had at least seven years
of publicly available trading history as of the date on which the Company completed its initial public offering. The
Company believes that historical volatility of this peer group is currently the best estimate of expected volatility of
the market price of the Company’s common shares. The dividend yield is assumed to be zero as the Company has
not historically paid cash dividends nor expects to pay cash dividends in the near future. The risk-free interest rate is
the yield on the grant date of U.S. Treasury zero coupon securitics with a maturity comparable to the expected term
of the options.

The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R) — Skare-Based
Payment, as of January 1, 2005. At that time, all share-based payments previously issued by the Company were
fully vested. In 2005, the Company approved the 2005 Incentive Plan and made the initial awards of stock options
under that Plan concurrent with the effective date of the Company’s Registration Statement on November 17, 2005.
Since that date, the Company made additional awards of stock options under the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan on
September 1, 2006 and September 25, 2006. The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes-Merton pricing model for
options granted on the above option grant dates were as follows:

2006 2005
Expected Volatilify ......ooiecccecce s 28.0% — 28.2% 29.3%
Weighted-Average Risk-Free Interest Rate.....ooooovivinc 4.5%-4.9% 4.4%
Weighted-Average Expected Life ..o 6.5 years 6.5 years
Expected Dividend Yield ... 0.0% 0.0%
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The following table summarizes information about the stock options outstanding under the 2005 Incentive Plan
at December 31, 2005 and 2006:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average

Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Life

Shares Price (in years)
Outstanding at January 1, 2005 ..o — $ — -
(611 =1« AU 1,548,500 9.00 —
Exercised ......coveemrevnremrriie e —_ — -
Canceled, forfeited, or expired ........cccoverenve. — — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2005 .............. 1,548,500 9.00 99
Exercisable at December 31, 2005 ................ — — _
Outstanding at January 1, 2006 ................... 1,548,500 9.00 9.9
Granted .....cooevereirniiicne e ese s 100,000 10.46 —
Exercised ..o iivievmree e 47,500 9.00 —
Canceled, forfeited, or expired .......cccoovennn (209,000} 9.00 —
Outstanding at December 31, 2006 .............. 1,392,000 9.10 89
Exercisable at December 31, 2006 .............. 258,400 9.00 8.9

The weighted-average grant date fair values of options granted during 2006 and 2005 were $4.06 and $3.57,
respectively, Cash received from option exercises was $428,000 in 2006. Total tax benefits realized for tax
deductions from option exercises was $10,500 in 2006.

On March 10, 2006, the compensation committee of the Board approved incentive compensation awards to
each of the Company’s executive officers for services rendered in 2005. The awards were composed of cash
bonuses and grants of restricted common stock, The restricted stock awards were made pursuant to the Company’s
2005 Incentive Plan and vest on the first anniversary of the date of grant. The fair value of the restricted stock at the
date of grant was $170,000.

The following table summarizes information about the restricted stock outstanding under the 2005 Incentive
Plan at December 31, 2006:

Weighted-Average Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value per Share
Nonvested balance at beginning of year................... — $ —
Granted ..o 15,946 10.66
Vested .o — —
FOPLRILEM ..o eeeeeneeeesece e eeseeesesee e enere (3,283) 10.66
Nonvested balance at end of year..........cccoo v 12,663 10.66

The Company recognized compensation expenses of $850,000 in 2006 and $53,000 in 2005 related to the 2005
Incentive Plan.
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2005 Restricted Stock Plan

In connection with the initial public offering, the Company’s shareholders approved the AMERISAFE 2005
Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Plan (the “2005 Restricted Stock Plan™). The 2005 Restricted Stock Plan
is administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board and provides for the automatic grant of restricted
stock awards to non-employee directors of the Company. Restricted stock awards to non-employee directors are
generally subject to terms including non-transferability, immediate vesting upon death or total disability of a
director, forfeiture of unvested shares upon termination of service by a director and acceleration of vesting upon a
change of contro] of the Company, The maximum number of shares of common stock that may be issued pursuant
to restricted stock awards under the 2005 Restricted Stock Plan is 50,000 shares, subject to the authority of the
Board to adjust this amount in the event of a merger, consolidation, reorganization, stock split, combination of
shares, recapitalization or similar transaction affecting the common stock. At December 31, 2006, 40,558 shares of
common stock were available for future awards under the 2005 Restricted Stock Plan.,

Under the 2005 Restricted Stock Plan, each non-employee Director is automatically granted a restricted stock
award for a number of shares equal to $15,000 divided by the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the
date of the annual meeting of shareholders at which the non-employee Director is elected or is continuing as a
member of the Board. Each restricted stock award vests on the date of the next annual meeting of sharehoiders
following the date of grant, subject to the continued service of the non-employee Director,

As of December 31, 20006, there were 6,110 shares of restricted stock outstanding under the 2005 Restricted
Stock Plan, all of which will vest on the date of the annual meeting of shareholders in 2007.

The following table surnmarizes information about the restricted stock outstanding under the 2005 Restricted

Stock Plan at December 31, 2006:
Weighted-Average Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value per Share
Nonvested balance at beginning of year........ 3,332 ) 9.00
Granted ... 6,110 10.66
Vested ..o (3,332) 9.00
Forfeited .........coovoevniece e — —
Nonvested balance at end of year................ 6,110 10.66

The Company recognized compensation expense of $72,000 in 2006 related to the 2005 Restricted Stock Plan.
No compensation expense was recognized in 2005 related to the 2005 Restricted Stock Plan. Total tax benefits
realized for tax deductions from vesting of restricted stock was $4,000 in 2006.

1998 Plan

The AMERISAFE 1998 Amended and Restated Stock Option and Restricted Stock Purchase Plan (the “1998
Plan™) was terminated on June 20, 2005. The 1998 Plan was administered by the Board of Directors and provided
for grants of incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options and restricted stock to selected employees, officers
and directors. Each option granted under the 1998 Plan was exercisable for one share of common stock. Options
could have been granted under the 1998 Plan for a number of shares not to exceed, in the aggregate, 2,500,000
shares of common stock.
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Exercise prices for the incentive stock options could be no less than 100% of the fair value of a share of
common stock on the date the option was granted. [f the option was granted to any owner of 10% or more of the
total combined voting power of the Company, the exercise price was to be at least 110% of the fair value of a share
of common stock on the date the option was granted. Exercise prices for the nonqualified stock options could be no
less than 100% of the fair value of a share of common stock on the date the option was granted. Each option vested
ratably over a period of five years and was exercisable during a period not to ¢xceed ten years from the date such
option was granted. Exercise prices for non-employee Director stock options could be no less than 100% of the fair
value of a share of common stock on the date the option was granted.

The non-employee Director stock options, granted when a Director became a Board member, were exercisable
in increments of one-third of the total grant on each anniversary of the grant date and became fully exercisable three
years after the grant date. The non-employee Director options awarded at the re- election of the Director became
fully exercisabl'e at the award date.

A summary of the Company’s 1998 Plan as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and changes during each of the
years then ended is as follows;:

2005 2004
Weighted- : Weighted-
Average Average
Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at the beginning of the year ...... 20,098 $ 21528 20,140 § 21672
Granted ... 167 360.00 167 360.00
Exercised ....ocoovvieiiicin v — — — —
Canceled, forfeited, or expired .........cccoee.ee. (20.265) 216.72 (209) 360.00
Outstanding at the end of the year ............... — — 20,098 215.28
Exercisable at the end of the year ............... — — 20,098 215.28

On June 20, 2005, the Company entered into agreements with the holders of all its outstanding options to
purchase shares of the Company’s common stock granted under the 1998 Plan pursuant to which all outstanding
options of the Company were cancelled in exchange for $0.072 for each share of common stock issuable upon
exercise of the options. Options to acquire a total of 20,265 shares of the Company’s common stock were canceled
in exchange for aggregate cash payments of $1,459.

14. Warrants

In 2004, warrants for 119,649 shares of common stock were exercised at a price of $0.72 per share. The
warrants were issued in 1997 and 1998. No warrants were outstanding during 2006 or 2005. The following table
depicts warrant activity for the one-year perlod ended December 31, 2004.

Exercise Shares

Number Price Purchased
Warrants outstanding at January 1, 2004 .......c.coooviirieiennn 119,849 £ 072 —
ISSUBA woviiiiiiiiiiiiiiii et sssrarr s e e arar e — — —
EXEICISEA ouvureieieiiieisi st erie s isevsiresessssstneestesssesesssnsneeeassessssnbnsenes 119,649 0.72 119,649
Expired ... 200 .72 —

Warrants outstandmg at December 31 2004 ............................... —
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15. Earnings Per Share

Diluted earnings per share includes common shares assumed issued under the “treasury stock method,” which
reflects the potential dilution that would occur if any outstanding options are exercised. Diluted earnings per share
also includes the “if converted” method for participating securities if the result is dilutive. The two-class method of
calculating diluted earnings per share is used whether the “if converted” result 1s dilutive or anti-dilutive.

The calculation of basic and diluted EPS for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are presented

below.

Basic EPS:

NELINCOIMIE .vvveveecrevirrinrevrerrernsrnsresiresssesesssossessnesnnes
Preferred stock dividends ......oooevvveevieviieernnes

Income (loss) available to common shareholders

Amount allocable to common shareholders ..............

Income (loss) allocable to common sharcholders

Weighted-average common shares outstanding ..
Basic earnings (loss) per share ...

Diluted EPS:
Income (loss) allocable to common shareholders

Dividends on participating securities ..................

Income (loss) allocable to common shareholders

after assumed CONVETSIONS .....cvvveiniviiniinisinniinnns

Weighted average common shares outstanding ......

Dituted effect:

Stock OPHONS .oceiiiceieee et
Restricted StOCK ......coviviiriirer e

Warrants ...............

Conversion of participating securities ................
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding ........

Diluted eamings (loss) per share .......c.cccoceeceeeenen.

For the Year Ended December 31,

2006

2005

2004

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

$ 37358 $ 5930 § 10557
...... — (8.593) (9.781)
..... § 37358 §_(2663) S __ 776

88.6% 100% 70.2%
..... $..33009 $_ (2663) §____ 545
...... 17,580 2,129 225
...... $. 188 8 (125 §_ _ 242
..... $ 37358 $ (2663) $ 545

§ 37358 3 (2663) & 545
...... 17,580 2,129 225
...... " - -

— — 30
...... 17,595 2129 ___ 255
...... $ 188 §  (125) § 214
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The table below sets forth the calculation of the percentage of net income allocable to common sharcholders,
or the *portion allocable to common shareholders.” Under the two-class method, unvested stock options, and out-
of-money vested stock options are not considered to be participating securities. For the periods presented, the
Company did not have any in-the-money, vested stock options outstanding. As a result, the Company’s outstanding

stock options are not included in this calculation.

Numerator:
Basic weighted average common shares...........c.coccoeeeinee
Add: Other commeon shares eligible for common
dividends:
Weighted average restricted shares (including
tax benefit component) ..........c.coecvveeeuenannn
Weighted average participating common shares..

Denominator;

Weighted average participating common shares.................

Add: Other classes of securities, including contingently

1ssuable common shares and convertible preferred

shares:

Weighted average common shares issuable upon
conversion of Series C preferred shares........
Weighted average common shares issuable upon
conversion of Series D preferred shares........
Weighted average participating shares.............ccococovovicceees

(1) Not applicable as impact is antidilutive.

Years Ended

__2006 2005 2004
17,579,829 2,129,492 225,367
14,907 — —
17,594,736 2,129,492 225,367
17,594,736 2,129,492 225,367
1,301,301 — (1) 57,524
971,817 — (1) 38,350
19,867,854 2,129,492 321,241

Portion allocable to common shareholders for 2006 was 88.6%, or 17,594,736 divided by 19,867,854 Portion
allocable to common shareholders for 2005 was 100%. Pertion allocable to common shareholders for 2004 was

70.2%, or 225,367 divided by 321,241,
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16. Other Comprehensive Income
Pre-Tax Net-of-Tax
Amount Tax Expense Amount
(In thousands)
December 31, 2006
Unrealized gain on securities:
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities ................... $ 1,983 $ 694 $ 1,289
Less amortization of differences between fair value
and amortized cost for fixed maturity security transfer .... (1,637) (573) (1,064)
Less reclassification adjustment for losses realized
10 NET IMCOITIE ...vovveiieeeieeeeeeeeeeseeebaeebsaebe e st esseerseesaasannsanns (3.860) (1351) {2,509)
Net unrealized 10SS ..ooocveoviveieie e (3,514) (1.230) (2,284)
Other comprehensive MEOME ... $(3,514) § (1,230) $ (2,284)
December 31, 2005
Unrealized gain on securities:
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities ................. $ 3,057 $ 1,070 § 1,987
Less amortization of differences between fair value
and amortized cost for fixed maturity security transfer ..., (1,969) (689) (1,280)
Less reclassification adjustment for losses realized
1IN NEL INCOIME Leviiirercireniiirinrsrs s e ses e ssassrnes e resssnaesenes (2,228) (780) (1,448)
Net untealized 1085 ...ccooviiiieriirecre et e (1.140) (399) (741)
Other comprehensive inCOME ......ccoovoeeeininninneeerere e £ (L140y § {399y § (741
December 31, 2004
Unrealized gain on securities:
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities ................... $ 1,993 b 698 $ 1,295
Less amortization of differences between fair value
and amortized cost for fixed maturity security transfer ... (2,413) (845) {1,568)
Less reclassification adjustment for gains realized
1M TIEE ITICOITIE .eooeieeeeneceneeeeeeeeeete e beanbeanbe e st esssessenseasenrans 242 86 156
Net unreahized 1085 ..ooovieeecciccini e e (178} (61) (117)
Other comprehensive IMCOME ..o s § (178) % 6ly § (117)

17. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company's 401(k) benefit plan is available to all employees. The Company matches up to 2% of
employee compensation for participating employees, subject to certain limitations. Employees are fully vested in
employer contributions to this plan after five years. Contributions to this plan were $275,000 in 2006, $294,000 in
2005 and $276,000 in 2004.

18. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is a party to various legal actions arising principally from claims made under insurance policies
and contracts. Those actions are considered by the Company in estimating reserves for loss and loss adjustment
expenses. I[n the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

The Company provides workers’ compensation insurance in several states that maintain second-injury funds.

Incurred losses on qualifying claims that exceed certain amounts may be recovered from these state funds. There is
no assurance that the applicable states will continue to provide funding under these programs.
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The Company manages risk on certain long-duration claims by settling these claims through the purchase of
annuities from unaffiliated carriers. In the event these carriers are unable to meet their obligations under these
contracts, the Company could be liable to the claimants. The following table summarizes (in thousands) the fair
value of the annuities at December 31, 2006, that the Company has purchased to satisfy its obligations. The A.M.
Best Company rating is shown parenthetically.

Statement Value
of Annuities Exceeding

Life Insurance Company 1% of Statutory Surplus
American General Life Insurance (A++) .ooooieiiiniessssssssnseees $ 23,007
New York Life Insurance Company (A+H) o.ooocoiiiicnnnniccsiininnnn 4,463
First Colony Life Insurance Company (A+) ....ciivnnennnnininnnn, 3,806
Monumental Life Insurance Company (A1) .ocoerervervennnneennieneenens 3,300
Pacific Life and Annuity Company (A++) oo 3,081
John Hancock Life Insurance Company (A++) .ooveeviniieiveevcnvnrinenane, 2,941
Liberty Life Assurance Company of Boston (A) .........coeveernvererernecvccenne 2,594
Transamerica Life Insurance and Annuity (A+) ..ocooieineinennnee 2,522
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company (A++).......oooeevvcrennins 2,238
ONET i 12,308
$ 60,260

Each of the life insurance companies from which the Company purchases annuities, or the entity guaranteeing
the life insurance company, has an A.M. Best Company rating “A” (Excellent) or better.

The Company leases equipment and office space under noncancelable operating leases. At December 31,
2006, future minimum lease payments are as follows (in thousands):

2007 o $ 749
2008 TN 569
2009 ..o s 473
2000 oo ——————— 8

b 1,799

Rental expense was $1.4 million in 2006, $924,000 in 2005 and $956,000 in 2004,
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19. Concentration of Operations

The Company derives its revenues primarily from its operations in the workers’ compensation insurance line of
business. Total net premiums earned for the different lines of business are shown below:

2006 2005 2004
Dollars Percent Dollars Percent Dollars Percent
(Dollars in thousands)

Workers® compensation ......... $297,227 99.3% $254,117 99.0% $232,291 99.0%
General liability ..........covuvnnne 2,075 0.7% 2451 1.0% 2,442 L.0%

Total net premiums carned .... $299,303 _100.0% 3$256,568 _ 100.0% ‘$_2_3A£ -100.0%

Net premiums earned in each of the prior three years for the top ten states in 2006 and all others are shown
below:

2006 2005 2004
Dollars Percent Dollars Percent Dollars Percent
(Dollars in thousands)

GEOTZIA weveerceeiccninreenns $ 28,800 96% $ 26,198 10.2% $ 227313 9.5%
Louisiana .......c.cccuvvervvevennae 26,120 8.7 23,441 9.1 26,422 11.3
Florida ......ccoveercerirrees 20,281 6.8 13,671 53 10,959 4.7
North Carolina .....c.ccccevuvennenn 19,442 6.5 16,861 6.6 14,705 6.3
Virginia .....cocoooveeevmrmrnnrnsnnnns 17,643 5.9 12,935 5.0 12,395 53
TEXAS ovevreiecririnsieninresenenenns 16,562 5.5 15,159 59 17,150 7.3
HENOIS .o 15,079 5.1 14,198 5.5 14,186 6.0
Pennsylvania .......ccccoccviineee 14,941 50 13,066 5.1 9,812 4.2
AlASKa ..o 14,446 4.8 12,341 5.0 9,365 4.0
South Carolina ........c.cccoverenee 14,122 4.7 12.440 4.8 10,067 4.3
187,436 62.6 160,810  62.5 147,374 629
All others ...ocovvececeecreccnrnenns 111,867 374 95.758 375 87,359 _37.1

Total net premiums earned ... $299.303  100.0% $256,568 _100.0%  $234.733 _100.9%

20. Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The Company determines fair value amounts for financial instruments using available third-party market
information. When such information is not available, the Company determines the fair value amounts using
appropriate valuation methodologies. Nonfinancial instruments such as real estate, property and equipment,
deferred policy acquisition costs, deferred income taxes and loss and loss adjustment expense reserves are excluded
from the fair value disclosure.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—The carrying amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
for these financial instruments approximate their fair values.

Investments—The fair values for fixed maturity and equity securities are based on prices obtained from a third-
party investment manager.

Subordinated Debt Securities—The carrying value of the Company’s subordinated debt securities

approximates the estimated fair value of the obligations as the interest rates on these securities are comparable to
tates that the Company believes it presently would incur on comparable borrowings.
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The following table summarizes the carrying or reported values and corresponding fair values for financial
instruments;
December 31,
2006 2008
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
{In thousands)
Assets: '
Fixed maturity SeCUrities .......coovorveerrennnnn, $ 615114 -8 609,268 $ 467,343 § 460,514
Equity SECUITHES .....ovcvoeecereivreerercaerceine, - 23,666 23,666 66,275 66,275
Cash and cash equivalents ..o 26,748 26,748 49286 49,286
Liabilities: : : .
Subordinated debt securities: : :
ACT Lt - 16,310 10,310 10,310 10,310

CACT I 25,780 25,780 25,780 25,780

21.  Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

L
The following table represents unaudited quarterly financial data for the years ended December 31, 2006 and

2005,
Three Months Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
{In thousands, except per share amounts)

2006 ., ) .
Premiums €arned ........ocoovvveeeemociinicnneieaeens $ 67874 §°72,107 $ 74,991 § 84331
Net investment iNCOME .......covvvereerverrrnrerrrenrns 5,973 . 5,843 6,316 7,251
Net realized gains on investments .................. 1,154 1,081 ' 346 4 808
Total FEVENUES ..ovvieeeiiieieeecr e 75,158 179,229 $1,848 96,485
Income before income taxes .......ooovvevvvvrssrens 9,873 9,735 10,757 22,081
Net income ......... 7,236 7,818 8,265 14,039
Net income allocable to common
shareholders .......ovevveviiiv i 7,236 7,818 8,265 14,039
Earnings per share:

BASIC i 0.36 (.39 0.42 0.71

Diluted oo 0.36 0.39 0.42 0.70
Comprehensive income .......oooveniiiicnnnnennns 8,698 6,005 8,963 11,408
2005
Premiums €amned ..o $ 61,917 § 63,115 $ 64,338 $ 67,198
Net investment iNCOME ......coovvvervrereeeeeeenenn. 3,718 3,932 4,335 4,897
Net realized gains on investments ... 227 547 563 935
Total TEVENUES ...occeeeeerviervreie et eeeeenea 66,024 67,738 69,356 73,165
Income (loss) before income taxes ................. 4,345 (12,298) 6,518 7,430
Net income (1088) .ovevvvervieivicreeeeecreseeiernnenes 3,237 (7,521 4,809 5,405
Net income (loss) allocable to common

SharehOlIders ......occiiiiiiirercrrreniresneseesseens 681 (9,902) 1,812 2,992
Eamings (loss) per share: _

BaSIC ...oovveeeiieiiere e 2,27 (33.03) 6.05 0.40

DHIuted ...ooveveece et 2.27 (33.03) 6.05 0.39
Comprehensive InCOMe .........ccccovvvvivrniniinns 2,892 (7,592) 4,966 4921
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AMERISAFE, INC.

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Operating activities :
Net cash provided by operating activities ...........cocooeveccrccininnnne $§ 1030 $ . 412 % 8351 .
Investing activities
Purchases of investments ........ et rteere bt e ey — — (78Q0)
Purchases of property and equipment ........ccoccevevrnnienrnnnninnnnen (1,328) (1,379) {3,589)
Capital contributions to subsidiary ........ccccvvrerirmimcsrsesesneiererenns — (45,000) (2.710)
Net cash used in investing activities ............ e . (1.328) . (46.379) . {1.079)
Financing activities
Proceeds. from stock option €XErcisSe ......oovvvrerveerermveecinnnieneenenene 428 — —
Tax benefit from share-based payments ..........coccvveererincrninnnnininees 14 — —
Net proceeds from initial public offering .........cociiicciiicininnnn = 63,236 —
Series A preferred stock redemption ..., — (5,093) v
Series E preferred stock redemptions ... — (5,093) (27,244) .
Principal payments on note payable ... — — {6,000)
Warrants exercised ........ e leee e ettt st — — 86
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debt securities ................... . —. — 25.780
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities...........cccouvrrnnne 442 53.050 (7,378)
Change in cash and cash equivalents .......c.oceverieicrinneee ferereeree e : 144 7,083 {6,106).
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ..........ccccovecvcviniennne 11,149 4,066 16,172
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ...........cccocviieinniinienn. § 11293 § 1,149 §__ 4,066
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The following table summarizes the carrying or reported values and corresponding fair values for financial
instruments:
December 31,
2006 2005
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(In thousands)
Assets:
Fixed maturity securities .........ccoceevivrereennns $ 615114 § 609268 $ 467,343 § 460,514
Equity securities ..........ocovimicicrcneennicninonn 23,600 23,666 66,275 66,275
Cash and cash equivalents .........c.ccocoerrvve. 26,748 26,748 49,286 49,286
Liabilities:
Subordinated debt securities:
ACT e 10,310 10,310 10,310 10,310
ACTIL o 25,780 25,780 25,780 25,780

21, Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following table represents unaudited quarterly financial data for the years ended December 31, 2006 and

2005.
Three Months Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
{In thousands, except per share amounts)

2006 '
Premiums earned ........cccoooveeeeiiininirsnesinens $ 67874 § 72,107 $ 74,991 $ 84,331
Net Investment COME _..........cooovrvvviviiiineenn. 5,973 5,843 6,316 7.251
Net realized gains on investments .................. 1,154 1,081 346 4,808
Total TRVENURS .oocoviiiiiieeeeeecccrrr e ermree e 75,158 79,229 81,848 96,485
Income before income taxes ......ccovveveneennnn, 9,873 9,735 10,757 22,081
NEtINCOME ...oeiiiiieei it eeeeeece e ameeeee s 7,236 7,818 8,265 14,039
Net income allocable to common
sharehOlders ... 7,236 7,818 8,265 14,039
Eamings per share:

BAaSIC oo s 0.36 0.39 0.42 0.71

Diluted ... 0.36 0.39 0.42 0.70
Comprehensive inCome ......c.coveevevrecreniennnnns 8,698 6,005 8,963 11,408
2005
Premiums eamed ...........coeeiiieeeeesceenrrnnenninnns $ 61917 $ 63,115 § 64,338 $ 67,198
Net investment inCOIME .........ccccvevrrvenneerererinns 3,718 3,932 4,335 4,897
Net realized gains on investments .................. 227 547 563 935
Total FEVENUES ..o cveee e e 66,024 67,738 69,356 73,165
Income (loss) before income taxes ................. 4,345 (12,298) 6,518 7,430
Net Income (1088) .ovivviiiiiieeccviieriisir s 3,237 (7,521) 4,809 5,405
Net income (loss) allocable to common

shareholders ..o, 681 (9,902) 1,812 2,992
Earnings (loss} per share: )

BASIC woicveiveriireicte e b e 2.27 (33.03) 6.05 0.40

Diluted oo 2.27 (33.0%) 6.05 0.39
Comprehensive income ....oeveevveinieneincrnnnn, 2,892 (7,592) 4,966 4,921
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Schedule II. Condensed Financial Information of Registrant

AMERISAFE, INC,
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets
Investments:
Equity sccurities—available-for-sale, at fair value ...,
Investment in SUbSIAIAIIES . ....occe e
Total INVESLINENIS .ooeiiieiini ettt ere e e e e st st e n e s ta e
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS ..o e
DeferTed IMCOME TAXES ..ovvveeeriererierrerrerrnreerreressreemcessescereeneeerenereresbssssssssassnasnansasas
Property and equipment, NEL .....c.c.ocvviriiminimininiriieere st
OHEE ASSEES 1.vvvevereeeecreeeeeeeeeeeteeeeeeebess s beasae b e s e bses e resnesr e e e sanembesr st e san s s sn e e

Liabilities, redeemable preferred stock and shareholders’ equity
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities ...
Note payable to SUbSIAIArIiEs ......covcirviiinic e,
Subordinated debt SECUTILIES ...oovvvirieireii e
Total HADIILIES ©.ovviviiiiciireieiernee et esnsseseenrm s e mne it bbb s st
Redeemable preferred stock:
Series A nonconvertible—$0.01 par value, $100 per share redemption value:
Authorized shares—1,500,000; issued and outstanding shares-—none in
2006 and 2005 ...ioirieeee et e s n s
Series C convertible—$0.01 par value, $100 per share redemption value:
Authorized shares—300,000; issued and outstanding shares—350,000 in
2006 and 300,000 in 2005 .o
Series D convertible—$0.01 par value, $100 per share redemption value:
Authorized shares—200,000; issued and outstanding shares—200,000 in
2006 and 2005 ....oiiiiiiii e et ea e s

Shareholders’ EQUILY ....cvevrerereeec e bbbt s s
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December 31,

2006 2005
(In thousands)

5 1090 $ 1,090
215217 178,429
216,307 179,519

11,293 11,149
199 29

2,558 2,923
1,039 1.442

3 231,396 3§ 195,062
$ 1468 § 1,826
10,024 9,800
36,090 36.090
47,612 47,716
5,000 30,000
20,000 20,000
25,000 50,000
158,784 97.346

8 231,396  §._195.062




Schedule 1L Condensed Financial Information of Registrant - (Continued)

AMERISAFE, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)

Revenues
Net inVeStmMent iNCOIME .......cocvvveeeeeeeeeeeeeesevssereeseeeneeenee $ 1,300 £ 990 § 281
Fee and other inCOME ......o.ooveeviiiiiiireeee e 8.268 5,813 3,661
Total FEVEIUES ..ovvvvevirerie et ecir ettt it eaernessssesrans i 9.568 6,803 3,942
Expenses
Other operating CostS ........cooviiiiiiimeeeeeeeeeeeeesee e 7,217 3,567 1,831
INEETESE EXPENSE vrvveereriieeieicrieiete e erene 3.571 3,160 1,757
Total EXPENSES ..ocoviiiiieirrrie e et 11,188 6,727 3,588
Income (loss) before income taxes and equity in

earnings of subsidiaries ..o (1,620) 76 354
Income tax eXpense ... 95 302 2093
Income (loss) before equity in earnings of subsidiaries.... (1,715) (226) 61
Equity in net income of subsidiaries ...............ccoeeveeennene. 39.073 6,156 10,496
NELINCOMIE .. eeies e e ss e asannes by 37,3358 b 5,930 b 10,557
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Schedule I1. Condensed Financial Information of Registrant - (Continued)

AMERISAFE, INC.
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands})

Operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities ... $§ 1030 S 412§ 8351
Investing activities

Purchases of INVESUNENLS .....covrvrreenrcie e ccecctssisss s — — (780)
Purchases of property and equipment ..........coooveievieneniecceiennens (1,328) (1,379) (3,589)
Capital contributions to subsidiary ... — {45.000) (2.710)
Net cash used in Investing activities ... (1.328) (46,379} {7,079
Financing activities

Proceeds from stock option XerCiSe ......covvvoriviensiieiereecee e 428 — —
Tax benefit from share-based payments .........cccccooeieinece i 14 — —
Net proceeds from initial public offering ... — 63,236 —
Series A preferred stock redemption ... — (5,093) —
Series E preferred stock redemptions .....c.eeeeiiiiinnnnnn. — (5,093) {27,244)
Principal payments on note payable ... — — (6,000)
WArrants eXerciSed ......ooeeerrererereeiseiiisresi e — — 86
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated debt securities ................... — — 25,780
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities........c...cocoeerenenns 442 53,050 (1.378)
Change in cash and cash equivalents ... 144 7,083 (6,106)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ..., 11,149 4.066 10,172
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ..., § 11,293 $ 11,149 § _ 4,066
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Schedule VI.  Supplemental Information Concerning Property - Casualty Insurance Operations

AMERISAFE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

Reserves for Loss and Loss and Amortization
Deferred Unpaid Loss LAE LAE of Deferred Paid Claims
Policy and Loss Net related to refated to Policy and Claim Net
Acquisition Adjustment  Unearned Earned Investment Current Prior Acquisition Adjustment Premiums
Cost Expense Premium  Premium Income Period Periods Costs Expenses Written
(1o thousands)

2006 $18.486 $519,178 $137,761 $299,303 $25,383 $201,711 52,227 £(40,426) $151.369 $312,541
2005 16,973 484,485 124,524 256,568 16,882 182,174 8,673 (1) (31,785} 139,165 (1) 269,350
2004 12,044 432,880 111,741 234,733 12,217 160,773 13,413 (25,969) 113,931 243,011

n

111

In June 2005, we commuted three reinsurance agreements with Converium Reinsurance North America (“Converium™). The incurred loss
of $13.2 million and cash reccived from Converium for ceded reserves of $36.1 million are not reflected in these amounts.




Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure,
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and
chief financial officer, we have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™)} as of the end of the
period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this
report to provide reasonable assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports that are filed or
submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the rules and forms specified by the SEC. We note that the design of any system of controls is based in
part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design
will succeed in achieving the stated goals under all potential future conditions.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securitics and Exchange Act of 1934, Our internal control over
financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of our chief executive officer and our chief financial
officer, and effected by our board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, In making this assessment, management used the criteria described in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based
on management’s assessment under the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, our management
has concluded that internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2006,

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, has audited management’s
assessment of the effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting and the effectiveness of internal controls
over financial reporting, as stated in their report which is included herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of
the period covered by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

Limitations on Controls

Because of its inherent limitations, management does not expect that our disclosure controf and our internal
control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the degree of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate. Any control system, no
matter how well designed and operated, is based upon certain assumptions and can only provide reasonable, not
absolute assurance that its objectives will be met. Further, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance
that misstatements due to errors or fraud will not occur or that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any within
the Company, have been detected.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
AMERISAFE, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting, that AMERISAFE, Inc. and Subsidiaries maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO
criteria). AMERISAFE, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal contro] over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositicn of the company’s
assets that could have a matenial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate. '

In our opinion, management’s assessment that AMERISAFE, Inc. and Subsidiaries maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the
COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, AMERISAFE, Inc. and Subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated financial statements of AMERISAFE, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and
2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 and our report dated March 2, 2007 expressed an unqualified
opinion thereon.

/s/ Emnst & Young LLP

New Orleans, Louisiana
March 2, 2007
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Item 9B.  Other Information.
None.
PART 111
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by Item 10 with respect to our executive officers and key employees is included in -
Part I of this report.

The information required by Item 10 with respect to our directors is incorporated by reference to the
information included under the caption “Election of Directors” in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders. We plan to file such Proxy Statement within 120 days after December 31, 2006, the end of our
fiscal year.

The information required by Item 10 with respect to compliance with Section 16 of the Exchange Act is
incorporated by reference to the information included under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance” in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

The information required by Item 10 with respect to our audit committee and our audit committee financial
expert is incorporated by reference to the information included under the caption “The Board, Its Committecs and lts
Compensation—Audit Committee” in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

The information required by Item 10 with respect to our code of business conduct and ethics for executive and
financial officers and directors is posted on our website at www.amerisafe.com in the Investor Relations section
under “Governance—Code of Conduct.” We will post information regarding any amendment to, or waiver from,
our code of business conduct and ethics on our website in the Investor Relations section under Governance.

Item 11. Executive Compensation,

The information required by Item 11 is incorporated by reference to the information included under the
captions “Executive Compensation,” “The Board, Its Committees and Its Compensation—Director Compensation,”
“Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Compensation Committee Report” in our
Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference to the information included under the
captions “Security Ownership of Management and Certain Beneficial Holders™ and “Equity Compensation Plan
Information™ in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Sharcholders.

Item 13, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by Item 13 with respect to certain relationships and related transactions is
incorporated by reference to the information included under the caption “Executive Compensation—Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions™ in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

The information required by Ttem 13 with respect to director independence is incorporated by reference to the

information included under the caption “The Board, Its Committees and Its Compensation—Director Independence”
in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Sharcholders.
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Item 14, Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required by Item 14 with respect to the fees and services of Ernst & Young LLP, our
independent registered public accounting firm, is incorporated by reference to the information included under the
caption “Independent Public Accountants” in our Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Sharcholders.
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Item 15.

PART IV

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

The following consolidated financial statements and schedules are filed in Item 8 of Part I of this report:

Financial Statements: Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 71
Consolidated Balance Sheets 72
Consolidated Statements of Income 73
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Sharcholders’ Equity 74
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 75
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 76

Financial Statement Schedules:

Schedule II. Condensed Financial Information of Registrant 108
Schedule VI. Supplemental Information Concerning Property-Casualty Insurance Operations 111
(Schedules I, IT1, IV and V are not applicable and have been omitted.)

Exhibits:
il

3.2

10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4 *

10.5*

10.6*

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Amendment No. 3 (File No. 333-
127133), filed October 31, 2005)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-127133), filed August 3, 2005)

Employment Agreement, dated January 1, 2004, by and between the Registrant and C. Allen Bradiey,
Jr., as amended by Amendment No. | to Employment Agreement, dated June 17, 2005 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form $-1 (File No. 333-127133),
filed August 3, 2005)

Employment Agreement, dated January 1, 2004, by and between the Registrant and Geoffrey R. Banta,
as amended by Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, dated June 17, 2005 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-127133),
filed August 3, 2005)

Employment Agreement, dated January 1, 2004, by and between the Registrant and Craig P. Leach, as
amended by Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, dated June 17, 2005 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-127133),
filed August 3, 2005)

Employment Agreement, dated September 1, 2006, by and between the Registrant and David O.
Narigon (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K,
filed September 6, 2006)

Employment Agreement, effective September 25, 2006, by and between the Registrant and Todd
Walker (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
September 6, 2006)

AMERISAFE, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the

Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Amendment No. 3 (File No. 333-127133), filed
October 31, 2005)
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10.7*

10.8*

10,9+

10.10*

10.11%*

10.12*

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.1%8

10.19

10.20

Form of Incentive Stock Option Award Agreement for the AMERISAFE, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1,
Amendment No. 3 (File No. 333-127133), filed October 31, 2005)

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement for the AMERISAFE, Inc. 2005 Equity
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1, Amendment No. 3 (File No. 333-127133), filed October 31, 2005)

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for the AMERISAFE, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan
{(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed
March 15, 2006)

AMERISAFE, Inc. 2005 Non-Employee Director Restricted Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-1, Amendment No. 3 (File No. 333-
127133), filed QOctober 31, 2005)

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement for the AMERISAFE, Inc. 2005 Non-Employee Director
Restricted Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-127133), filed August 3, 2005)

Form of Director and Officer Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to
the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-1 (File No. 333-127133), filed August 3, 2005)

First Casualty Excess of Loss Reinsurance Contract, effective as of January 1, 2005, issued to the
Registrant by the reinsurers and named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-127133), filed August 3, 2003)

Second Casuaity Excess of Loss Reinsurance Contract, effective as of January 1, 2005, issued to the
Registrant by the reinsurers and named therein {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-127133), filed August 3, 2005)

Workers’ Compensation Catastrophe Excess of Loss Reinsurance Contract, effective as of January 1,
2005, issued to the Registrant by the reinsurers named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.14 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 8-1 (File No. 333-127133), filed August 3,
200%)

First Casualty Excess of Loss Reinsurance Contract, effective as of January 1, 2006, issued to the
Registrant by the reinsurers named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed August 14, 2006)

Second Casualty Excess of Loss Reinsurance Contract, effective as of January 1, 2006, issued to the
Registrant by the reinsurers named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed August 14, 2006)

Third Casualty Excess of Loss Reinsurance Contract, effective as of January 1, 2006, issued to the
Registrant by the reinsurers named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed August 14, 2006)

Workers’ Compensation Catastrophe Excess of Loss Reinsurance Contract, effective as of Januvary 1,
2006, issued to the Registrant by the reinsurers named therein (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed August 14, 2006)

Casualty Catastrophe Excess of Loss Reinsurance Contract, effective as of January 1, 2006, issued to

the Registrant by the reinsurers named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,5 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed August 14, 2006)
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10.21 Form of First Casualty Excess of Loss Reinsurance Contract, effective as of January 1, 2007, issued to
the Registrant by the reinsurers named therein

10.22 Form of Second Casualty Excess of Loss Reinsurance Contract, effective as of January 1, 2007, issued
to the Registrant by the reinsurers named therein

10.23 Form of First and Second Casualty Catastrophe Excess of Loss Reinsurance Contract, effective as of
January 1, 2007, issued to the Registrant by the reinsurers named therein

10.24 Form of Third Casualty Catastrophe Excess of Loss Reinsurance Contract, effective as of January 1,
2007, issued to the Registrant by the reinsurers named therein

10.25 Commutation and Release Agreement, effective as of June 30, 2005, between the Registrant and
Converium Reinsurance (North America) Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the
Company’s Registration Statement of Form S-1 (File No. 333-127133), filed August 3, 2005)

10.26 Services Agreement, effective as of March 31, 2005, by and between Concentra [ntegrated Services,
Inc. and Amerisafe Risk Services, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, Amendment No. 1 (File No. 333-127133), filed September 9,
2005)

10.27 Agreement, effective as of March 31, 2005, by and between Amerisafe Risk Services, Inc. and
MedRisk, Inc. and its affiliates and subsidiaries (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, Amendment No. 1 (File No. 333-127133), filed
September 9, 2005)

10.28 Lease Agreement, effective as of January 1, 2005, by and between The Phoenix Hat Company, LLC
and the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Registration Statement
on Form S-1, Amendment No. 1 (File No. 333-127133), filed September 9, 2005)

10.29 Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 18, 1998, by and among the
Registrant and the shareholders of the Registrant named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-127133), filed August 3, 2005)

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-127133), filed August 3, 2005)

23.1 Consent of Emst & Young LLP

24.1 Powers of Attorney for our directors and certain executive officers

31.1 Certification of C. Allen Bradley filed pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
312 Certification of Geoffrey R. Banta filed pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act ot 2002
32.1 Certification of C. Allen Bradley and Geoffrey R. Banta filed pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as

adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Management contract, compensatory plan or arrangement
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on March 5, 2007.

AMERISAFE, INC.

By: /s/ C. Allen Bradley, Jr.

C. Allen Bradley, Jr.
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on March 5, 2007.

/s/ C. Allen Bradley, Jr. Chairman, President,
C. Allen Bradley, Jr. Chief Executive Officer and Director
{Principal Executive Officer)

{s/ Geoffrey R. Banta Executive Vice President and
Geoffrey R. Banta Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

* Director
Thomas W. Hallagan

* Director
Jared A. Morris
Director
Randy Roach
* Director

Sean M. Traynor

» Director
Austin P. Young, III

Todd Walker, by signing his name hereto, does hereby sign this Annual Report on Form 10-K on behalf of the
above-named directors of AMERISAFE, Inc. on this 5th day of March 2007, pursuant to powers of attorney
executed on behalf of such director and contemporaneously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

*By: /s/ Todd Walker
Todd Walker, Attorney-in-Fact
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SHAREHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following performance graph compares the cumulative total shareholder return on AMERISAFE’s
common stock with the S&P Small Cap 600 Index and the S&P Property & Casualty Insurance Index, assuming an
initial investment of $100 on November 18, 2005, the first day of trading of the AMERISAFE’s common stock, and

the reinvestment of all dividends, if any.
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